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Independent auditors’ report

To the Shareholder and Management of “Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" JSC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of “Sovereign Wealth Fund
“Samruk-Kazyna" JSC and its subsidiaries (the "Group"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2014 and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Giobal Limited
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of “Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna" JSC and its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2014 and their consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

vk 6 Tpung. 1A
A

Bakhtiyor Eshonkulov Evgeny Zhemaletdinov

Auditor / audit partner General director
Ernst & Young LLP

Auditor gualification certificate State audit license for audit activities on the
No. M®-0000099 dated 27 August 2012 territory of the Republic of Kazakhstan:
series M®HKO-2 No. 0000003 issued by
the Ministry of finance of the Republic of
Kazakhstan on 15 July 2005

27 April 2015



“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at December 31
in miliions of lenge Note 2014 2013
Assets
Non-cutrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 8,405,084 7,018,234
Intangible assets 8 334,289 284 325
Investments in joint ventures and associates 9 1,813,834 1,717,249
l.oans to customers 10 271,989 647,083
Amounts due from credit institutions 11 692,377 282,676
Deferred {ax assets 35 102,436 42,084
Other non-current financial assefs 12 180,317 144,564
Other non-current assets 13 805,071 461,886
12,408,397 10,588,111
Current assets
Inventories 14 355,515 346,300
VAT receivable 228,842 248,792
Income tax prepaid 74,560 77,721
Trade accounts receivable 15 314,749 381,069
Loans to customers 10 458,473 249,800
Amaunts due from credit institutions 14 1,146,227 1,291,888
Other current financial assets 12 26,358 81,5851
Other current assets 15 244,762 211,020
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,234,305 740,994
4,083,794 3,609,535
Assets classified as held for sale 6 148,486 1,086,843
Total assets 16,637,674 15,294,489

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 9 through 106 form an integral part
of these consolidated fincncial statements.
]



“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

In millions of tenge Note 2014 2013

Equity and liabilities
Equity attributable to equity holder of the Parent

Share capital 17 4,620,562 4,484 676
Revaluation reserve for available-for-sale investments 51,290 25,302
Currency translation reserve 17 486,162 272,655
Other capital reserves 17 (14,689) (2,711)
Retained earnings 2,224,315 1,947,379
7,367,640 6,727,301
Non-controlling interest 764,438 779,291
Total equity 8,132,078 7,506,592
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 18 4,329,026 3,366,527
Loans from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan 19 412,633 197,216
Finance lease liabilities 21 90,396 74,982
Provisions 22 229,447 137,246
Deferred tax liability 35 512,253 377,919
Employee benefit liability 23 61,125 55,717
Amounts due to customers 58 11,152
Other non-current liabilities 20 463,513 272,798
6,098,451 4,493,557
Current liabilities
Borrowings 18 1,313,236 607,839
Loans from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan 19 1,111 71,342
Finance lease liabilities 21 15,802 13,698
Provisions 22 153,429 161,978
Employee benefit liability 23 5,726 4,578
Income taxes payable 4,020 58,010
Trade and other payables 456,475 408,140
Amounts due to customers 20,628 230,763
Derivatives 2,156 527
Other current liabilities 24 373,647 517,516
2,346,230 2,074,390
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale 6 60,915 1,219,950
Total liabilities 8,505,596 7,787,897
Total equity and liabilities 16,637,674 15,294,489

*  Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013
and reflect reclassifications made to conformn with the presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2014.

Finance director — Member of the Management Board m‘-/r

Nurlan Rakhmetov ™~

Chief accountant = ﬂﬁ U -~ -
Almaz A8grakhmanova

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 9 through 106 form an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.
2



“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna™ ISC Consclidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years December 31

In miflions of tenge Note 2014 2013
Revenue 25 5,106,498 4,978,772
Government grants 26 31,192 28,996
5,137,690 5,007,768
Cost of sales 27 (3,795,760) {3,602 383)
Gross profit 1,341,930 1,405,385
General and administrative expenses 2B {376,874) {362,008)
Transportaticn and selfing expenses 28 (374,977) {347 457)
Impairment loss 30 {455,785} {152,829)
Gain on revaluation of a 50% stake in EGRES-1 5 74,473 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 1,028 23815
Other operating income 65,426 41,560
Other operafing loss {80,415) (18,186)
Operating profit 194,807 590,381
Finance costs 3 {288,107} {230,746)
Finance income 3z 129,369 83,802
Share in profit of joint ventures and associates, net 33 457,095 546,342
Net foreign exchange loss 34 (34,331) {35,007)
Profit before income tax 458,833 G954 872
Income tax expenses 35 {186,024} {259,054}
Net profit for the year from continuing operations 272,809 695 818
Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of {ax 2] {38,317) {256,062}
Net profit for the year 234,492 439,756

Net profit for the year attributable to:

Equity holder of the Parent 271,548 407 246
Non-controlling interest {37,056) 32,510
234,492 439,756

The acconnting policies and explanatory notes on pages 9 through 106 form an integrof part
of these consolidated financial statements,
3



“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

In millions of tenge Note 2014 2013

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods, net of tax:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 244,438 54,538
Unrealized loss from revaluation of available-for-sale investments 24,492 (1,967)
Loss on transactions with hedge instruments — (254)
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or

loss in subsequent periods 268,930 52,317

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods, net of tax:

Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans, net of tax (2,574) (6,715)
Net other comprehensive loss not to be reclassified to profit

or loss in subsequent periods (2,574) {6,715)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 266,356 45,602
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 500,848 485,358
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax,

attributable to:
Equity holder of the Parent 507,978 452,012
Non-controlling interest (7,130) 33,346

500,848 485,358

*  Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to 2013 consolidated financial statements and reflect adjustments made which
are detailed in Note 6.

Finance director — Member of the Management Board «@Wﬁ’_

Nurlan Rakhmetov

Chief accountant =
Almaz A b\ﬁ}'akhmam)\'a

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 9 through 106 form an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.
4
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“Sovercign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna™ JSC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 3§

Consolidated financial statements

In miffions of tenge Note 2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax from continuing cperations 458,833 954,872
Loss before income tax from discontinued operations {29,373) {242,701)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, depletion and amorization 27,28 29 418,236 356,069
Share in profit of joint ventures and associates, net 33 (457,095) (548,342)
Finance costs 31 288,107 230,746
Finance income 32 (129,389) {83,902}
impairment loss 30 455,785 152,829
Long-term employee benefits 23 11,272 14,983
Provision charges 45,7865 6,758
Derivatives 45,998 26
Gain on disposal of financial assets {27,164) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment and other long

term assets, net 4,727 3,393
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries {1,029} {23,518)
Allowance for doubtful debts 28 10,217 7.232
Gain fram revaluation of existing stake in EGRES-1 on step

acquisition 5 {74,473} -
Reciassification of realized gains and losses on available-for-sale

investments to profit and lgss - 626
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 34,069 33,746
Other transactions 2,082 1,410
Significant items of disposal group classified as held for sale,

shown &s discontinusd aperations:
impairment loss 21,912 79,835
Impairment of disposal group 6 - 158,729
Other adiustments related to discontinued operations - 873
Cash flows from operating activities before working capital

changes 1,078,470 1,105,266
Changes i loans to customers 219,462 {33,541}
Changes in amounts due from credit institutions {91,330) (13,130}
Changes in other financial assets 969 23,601
Changes in inventories {34,251) {34,545}
Changes in VAT receivable {43,159) {70,227}
Changes in trade accounts receivable 84,232 {41,685}
Changes in other assets (6,230} 3,014
Changes in borrowings and leans from the Government of the

Republic of Kazakhstan 24,307 {2,774)
Changes in trade and other accounts payable (101,362) {30,081)
Changes in amounts due {o customers {1,532) {75,285)
Changes in other liabilities (66,324) {14,746)
Cash generated by operating activities 1,083,252 815,957
Income taxes paid {252,935} {222 6598)
Interest paid {222,993} {180,255)
Interest received 71,157 58,745
Net cash flows received from operating activities 658,481 472,749

The accouming policies and explanatory notes on pages 9 through 106 form an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.
7



“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

In millions of tenge Note 2014 2013*

Cash flows from investing activities

Withdrawal/(placement) of bank deposits, net 227,845 (397,103)
Acquisition of joint ventures and associates (47,772) (294,398)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 5 (256,420) (23,833)
Cash of disposed subsidiaries (73,818) (167,363)
Cash of subsidiaries reclassified to disposal group (7,330) (79,658)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (970,163) (1,179,183)
Purchase of intangible assets (11,842) (24,362)
(Purchase)/sale of other financial assets, net (12,666) 40,103

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 9,041 13,029

Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 9 361,001 438,759

Repayment of financial liability - (19,973)
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries 6 64,079 4,528

Provision of loans (108,896) (11,309)
Stock options exercised - (20)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (826,941) (1,700,783)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 1,173,592 1,283,082

Repayment of borrowings (524,078) (752,206)
Repayment of finance lease liabilities (14,489) (10,678)
Buy back of subsidiaries’ shares - (264)
Contributions to the share capital 171 103,918 39,320

Distributions to the Shareholder 17.5 (68,351) (12,599)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest of subsidiaries 17.3 (64,305) (45,273)
Contributions to the share capital by non-controlling interest 17.6 23,304 -

Acquisition of non-controlling interest 17.7 (18,570) -

Dividends paid to the Shareholder 17.3 (9,077) (9,077)
Net cash flows received from financing activities 601,944 492 305

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 433,484 (735,729)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 59,827 8,297

Cash and cash equivalents, at the beginning of the year 740,994 1,468,426

Cash and cash equivalents, at the end of the year 16 1,234,305 740,994

*  Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to 2013 consolidated financial statements and reflect adjustments made which
are detailed in Note 6.

Finance director — Member of the Management Board 5 5 vatm%r

Nurlan Rakhmetoy

Chief accountant %Qfg_“( /
Almaz Abdiakhmanova

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 9 through 106 form an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.
8



“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samrok-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated financial siatements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2014

L GENERAL INFORMATION

Corporate information

J8C “Bovereign Weaith Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” (the “Fund” or “Samruk-Kazyna”) was established on
November 3, 2008 in accordance with the Deerec of the Presidenl of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated
October 13, 2008 and the Resolution of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated October 17, 2008, The
formation was enacted by the merger of “Sustainabic Development Fund *Kazyna™ ISC (“Kazyna™) and “Kazakhstan
Holding Company for Staie Assets Management “Samruk”™ JSC (“Samruk™) and the additional transier 1o the Fund ol
interest in certain entities owned by the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan (the “State™ or the “Government™).
The Government, represenled by the State property and privatization committee of the Ministry ol inance of the
Republic of Kazakhstan is the sole shareholder of the Fund (the “*Shareholder™ or the “Parent™).

During this organization the Governiment’s overall objective was 1o Increase management efficiency and to optimise
organisaticnal structures in these entities for them to successfully achicve their strategic objeclives as set in the
respective Government programs,

The Fund is a holding company combining state-owned enterprises listed in Note 36 (the “Group™}. Prior Lo February 1,
2012, the Fund’s aetivities were governed by the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan “On National Welfare Fund”®
No. 134-4 dated February 13, 2009 and were aimed Lo assisl in provision of stable development of the state economy,
modernization and diversilication of economy, and improvement of the Group companies” effieiency. According Lo the
Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan enacted on February 1, 2002 “On Sovercign Wealth [und™ No. 550-1¥. the If'und’s
activity is focused on improving sovercign wealth of the Republic of Kazakhstan by increasing the long-term value of
the Group companies and by cffective management of the Group assels,

For management purposes, the Group is organized into organizational business units based on their products and
services, and has seven reportable operating segments (Mofe 41}

. Qil and gas segment includes operations related te exploration and production of oil and gas, transportation ol oil
and gas and refining and trading of crude oil and reflined products.

. Transportation segment includes operations related to railway and air transportation of cargo and passengers.

. Telecommunication segment includes operation of lixed line communication, including focal, long-distance

intercity and international telecommunication services (including C1S and non-C18 countries); and also renting
out of tines, data transfer services and wireless communication services,

. linergy scgment includes operations relaled to production and distribution of electricity, the function of oversight
over the input of electricity inlo the energy syslem and consumplion of imported clectricily, the function of
ceniralized operation and dispatch of facilities in the Unilied Energy System of Kazakhstan,

. Mining and industrial segmeni includes exploration. mining. processing and sales of mineral resources. military
industry enterprises and civil engineering, projects for the development of chemical industry and geological
exploration.

. Financial and innovation institutions segment includes operations related to assisting the Government in
increasintg housing availability by invesling into residential development. Further. this segment included
comunercial banks acquired by the 1'und during 2009,

. Corporate center and projects segment covers Fund’s investing and lnancing activitics, including provision of
loans to related and third parties.

The adidress of the Fund’s regisiered office is Astana, Kunayey str. 8, the Republic of Kazakhstan.

These consolidated financial statements were authorised [or issue by the Finance director — Member of the Management
Board and Chiel' accountant ol the Fund on April 27, 2015,



“Savereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-IKazyna” JSC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated linancial stalements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except as described in the
accounting policies and the notes to these consolidated financial statements.

These consotidated financial statements arce presented in Kazakhstan Tenge (“tenge™ and “KZT™) and all monetary
amounts are rounded 10 the nearcst million tenge exceptl where otherwise indicated.
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial slatements have been prepared in accordance with [nternational Financial Reporting
Standards (“[FRS8™) as issued by Inlernational Accounting Standard Board (“IASB™).

The preparation ol consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It aiso requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the accounting
policies. The arcas involving a higher degree of judgment o complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consclidated financial statements are disclosed in More £

Foreign currency transiation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems inclnded in these consolidated financial statements of cach of the Group’s entities are measurcd using Lhe
currency ol primary economic environment in which the enlily operates (“the functionat currency™). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in lenge, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. FForeign exchange gains and losses resulling Trom the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at the reporting dale exchange rates of monclary assets and liabilitics denominated in loreign currencies are
recognized in profil and loss, except [or hedge of net assets of foreign operations against certain botrowings (Nete 37},

Non-monetary iiems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as al the dates of initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at (air value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Group entitivs

Gains, losses and inancial position of all of the Group’s subsidiaries, joint venturcs and associates (none of which has
the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different {rom the presentation currency
arc transiated into the presentation currency as lollows:

. Assets and liabilitics for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at that reporting date;

- Income and expenses tor cach statement of comprehensive income are wranslated al average exchange rates
{unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect ¢f the ratcs prevailing on the
transaction dales; in which case income and expenses arc translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions),
and

. All resulting cxchange difterences are recognized as a separale component ol other comprehensive income.

Fxchange rates

Weighted average currency exchange rales established by the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange ("KASE™) are used as
official currency exchange rates in the Republic of Kazakhstan.

The following table presents curreney exchange rates to tenge as at December 31:

2014 2013
United States dollar (USD) 182.35 154 .06
Eurc (EUR) 221.97 212.02
Russian rubte {(RUR} 3.17 465
Swiss franc (CHF) 184.64 173.02

As at April 27, 2015 currency cxchange rate of KASE is 185.8 tenge to 1 US dollar,
Id
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

Accounling policies applied in the preparation of these consclidated financial stalements are consislent with those
applied in the preparation of the annual consolidated financial slatements for the year ended December 31, 2013, except
lor certain standards and amendments which are eftective for annual pericds beginning on or aflter January 1, 2014:

The nature and the impact of each new slandard and amendment are described below:

frvestment Entities (Amendments to TFRS 10, IFRS 12 and TAS 27)

These amendments provide an exception to the consolidation requircment tor entities that meet the definition of an
investment entity under IFRS 10 Consofidated Financial Starements and must be applied retrospectively, subject to
certain transition relief. The exception to consolidation requires investment entities (o account for subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss. These amendments have no impact on the Group’s conselidated financial statements, since
none of the entities in the Group qualifies to be an investment entity under IFRS 10.

Offsetting Financial dssets and Financial Liabilities - Amendments to 145 32

These amendments clarily the meaning of “currentiy has a legally enforceable righi 1o sei-olf™ and (he crileria for non-
simultaneous seltlement mechanisms of clearing houses (o qualify for offselling and is applied retrospectively. These
amendmenls have no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial slatements, since none of the entities in the Group
has any olfsctling arrangements.

Amendments to JAS 36 dssets impairment: Disclosures on Recoverable Amount for Non-financial Assets

These amendmenls remove unintended consequences for disclosures in accordance with IAS 36, associated with
IFRS 13 coming into effect. In addilion, these amendments require disclosure of information on asset’s or
CGU recoverabie amount on which impairment loss was recogaized or reimbursed during the reporting period. The
Ciroup early adopted there disclosure requirements in the annual consolidated financial stalements for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting - Amendments to 145 39

These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge sccounting when novation of a derivative designated as a
hedping instrument meets certain criteria and retrospective application is required. These amendments have no impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial slatements as the Group has nol novaled its derivatives during the current or prior
periods,

IFRIC 21 Levies

IFRIC 21 fevies is elfective for annual periods beginning on or afler January 1. 2014 and is applied retrospectively. 1tis
applicable 10 all levies imposed by governments under legislation. other than outflows that are within the scope of other
standards {e.g.. IAS 12 fncome Tuxes) and {ines or other penaities lor breaches of legislation. The interpretation clarifies
that an entity recognises a liability for & levy no earlier than when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the
relevant legislation, ocecurs. 1t also clarifies that a tevy liability is accrued progressively onty il the activity that triggers
paymenl occurs over a period of time, in accordance with the relevant tegislation, For'a levy that is triggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold. no liability is recognised before the specified minimum thresheld is reached. This
inlerpretation has no impact on the Group' consolidated (inancial stalements as it has applied the recognition principles
under 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent {.iabifities and Contingent Assets consistent with the requirernents of 1FRIC 21 in
prior years,

Standards issued but not yet effective

‘The standards and interpretations that are issued, bul not yet effective, up to the date ol issuance of the Group’s
consolidated financial stalements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adept these standards, il applicable, when
they become elTective.



“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna™ JSC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNITFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective {confinued)

RS 8 Financial lnstruments

In July 2014, the IASB issucd the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments whicli reflects 21l phases of the
financial instruments project and replaces 1AS 39 Finawcial Instruments: Recognition and Measwrement and all
previous versions of [FRS 9. The slandard iniroduces new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment, and hedge accounting. 1FRS ¢ is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with
carly application permitied. Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is not compulsory. Early
application of previcus versiens of IFRS 9 {2009, 2010 and 2013) is permitted if the date of initial application is before
February 1, 2013, The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 9 and plans to adopt the new standard an the
required cffective date.

Amendments to 145 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

IAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when accounting for defined benefit
plans. Where the contributions are linked to service, they should be attributed to periods of service as a negative benefit.
These amendments elarify that, if the amount of the contributions is independent of the number of years of service, an
entity is permitted Lo recognise such contribulions as a reduction in the service coslt in the period in which the service is
rendered, instead of allocaiing the contributions to the perieds of service. This amendment is effective lor annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. It is not expected that this amendment would be relevant (o the Group’s
consolidated [linancial statements, since none of the entitics within the Group has delined benelit plans with
conlributions from employees or third parlics.

Annual improvements 2610-2012 Cycle

These improvements are clfective from Suly 1, 2014 and are not expecied 10 have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated Meancial statements. They include:

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment

This improvement is applied prospectively and elurifies various issues relating to the delinitions of performance and
service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:

. A performance condilion musl contain a service condition;

. A performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service,

. A performance targel nay relale Lo the operations or activities ol an entity. or Lo those of another entity in the
same group;

. A performance condition may be a market or non-murkel condition:

. If the counterparty, regardless of the reason. ccases to provide service during the vesting period, the service

condilion is not satis{ied.

RS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that all contingent consideration arrangements classificd as
liabilitics {or assels) arising from a business combination should be subseguently measured at fair value through profil
or loss whether or net they Iz within the scope of IFRS 9 {or {AS 39, us applicable).

FAS 16 Propersy, Plait and Equipment and 115 38 Intangible Assety

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that the asset may be revalued by
reference 1o observable data on either the gross or the net carrying amount. In addition, the accumulated depreciation or
amortisalion is the difference between the gross and carrying amounts of the asset.

I48 24 Related Paryy Disclosures

The amendment is applied retrospeetively and clarifics that a management entily (an entity that provides key
management personnel services} is a related party subject W the related party disclosures. In addilion, an entity that uses
# managemenl entily is required to disclose the expenses incufred lor management services,

12
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
Annaal improvements 20010-2012 Cycle (continued)

IFRS 8 Operating Segments
The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify (hat:

. An entily must disclose the judgements made by management in applying the aggregation crileria in
paragraph 12 of [FRS 8, including a brief’ description of operating segments thai have been aggregated and the
economic characteristics (e.g.. sales and gross margins) used to assess whether the segments are “similar’;

. The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is
reported o the chiel operating decision maker, similar to the required disclosure lor segment liabilities.

Amizueal improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

These improvements are elfective from July 1, 2014 and are not expected to have & material impact on the Group's
consclidated lnancial statements. They inctude:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations
The amendtnent is applied prospectively and clarifies for the scope exceptions within IFRS 3 that:
. foirl arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of IFRS 3;

. This scope exception applies only o the accounting in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measwrement

The amendment is apptied prospectively and ctarifics that the portiolio exceplion in IFRS 13 can be applied not onty 1o
francial assets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts within the scope ol [FRS 9 (or 1AS 39, as applicabie).

IAS 40 Invesiment Property

The description of ancillary services in 1AS 40 dilferentiates between investment property and owner-occupicd properly
{Le., property. plant and equipment). The amendment is applicd prospectively and clarifies that 1FRS 3. and not the
description of ancillary services in 1AS 40, is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of an asset or business
combination.

fFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising Irom conlracts
with customers, Under 1FRS 135 revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expeets to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 5 provide a
more structured approach Lo measuring and recognising revenue.

The new revenue standard is applicable to ail entities and will supersede atl current revenue recognition requirements
under 1FRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or afler
January L, 2017 with carly adoption permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact of [FRS 15 and plans to
adopt the new standard on the required effective dale.

Amendnrents 1o 1FRS T Joint Arvangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that a juint operator accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint
operation, in which the activily of the joint operalion constitules a business must apply the relevant IFRS 3 principles
for business combinations accounting, The amendments also clarity that a previously held interest in a joint operation is
net remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is retained, In
addition, a scope exclusion has been added (0 IFRS 11 to specify thal the amendments do not apply when the parties
sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, arc under common control of the same ultimate controlling party.
‘The amendments apply to beth the acquisition of (he initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any
additional intcresis in the same joinl operation and are prospectively eflective for annual periods beginning on or afler
fanuary 1. 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements,

t3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continned)
Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
Annud improvements 2011-2013 Cycle (continned)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments clarify the principle in 1AS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue refiects a patiern of economie benefits thal are
generated from operating a business (of which the assct is part) rather than the economic benelits that arc consumed
through use of the assel. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and
equipment and may only be used in very limited circumsiances 1o amortise intangible assels. The amendments are
effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2016. with early adoption permitted. Thest
amendments arc not expected 1o have any impact on the Group®s consolidated financial statements given that the Group
has not used a revenue-bhased method to depreciate its non-current assets.

Annual improvements 2012-2014 Cycle

in the 2012-2014 anhual improvements cycle, the IASB issucd five smendments (e four standards, summaries of which
are provided below. The changes are effective January 1. 2016, Earlier application is permitted and must be disclosed,
The Group did not early adopt any of these smendments.

{FRS 3 Non-Current Assels Held for Sale and Discoriinued

Assets (or disposal groups) arc generally disposed of either through sale or distribution to owners. The amendment
clarifies that changing from one of these disposal methods to the other would not be considered 2 new plan of disposal,
rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is. therefore, no interruption of the application of the requirements
in [FRS 5. The amendment must be applied prospectively.

RS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that includés a fee can constitute conlinuing involvement in a
financial assel. An entily must assess the nature of the [ee and the arrangement against the guidance for continuing
involvement in IFRS 7.B30 and 1FRS 7.42C in order 10 assess whether the disclosures are required,

The dssessment of which servicing contractls constitute continuing involvement must be done retrospectively. However,
the required disclosures wouid nol need to be provided for any period beginning belore the annual period in which the
enlily first applies the amendments.

The amendment clarifies that the offsetling disclosurc requirements do nol apply to condensed interim financial
slatements, unless such disclosures provide a significant updale 1o the information reported in the most recent annual
repoerl. The amendment must be applied retrospectively.

{48 19 Emplovee Benefits Discount rate: regional market issue

The amendment clarifics that markel depth of high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the curreney in which
the obligation is denominated. rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for
high quatity corporate bonds in that currency. government bond rates must be used. The amendment must be applicd
prospectively.

148 34 fterim Financial

The amendment clarifies that the required interim disclosures must either be in the interim linancial statements or
incorporated by cross-reference between the inferim financial slalements and wherever they are included within the
interim [tnancial report {e.g., in the management commentary or risk report).

The other information within the interim {inaneial reporl must be available 10 users on the same terms as the interim
[francial statements and 4t the same time, The amendment must be applied retrospectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continucd)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial slatemenis comprise the {inancial statements of the Fund and its conirolled subsidiarics
(Note 36).

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities controtled by the Group. Contrel is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its invelvement with the invesiee and has the ability to alfect those returns throeugh its power over
the investee. Specifically. the Group controls an investec if and only if the Greup has:

. Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
invesiee):

- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee. and;

. The ability te use its power over the invesiee lo atfect its returns,

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar righis of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

. The contractual arrangement will: the other vote holders of the investee;
. Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
. The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or nol it controts an investee if [acts and circumstances indicate that there are changes 1o
one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control over the subsidiary. Assets, liabililies, revenue and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income Irom the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Except lor acquisition in lransactions between entities under common control, subsidiaries are consolidated fram the
date when control is obtained by the Group and are de-consolidated from the dale when control ceases. Al the
acquisition of the subsidiary, acquisition cost is distributed belween assets and liabilities based on their fair valuc as at
the dule of acquisition. Financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as those of
the Fund, using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-greup balances and lransactions. including unvealized gains resulling from intra-group transactions are
climinaled in full, Unrcalized losses are eliminated in (he same manner as unrealized gains, except that they are
eliminated to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment,

Non-controtling interest represents a portion of equily in subsidiarics, which is notl bwned by the Group. and is recorded
separately in cquity in the consolidaled balance sheel separately from the equily altributable to the Parent. Losses within
a subsidiary are atiributed to the non-controtling interest even if that results in its delicit balance,

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted lor as an equity transaction. 17
the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

. Derecognises the assels {including goodwill} and liabilitics of the subsidiary;

. Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

. Derccognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity:

. Recognises the fair value of the consideration received:

. Recognises the {air value ol any investiment relained;

. Recognises any surplus or delieil in profit or loss;

. Reclassifics the Parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCL to profil or less or retzined carnings.

as appropriate, a8 would be required il the Group had divectly disposed of the related assets or liabilities,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Consolidation {continued)

Investiment I joint ventures and associates

The Group has interests in joint ventures which are jointly controlled entities, whereby the venturers have a contractual
arrangement that establishes joint control over the economic activities of the entities. Also, the Group has inierests in
associates, in which it exercises significant influence over the economic activities of the entities. The Group's
investment ir its joint ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity method.

Under Lhe equity method, investment in joint venturefassociate is catried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost plus
post scquisition changes in the Group’s share of net asscts of the joinl venlure/associate. Goodwill relating to z joint
venture/asseciate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortised nor individually tested
for impairment.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income reflecls the share of the results of operations of the joint
venture/associalc. Where there has been a change in net assets recognized directly in the equity of the joint
venture/associale, the Group recognises its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and joint
venture/associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the joint venlure/associate,

The share in profit of jeinl venturesfassociates is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, This is the prolil attributablce to equity helders of the joint venture/associate and theretore is profit after tax and
non-controlling interest in the subsidiarics of the joint ventures/associates.

Financial statements of the joint venture/associate are prepaved for the same reporting period as those of the Parent.
Where necessary, adjustments are made fo bring their accounting poticies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method. the Group determines whether i is necessary 1o recognise an additional
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its jeint venluresfassociales. The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the joinl venture / associate is impaired. [f this is the case
the Group calcuiates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of investment in the
joint venture/asseciate and its carrying amount and recognises impairment loss in the consofidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Upon loss of jeint contrel over the jeint venture and significant influence over associate, the Group measures and
recogniscs any retaining investment at #s fair value. Any dilference between the carrying amount of the investiment in
the joint venture/associate upon loss of joint control / significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment
and procecds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted [or using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as an
aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controiling interest in
the acquiree cither at falr value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assels. Acquisilion cosis
incurred are expensed and included in general and administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the [inancial assets acquired and liabilities assumed lor appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes an analysis of 1he need of separation ol embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquirce.

It the business combination 1s achieved in stages, equity interest previously held by the Group in the acquiree is
remeasured to [air vatue at the acquisition date through prolit or loss.

Any contingent consideration o be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the acquisilion date.
Subsequent changes 1o the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability will be

recognized in accordance with 1AS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. [ the
contingent consideration is clussified as equity, it should not be remeasured until it is finally sctiled within equity.

16
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is initialty measured at cost being the excess of an aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognized lor nen-controlling interest over the net identifiable assels acquired and labilities assumed by the Group. If
this consideration is lower than the fair value of net asseis of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in
profit or loss,

After initial recognition, the goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment {osses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, (rom the acquisition dale of an entity by the Group,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilitics of the acquiree are assigned Lo those units,

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operations disposed off s included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumslanee is measured based
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the pertion of the cash-generaling unit retained.

Acquisition of subsidiaries from parfies under common cotrol

Acquisition of subsidiaries {rom parties under common control (entities under the Government's control) is accounted
for using the pooling of interest method.

Asscts and liabilitios of the subsidiary trunsferred vnder common contrel are recorded in these consolidated financial
slatements at the catrying amounts of the transferring entity (the “Predecessor™) at he date of the transfer. Related
goodwill, if any, inherenl in the Predecessor's original acquisition is also recorded in these consclidated linancial
statements, Any difference between the total book value of net assets, including the Predecessor's goodwill, and the
consideration paid is accounted for in these consolidated financial statements as an adjustment 1o equily.

These consolidated financial statements are presented as if the subsidiary had been acquired by the Group on the date it
was originally acquired by the Predecessor.

Chenge in ownership interests in subsidiaries

In transactions where part of the interest in exisling subsidiary is either sold or acquired, but control is retained, the
differences between the carrying amounis of net assets attribulable to interests in subsidiaries acquired or disposed and
the consideration given or received for such increascs or decreases are charged or credited Lo retained eamings.

Assets classified as held for sale and discontinued operations

Assets-and disposal groups classified as held for sale arc measured at the lower of carrying amount and [air value less
costs to sell. Assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale il their carrying amounts will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through the continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available lor immediate sale in its present condition. Management
must be commitied to the sale, which should be expected 10 qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year
Trom the date of classification.

In the consclidated statement of comprehensive income for the reporting peried. and for the prior year comparable
periad. incontes and expenses from disconlinued operations are reported separately from normal income and expenses,
even when the Group retaing a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after sale. The resulting prefil or toss (net of
tax} is reported separately in Lthe consolidated slatement of comprehensive income.

Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Exploration and development assets on mineral and hydrocarbon reseurces {oil and gas and mining assets)

Expenditures for acquisition of subsurface wuse rights

Expenditures for acquisition of subsurface use rights (exploration and production} comprise signalure bonuses,
histerical costs, obligatory expenditures for ecological and social programs and are capitalized within intangible asscts
as subsurface use rights at exploration and evaluation phase,

Expenditures for acquisition of subsurface use rights are accounted for on a field-by-fietd basis. Fach field is tested for
impairment on an annual basis. If no future activity is planned, the remaining balance of the acquisition costs is written
off. Starling from the comntercial production on lields subsurfzce use rights {remaining costs) shall be {ransierred to the
property, plant and equipment and shall be amortized using unit-of-production method on actual production based on
total proved reserves.

Exploration and evaliwation expenditures (construction in progress)

Exploration and evaluation expenditures include geological and geophysical costs; costs dircetly related to exploration
drilling; stripping activities; overhead and other expenscs on exploration and evaluation, which could be related to a
certain ficld, These costs include employee remuneration, materials and fuel used, rig costs and payments made to
contractors. Except for geological and geophysical costs, exploration and evaluation expenditures are capitalized within
properly, plant and cquipment as construction-in-progress. accounted for by subsurface use contracts and arc not
amortized. 1{ mineral or hydrocarbon resources are not found. this could be an indication of impairment. All capitalized
costs are subject 1o technical, commercial and management review af teast once a year (o confirm the continued intent
to develop or otherwise extract value from the discovery. When this is no longer the case, the costs are written ofT, IT
mineral or hydroearben resources are determined and development is sanctioned, relevant cosls are then transferred 1o
oil and gas or mining assets subclasses.

Development and production expenditures foil and gos and mining assets)

Development and production expenditures comprise previously capitalized (and reclassified in commencement of
production) expenditures for acquisition of subsurface use rights and exploration and evaluation costs; diilling of
preducing wells regardless of the drilling results; construction of landfitls; development of surface technological
facilitics required for production, collection and preparation of hydrocarbons and mineral resources at fields; other costs
incurred in the process of organization of commercial production at fields; capitalized discounted costs for wells and
mings abandonment and site resloration. Development and production expenditures are capitalized within property,
ptant and equipment (oil and gas and mining assels). and are accounted for on a field-by-field basis,

Depreciation of oif and gas and mining assets (within property, plant and equipment and intangible assets)

Oil and gas and mining assets are depreciated using a unit-of-production method based on actual production from
commencement of commercial production at fields. Certain oil and gas and mining assels (surlzce facilittes and
equipment) with useful lives significantly diflering from those of the fields are depreciated on u straight-line basis over
their useful tives. The cost of acquisition of subsurlace use rights including discounted decommissioning costs are
depreciated over total proved reserves. The other field development costs are amortized over proved developed
reserves.

Property, plant and equipment (other than oil and gas and mining assets)

On initial recogeition, property, plant and equipment is measured at cost. Subsequently, property, plant and equipment
are slaled at cost less accumulated deprecialion, depletion and impairment. The cost of sell~construcled assels includes
the cost of materials, direct labour and an approptiate proporiion of production overheads. Property, plamt and
equipment, other than oil and gas assets, principally comprise the following classes of assets. which are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the expected useful lives:

Pipelines and refinery assets 4-100 years
Buildings and premises 5-100 years
Raitway tracks and infrastructure 10-80 years
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 2-50 years
Other 3-40 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plaat and equipment (other than oil and gas and mining assets) {continued)

When items of property, plant and cquipment are subject 10 major inspection, the cost is recognized in the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment as a reptacement ol component if the recognition eriteria set out in |AS 16 are
satis{icd.

An item of property, plant and cquipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fislure economic benefits are
expecled [rem its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of an asset {calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the reporting
period the asset is derecognised.

Residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if’ appropriate. at each financial
year end.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is fair value as at the date of acqaisition. Follawing initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Internally generated intangible
agsets, excluding capitalised development costs. are not capitalised and expenditure is charged against profils in the year
in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful lives of intangible asscis are assessed 1o be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible asscts with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. ‘The amorlisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite uscful life are reviewed at least al each financial year-end, Changes in the expected
useful life or (he expected paltern of consumption of lulure cconomic benefits embodied in the intangible asset is
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or miethod, as appropriate, and trealed as changes in wccounting
estimates. The amortisatica expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the expense category consisient with the function of the intangibie asset.

intungible assets with the finite uselul life principally comprise the following classes of asscts which are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives:

Licenses 2-20 years
Software 2-10 years
Other 2-20 years

Indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized, but lested for impairment annually or whenever there are
indications of impairment and, il necessary, wrilten down (o the recoverable amount,

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses asscts or groups of assets (or impairment whenever events or changes in citcumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an assel may nol be recoverable, Individual assets are grouped for impairment assessment
purposes al the fowest level at which there are identifiable cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows of
other groups of assets. If any such indication of impairment exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset group
is required, the Group makes an estimate of its recoverable amount.

An assel group’s recoverable amount is higher of its fair value less costs (o sell and its value in use. Where the carrying
amount of an asset group exceeds ils recoverable amount, the asset groun is considered impaired and a provision is
made L0 reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in usc, the estimated Tulure cash (ows are
adjusted for the risks specific to the asset group and are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money. An asscssment is made al each reporting dale as (o
whether there I8 any indication that previously recognized impainment provision may no longer exist or may have
decreased. 11 such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment provision
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount sinee the
last impairment provision was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is inereased to ils
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that wouid have been determined. net of
depreciation, had no impairment provision been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recegnized in
profits and losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLECIES {continued)

Impairment of non-financiat assets {continued)

After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in [uture periods to allocate the gssel’s revised carrying
amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

The foliowing process is applied in assessing impairment ol goodwitl:

“I'he Group assesses whether there are any indicators thal goodwill is impaired at each reporting daie. Goodwill is tested
for impairment, annually and when circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may be impaired,

[Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, Lo which the
goodwill relales. Where the recoverable ameunt of the cash-generating units is less than their carrying amount an
impairment loss is recognized. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Financial assets

The Group’s investments are classified as either financial assets al fair value (hrough profit or loss, Joans and
receivables, held-lo-maturity investments, and available-lor-sale investments, as appropriale. When invesiments are
recognized initiafly, they arc measured at fair value plus, in the case of investments not et fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group determines the classification of its {inancial assels at the time of
initial recognition. All purchases and sales of invesiments are recognized on the setilement date, which is the date that
the investment is delivered to or by the Group.

Non-derivative financial asscts with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturily when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Loans and receivables are nen-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active markel. Such assets are carried al amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit and losses when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.

Securities are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or less if they are sequired for Lthe purpose of
selting in the near term. Derivatives are also classified as (inancial assets at fair value through profit or loss unless they
are designated as effcctive hedging instruments. Gains and losses on financial asscts at fair value through profil or loss
are recogniscd in the consolidated statement ol comprehensive income.

Financial assels can be classified as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition if il increases Lhe
importance of the information provided. since such classification eliminates or significantly reduces inconsistency of
cvaluation or recognition, which otherwise would arise from revaluation of assets or liabilitics or from recognition of
profits or losses on them on a diflerent basis.

Available-lor-sale investmenis are those non-derivative {inancial assets that are designaied as available-for-sale or are
not classified in any ol the three preceding categories.

Alter initial recognition available-lor-sale investments are measured at fair value with gains or losses being recognized
as a separale component of equity until the investment is derecognized or until the investment is determined to be
impaired. at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equily is included in profits and losses.
Reversals of impairment losses in respect of equity instruments are not recognized in profits and losses, Impairment
losses in respect of debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss if the increase in fair value of the instrument can
be objectively related (e an event occurring afler the impairment loss was recognized.

The fair value of investments that are actively lraded in organiséd linancial markets is determined by reference 1o
quoted market bid prices at the close of business on (he reporting date. For investments where there is no active market,
fair value s determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions: reference to the current market value ol another instrument, which is substantiaily the same; discounted
cash lTow analysis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

[Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carvied at amortized cost

Il there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of eslimated future
cash Mows (excluding fulure expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the elfective intercst rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced through use of an allowance acecunt. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in profils and Josses,

[f, in & subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can bhe refated objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversat of an impairment loss is recognized in profits and losses to the exlent that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed ils amortized cost al the reversal date.

In relation te trade accounts receivable, an allowance for doubtful debts is made when there is ohjective evidence (such
as the probabilily of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Group will not be able to
collect all of the amounts due under the original terms ol the invoice. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced
through use of an atlowance account. fmpaired debts are derecognized when they are assessed as uncollectible,

Available-for-sale financial investments

if there is objective evidence that the cost may not be recovered, an available-for-sale equity securily is considered to be
impaired. Objeclive evidenee that the cost may nol be recovered, in addition to qualitative impairment criteria, includes
& significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below cost.

If an available-for-sale cquity security is impaired, any further declines in the fair value al subsequent reporting, dates
are recognized as impairments. Therefore, at each reporting period, lor an cquily security that was determined to be
impaired, additional impairments are recognized for the difference between the fair valuc and the original cost basis,
less any previously recognized impairment.

Derivative financial instruments

In the course ol its ordinary activity the Group operates with different derivative financial instruments, including
[utures, forwards, swaps and options at currency and capilal markers. crude oil forward and swap contracls 1o hedge its
risks associated with commedity prices fluctuations. Such derivative financial instraments are held primarily for trading
purposes, are initially recognized according to recognition pelicies of financial instruments and are subsequently
measured at fair vatue. Fair value is determined based on registered market quotations and pricing models that take into
account spol price and strike price of the respective instruments and other factors, Derivative financial instruments are
accounted for as an asset {unrealised gain). when [air value is posilive and as liability (unrealised loss), when [air value
is negative. Gains and losses [rom operations with these instruments are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprchensive income.

Invenfories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value. whichever is lower. Costs comprise charges incurred in bringing
inventory to its present location and condition. Nel realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimaled costs of completion and estimated costs necessary Lo sell. The same cost formula is used
for all inventorics having a similar nature and use. [nventorics of oil and gas and energy operaling segments are valued
on a [irst-in first-out {~F1F0™) basis. All other inventories are valued on the weighted-average cost basts,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand deposits, short-term and highly liquid investments with
original malurily of not more than 3 (threc) months readily convertible 1o known amounts of cash and subject to
insignilicant risk of change in value,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities

Loans and borrawings

Borrowings are recognized initially at [air value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost; any dilference between the proceeds (nel of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the elfective
interest method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right o defer
settlement of the liabilily for at least [2 {twelve) months after the reporting date.

Issucd financial instraments or their components are classified as borrewings, where the substance of the contractual
arrangement results in the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another {inancial assel, or 1o satisfy the
obligation other than by the exchange of a tixed amount of cash or another finaneial asset for a fixed number of own
cquity instruments. Such instruments include amounts due to the Government, amounis due to credit institutions, which
are Initially recognized at [air value of amounts obtained less costs directly attributable to (he transaction. Subsequently
amounts received are recognized al amortized cost.

Borrowing costs that are dircetly attributable to the acquisilion, construction or production of a qualifying long-term
assel are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense when incurred,

Convertibie debt instruments

The component of the convertible debt instrument that exhibits charactérisiics of a liability is recognized as a liability in
the conseclidated balance sheet, net of transaction costs. The fair value of the liability component is determined using a
market rale for an equivalenl non-convertible bond; and this amount is classified as a (inancial liability measured at
amortized cost until it is extingvished on conversion or redemption.

Options on remaining non-controdling interest avising on business combination

[f, as a part of a business combination, the Group beeomes a party to 2 pul-option on remaining non-controlling interest
in the acquired business, the Group assesses whether being a party Lo such option gives il aceess (o benefits and risks
associated with ownership of such non-controlling interést,

When it is determined that the put-option on the remaining shares gives access o benelits and risks of share ownership,
the business combination is accounted for on the basis thal the underlying shares subject o the pul option have been
acquired. Fair value of the liabilily Lo the shareholders of non-controiling interest under the put option is recognized as a
part of the cost ol the business combination. Any dilference between that cost, and the share of the net assels that would
otherwise have been regarded as being atiribulable to the non-controlling interest. is reflecled within goedwill. Any
dividends subsequently declared and paid 10 such non-contrelling interest prior o the excreisc of the option are charged
directly to profits and losses.

The financial liability is subsequently measured in accordance with the requirements of 1A8 39. Changes in the fair
valuc of a financial lisbility as well as any finance charges are recorded directly in the consolidated statcment of
comprehensive income.

Options on purchased interest arising on acquisition of investments in associates and available-for-sale investments

[1. while acquiring investments, the Fund issucs a call option to a third party on acquired interest in the business, the
Fund assesses whether being a parly Lo such option gives a third parly access to benefits and risks associated with
ownership of such interest

Il a cali~option does not provide a third parly wilh access to benefit and risk ol ownership of an interest, a call option is
nol accounted for the purposes of determination of Fuad’s significant inflluence.

Fair vatue of the liability for the Fund under the option is recognized as a parl of acquired investments. The financial
liability is subsequently measured in accordance with the requirements of 1AS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition
and Measwrement. Changes in the fair value of a lnancial liability as well as any gain or loss related o the realization
of these options are recorded dircelly in the consolidated stalement of comprehensive income,

Trade and ather payables

Liabilitics lor trade and olher accounis payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid
in the luture Tor goods and services received, whether or not biiled to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilitics

Financial assets

A financial assel (or, where applicable a parl of a financial -assel or part of a group of similar financial assels) is
derecognized in the consolidaled balance sheel when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

. the Group retains the right o receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass through™ arrangement; or

. the Group has teanslerred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
subsiantially all the risks and rewards of the assel. or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantiaily all the
risks and rewards of the asset, bul has transferred control of the asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized in the consolidaled balance sheet when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of financial instrumeants

Iinancial assets and financial liabilitics arc ofsct and the net amount reported in the consotidated balance sheet if, and
only il

. Therc is a currently enforceable Iegal right o offset the recognized amounts;

. There is an intention 1o settle on a net basis, or to realise Lhe assels and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that arc raded in active markets at cach reporling date is determined by reference
o quoted marketl prices or dealer price quolations (bid price for long positions and ask price for shorl positions),
without any deduction lor transaction costs.

For linancial instrumcenis not traded in an active markel, the fair value is delermined using appropriate valuation
techaiques. Such techniques may include:

. Using recent arm’s {ength markel transactions;
. Relerence to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantiafly the same;
. A discounted cash [Tow analysis or other valuation models.

An analysis of fair values of linancial instruments and lurther details as o how they are measured are provided in Note 39,
Leases

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor relains substantially afl the risks and bencfits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases. Operating leasc payments arc recognized as an expense in the consolidated stalement of
comprehensive income on a straighi-line basis over the lease term.

Finance feases

The Greup reeognises [inance leases as assets and liabilitics ini the consolidated balance shecl at amounts equal al the
commencement of the lease lerm to Lhe fair value of the leased property or, I lower. al the présent value of the
minimum lease paymerits. In caleulating the present value of minimum lease payments the discount factor used is the
inlcrest rate implicit in the lease, when it is practicable 1o determine it; otherwise. the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate is used. Initial dircet costs incurred are included as part of the assel.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Finance leases (continned)

Lease paymenis are apportioned between the finance cost and the reduction of the outstanding liability, The finance cost
is allocated to reporting periods during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rale of interest on the
remaining balance of the liabitity [or cach period.

A finance lease gives rise (o depreciation expense for the asset as well as a finance cost for cach reporting period, The
depreciation policy for leased assels is consistent with that for depreciable assels that are owned.

Provisions

Assel retirement obligation (decommissioning)

Provision for decommissioning is recognized in full, on a discounted cash flow basis, when the Group has an obligation
to dismantle and remove a lacility or an item of property, plant and eguipment and (o restore the site on which it is
located, and when a reasonable estimale of that provision can be made.

The amount recognized is the present value of the estimated future expenditure determined in accordance with local
conditions and requirements. A corresponding item of property, plani and equipment in the amount equivalent lo the
provision is also recognized. This asset is subsequenily depreciated as part of the capilal costs of the production and
Lransportation facilities in accordance with respective depreciation method.

Changes in the measurement of an existing decommissioning provision that result from changes in the estimated timing
or amount of Lthe outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits required 1o seltle the obligation, or change in the
discount rale, is accounied for so that:

(a)  changes in the provision are added Lo, or deducied from, the carrying amount of the related assel in the current
period;

(b)  the amount deducted from the cost of the asset shall not cxceed its carrying amounl. [f a deerease in the
provision exceeds the carrying amount of the assel. the excess is recognized immediately in the consolidated
slalement of comprehensive income; and

{c) if the adiustment results in an addition Lo the cosl of an assel, the Group considers whether this is an indication
that the new carrying amount of the asset may nol be [ully recoverable. Ifit is such an indication, the Group tests
the asset for impairment by estimating its recoverable amount, and accounts for any impairment loss, in
accordance with |AS 36.

Alfowance for bank letters of credit and grarantees

in the ordinary course of business. the Group issues linancial guarantecs, consisting of letiers ol credit, guarantees and
acceplonees. Financial guaranices are initially recognized in the consolidated financial statements al their fair value. in
*Other liabilities® line, at the premium received. Subsequent W initial recognition. the Group's liability under each
guarantee contract is measured at the higher of the amortised premium and the best estimate of expenditure required o
setlle any financial obligation arising as a result of the guarantece.

Any increase in (he liability relating lo {inancial guarantees arrangements is taken to the consolidaled statement of
comprchensive income. The premium received is recognized in the profits and losses on a straipht-line basis over the
life of the guarantec,

Other provisions

Provisions are recognized in the consolidated linancial statements when the Group has & present obligation (legal or
constructive} as a result ol a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be
required 10 settle the ebligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, Where the Group
expects a provision o be reimbursed, lor example under an insurance contract, the reimbursenicnt is recognized as a
sepatate assel bul only when the reimbursement is virtwally certain,

Il the effect of the lime value ol money is material. provisions are determined by discounting the expected Tuture cash
flows at a pre-lax rate that refleets current market assessments of the time vatue of money and. where appropriate. the
risks specific 1o the liability, Where discounting is used. the increase in the provision due lo the passage of time is
recognized as a [inance cost.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Empioyee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group withholds 10% from the salary of its employecs limited to certain annual amounts as the employecs'
contribution to Lheir designated pension funds. Under the legislation, employees are responsible for their retirement
benefits and the Group has no present or fulure obligation 1o lurther compensate its employees upon their relirement.

Social tax

The Group pays social tax according to the current statutory requirements ol the Republic of Kazakhstan. Social tax is
expensed as incurred.

Defined benefit plan

1n accordance with the Collective Agreements signed with trade unions and other benefit regulations, some subsidiaries
of the Group provide certain benelfiis to its employees upon their retirement (*Defined Benefit Plan™).

The Group recognises actuarial gains and losses arising from the reassessment of the employee benefit liability in the
period they are identified in profits and losses and recognises benefit costs and obligations based on estimates
determined in accordance with 1AS 19 Emplavee benefits.

The obligation and cost of benefits under the defined benefit plan are determined using the projected unit credit methad,
“I'his method considers each year of service as giving rise 1o an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each
unit separately o build up the final obligation. The cost of providing benelits is charged to profit and loss, so as to
altribute the total benetil cost over the service lives of employees in accordance with the benefil formula of the defined
benefit plan. This ebligation is measured at the present value of eslimated future cash {lows using a discount rate thal is
similar 1o the interest on government bonds where the currency and terms of these bonds are consislent with the
currency and eslimated terms of the defined benefit plan obligation.

The defined benefit plan is unfunded.
Equity

Share capital

Common shares are classilied as equity. External costs dircctly attributable to the issue ol new shares, other than on a
business combination, are shown as a deduction from the proceeds in equity. Any excess or deficiency of the [air value
of consideration received over the par value ol shares issued is recognized as an increase or decrease in the retained
carnings.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet within equity, separalely from the equity
attributable to the equily holders of the Parent. Losses of subsidiaries are altributed to the nen-controlling inlerest even
i this results in its deficit balance.

Dividends

Dividends arc recognized as a lability and deducted rom equity at the reporting date only if (hey are declared before or
on the reporting date, Dividends are disclosed in the consolidaled linancial statements when they are proposed before
the reporling date or proposed or declared after the reporting date bul before the consolidated linancial statements are
authorised for issue,

Share based payients

Seme employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions. whereby Lhese
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments of a subsidiary in which they are cmployed (*equity-
settled transactions’).

The cosl of equity-sctiled transactions with employees is measured by reference 1o the [air value of the instruments on
the date that they are granted. The fair value is determined using an appropriale pricing model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Equity (continued)

Share based payments {continned)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, togethier with a corresponding increase in other capital rescrves,
aver a period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfiiled, ending on the dale on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (fthe vesting dale’™). The cumwplative expense recoghized for such
transactions al each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which Lhe vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best cstimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The consolidated statement of

comprehensive income charge or credit (or a period represents Lhe movement in cumulative expense recognized as at

the beginning and end of that period.
Ne expense is recognized for awards on equity instruments that do not ultimalely vest.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense tecognized is the expense as if the
terms had not been medified. An additional expense is recognized for any modification. which increases the total [afr
value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
medification.

Where an equily-settted award is cancelled. it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation. and any expense
not yel recognized for the award is recognized immediately. However, il 2 new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and designaled as a replacement award on the dale that it is granted. the cancelled and new awards are trealed as
if'they were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benelits will flow to the Group and ihe amount of revenue
can be reliably measured.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of erude ofl, refined preducts, gas. uranium products, refined gold. and other poods is recognized
when delivery has taken ptace and risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed Lo the buyer.

Rendering of services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognized when the services have been performed.

In respect of services related to transportation, revenue is recognmized with relerence to the stage of completion of the
transportation al the reporting date provided that the stage of completion of transportation and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably. Prepayments received rom customers relating to transporlation services that have not been
starled yet are recognized upon receipt as “advances received from customers”. Advances reecived from customers
approximating the cstimated future revenues relaling to initiated deliveries are transferred 1o deferred income under the
“Other current liabilities™ line in the consolidated balance sheet. Deferred income is credited 1o revenue, as the service
is provided. Sales of air transportation tickets that result in award credits for custoniers, under the customer loyalty
program. are accounted for as multiple clements of revenuc transactions al the fair value allocated between the scrvices
provided and {he award credits granted. The consideration allocated Lo the award credits is measured by relerence Lo
their lair value — the amount for which the award credits could be sold separately. Such consideration is nol recognized
as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction — but is deferred and recognized as revenue when the award credits
are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have been futfilled.

Establishment of tariffs

A number of subsidiaries of the Group are subject to regulation by the Committee for regulation of natural monopolics
of the Republic of Kazakhstan ("CRNM™. This commitlee is responsible for approval of the methodelogy for tarilf
calculation and tarifl rates, under which the subsidiaries derive a significant part of their revenues.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continted)

Government grants

Due to the fact that the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan is a the sole sharcholder of the Fund, the Group
analyses all transaclions with the Government to assess its role: where the Government acts primarily in its capacity of
the Shareholder or where it acts as a regulalor. IT it is determined that in a specific transaction the Government acts in
capacily of the Sharcholder any gains or losses incurred by the Group as a iesult of such transaction are reflected
directly in equity as either a contribution or withdrawat of equily by the Shareholder.

[[ it is detcrmined that in 2 specific ransaction the Government does not acl in capacity of the Shareholder such
transactions are accounted for using provisions of LAS 20 Accounting for Governmient Grants and Disclosure of
Government dssistance. In such circumstances, government grants are recognized at their fair vatue where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with, When the grant
relates Lo an expense item, it is recognized as income over the period necessary to match the grant on a sysiematic basis
to the costs that it Is intended Lo compensate, Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the consolidated statement ol comprehensive income over Lhe expected useful life of
the relevant asset by egnal annual instalments. Grants related to income are presented separately in the consolidaled
statement of comprehensive income within revenues from operating activitics,

Expense recognition

Expenses arc recopnized as incurred and are reporled in the consolidated {inancial statements in the period to which
they retale on the acerual basis.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current and deferred tax, Income 1ax is recognized in the profits and losses, except o
the extent that it relates to items charged or credited o other comprehensive income or equity, in which case il is
rcecognized in other comprehensive income. Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year and any adjusiment to lax payable in respect of previous. years.

Excess profit tax (EPT} is treated as an income tax and forms part of incomce tax expense. In accordance with the
subsurface use contracts, the Group accrues and pays EPT, al specitied rates ol alter tax profit which has been adjusted
for specilic deductions in accordance with the applicable subsurface use contracts, when certain internal rates of return
are exceceded. The inlernal rate of return is calculated based on the cash flows from cach subsurface use contract,
adjusted for the national inflation rate. Deferred tax is calculated with respect to both corporate income tax (CI7TY and
EPT. Delerred EPT is calculated on temporary difTerences [or assets allocated to subsurface use contracts use al the
expected rate of EPT to be paid under the contraet. Deferred tax is provided using the balance shecl method, providing
for temporary differences between the earrving amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes, The following temporary differences are not provided for:

. lhe initial recognition of an assel or liabilily in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction. affeels neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with Investments in subsidiarics. associates and interests
in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it s
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresceable luture

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rales (hat are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
reatised or the liability is settled based on the tax rates (and tax laws) thal have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recopnized only lo the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assels are reduced Lo the extent that it is no longer probable ihal the
related tax benefit will be realized.

Value added tax (VAT)

Tax suthorilies permil the setilement of sales and purchases VAT on a net basis. VAT receivable represents VAT on
domestic purchases net of VAT on domestic sales. Export sales are zero rated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

Related parties

Related parties include the Group’s Shareholder, key management personnel, associales and enlities in which a
substantial interest in the voting power is owned, directly or indirectly, by the Groups shareholders or key management
personnel.

Contingent linbilities and contingent asscts

Contingent liabilitics are not recognised in the consolidated financial stalements. They are disclosed in the notes to the
conselidated Mnancial statements Mofe 48) unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying cconomic
benefits is remote.

Conlingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Where #n inflow of economic benelils is
probable, they are disclosed in the notes.

Subsequent events

Post-year-end evenis that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date {adjusting cvents) are
reflecied in the censolidated linancial statements. Post-yvear-end events Lhat are not adjusting events are disclosed in the
notes when matertal,

4, SIGNIFECANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management 1o make
cslimates and assumptions that affect the reporled amounts of assets, liabilitics and contingent assets and liabilities at
the reporting date and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and contingent assets and liabitities
during the reporting period. Actual outcomes could differ from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerning the futlure and other key sources of estimation uncerlainty at the reporting date, that
have a signilicant risk ol causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabililies within the next
Tinancial year are discussed below:

Qil and gas reserves

Oil and pas reserves are a material factor in the Group™s computation of depreciation, depletion and amortization
(DD&A™). The Group cstimates its reserves of oil and gas in accordance with the methodology of the Socicty of
Petroleumn Engineers (“SPE”). In estimaling its reserves under SPE methodology. the Group uses long-term planning
prices, which are also used by management for investment decisions regarding development of fields. Using planning
prices for eslimating proved reserves removes the impact of the volatility inherent In using year end spot prices.
Managemenl believes that long-term planning price assumptions are more consistent with the long-term nature of the
upsiream business and provide the most appropriate basis (or estimating oil and gas reserves.

All reserve cstimales involve some degree of uncertainty. The uncertainty depends chiefly on the amount of reliable
geological and engincering data available at the time of the estimate and the interpretation of this data.

The relative degree of uncertainty can be conveyed by placing reserves into one of two principal classifications, either
proved or unproved. Proved reserves are more certain to be recovered than unproved reserves and may be further sub-
classified as developed and undeveloped lo denole progressively increasing uncertainly in their recoverability,
Estimates are revicwed and revised annually. Revisions oceur due to the evaluation or re-evaluation ol already available
geological, reservoir or production data; availability of new data; or changes lo underlying price assumptions. Reserve
estimates may also be revised due L0 improved recovery projects. changes in production capacily or changes in
development strategy., Proved developed reserves are used to calculale the unit of production rates for DD&A. The.
Group has included in proved reserves only those quantities that are expected o be produced during the initial period of
the respective subsurface use contract. This is duc lo uncertaintics surrounding the oulcome of such renewal procedures.
since the renewal is ullimately at the discretion of the Government. An increase in the Group’s periods of the subsurlace
use contract and corresponding increase in reported reserves would generally ead to lower DD&A expense and could
materially afleel earnings. A reduction in proved developed reserves will increase DID&A expense (assuming constant
production). reduee income and could also result in an immediate write-down of the property’s boeok value. Given the
relatively stnall number of producing fields. it is possible that any change in reserve eslimales year on year could
signilicantly alfect future charges for DD&A.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Uranium reserves

Uranium reserves are a primary component of the Group®s projected cash flow estimates that are used to assess the
recoverable values of respective non-current assets and 1o delermine depreciation and amortization expense. In
estimating the amount of uranium reserves, the Group obtains reports from geological experts who estimate the reserves
based on the quantification methodology set out by the Kazakhslan State Commission on Mineral Reserves (“SCR™) to
interpret geological and exploration data and delermine explored rescrves (proved reserves) and estimated reserves
{probable reserves). The estimation of reserves is based on experl knowledge and estimation. The quantification of
reserves involves a degree of uncertainty. The uncertainly is primarily related to completeness of reliable geological and
technical information. In addition. the presence of reserves does not imply that all reserves will be extracted on an
ceonomically effective basis. Uranium reserves are analyzed and revised an an annual basis. The quantity of reserves
can be subject to revision as a resull of changes in production capacilies and changes in development strategy, [t is
possible that any annuat change in reserve estimates could signilicantly affcel [uture charges for DD&A.

impairment of non-Tinancial assets

An impairment exists when the carrying amount ol an asset or cash generaling unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is
based on available data (rom binding sales transactions in arm’s length transactions of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use caleulation is based on a discounted
cash (low model. The cash lMows arc based on the budget lor the next 5 {five) years and do nol include restructuring
activities that the Group is not yel committed to or significant future invesiments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the
discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash-inllows and the growth rate used for extrapolation
purposes.

The Group assesses cach asset or cash generating unit {CGU) every reporting period to determine whether any
indication of impairment exists, Where an indicator of impairment exists. a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is
made, which is considered to be the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. These assessments require
the use of estimates and assumptions such as long-term ¢rude oil, uranium and metal prices {considering current and
historical prices, price trends and relaled factors), discount rales, operating costs, future capilal requirements,
decommissioning costs, exploration polential, reserves and operating performance (which includes production and sales
volumes),

These estimates and assumplions are subject 1o risk and uncertainty. Therefore, there is a possibility that changes in
circumstances will impact these projections, which may impact the recoverable amount of asseis and/or CGUs, Fair
value is determined as {he amount that would be obtained from the sale of fhe asset in an arm’s lenglh transaclion
between knowledgeable and willing parties. Fair value for oil and gas and mining assets is generally determined as the
present value of estimated fiture cash flows arising from the continued use of the assets. which includes estimates such
as the cosl of future expansion plans and eventual disposal. using assumptions that an independent market participant
may take inlo account. Cash Mows are discounted (o their present value using a discount rate that refleels current market
assessments of the time value o money and the risks specific 10 the asset.

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested lor impairment at the moment of transfer 1o tangible and intangible
production assets or when impatrment indicators are present.

In 2014 the Group recognized an impairment of property. ptant and equipment, inlangible assets and goodwill in the
amount of 335308 million tenge, 1.373 millien tenge and 106,620 million tenge. respectively {(2013:
67.179 million (enge. 8,274 million tenge and 4,945 million tenge, respectively) in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, which is mostly related to the impairment of non-gurrent assets of 1SC “NC “KazMunayGas™
("NC KMG™) and JSC "Samruk-Energy™ (Note 7 and Note 8).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Recoverability of property, plant and equipment of JSC “Exploration and Production “KazMunayGas”
(“KMG EP”), subsidiary of JSC “NC “KazMunayGas™

in 2013 the Group recognized an impairment charge of 56 billion {enge in its consolidated financial stalements as a
resull of a formal assessment of the recoverabic amount of KMG LEP non-current assets, The main indicator was an
increase in export customs duty from 40 US dollar per ton 1o 60 US dollar per ton that eccurred on April 12, 2013,

In 2014 the Group recognized an additional impairment charge of 257 billion lenge in its consolidated (inancial
stalements as a result of a lormal assessment of the recoverable amount of KMG EP. The main indicators were
declining crude ol prices, increases in cmployee benefit costs and an increase in export customs duty [rom 60 US dollar
per ton 1o 80 US dollar per ton. The recoverable amount of CGU was identified using a discounted cash lNow model.
The discount rate of 13.09% was derived from the CGU’s post-tax weighted average cost of capital (“WACC™). The
business plans, which are approved on an annual basis, are the primary source of information. They contain forecasts
for crude oil production, sales velumes, revenues, cosls and capital expenditure. Various assumptions such as oil prices
and cost inflation rales take into account existing prices. foreign exchange rates, other macroeconomic factors and
historical trends and variability. The prajection of cash flows was limited by the date of Uzenmunaygas subsurface use
contract cxpiry in 2021, Expenditure cash flows up to 2019 were obtaired from the CGU’s business plan together with
management’s current assessment of probable changes in operational and capital expendilure. Most of the projections
beyond thal period were inflated usintg available inflation estimales, cxcept for capital expendilure projections, which
represent management's best available estimate as at the date of impairment assessment.

The key assumptions required for the recoverable amount estimation are the crude oil prices, production volumes, the
foreign exchange rate and discount rate. The sensitivity of the headroom Lo changes in the key assumptions was
estimated.

Brent crude off price assumptions were based on market expeclations together with the expectlations of independent
induslry analysis and research organizations. I Brent erude oil prices had been assumed to be 5% higher than the price
assumptions used in the assessment, this would have had the elfect of increasing the estimated recoverable amount by
almost 37 billion ienge.

Estimated production volumes are based on the business plan and take inle account development plans as part of the
long-lerm: planning process. H the production volume were Lo be reduced by around 5% for the whole period. this would
cause atmost nil effect.

An assumed KZT/US dollar exchange rate of 185 was used Lo converl US dollar denominated sales based on the
business plan. I the KZT/US dollar exchange rate had been assumed te be 25% higher [or the whole period, it would
have had the effect of increasing the recoverable amount of Uzenmunaygas non-current assets by 99 billion 1enge,

Recoverability of property, plant and equipment and goodwill of Kazmunaygas [nternational N.Y., subsidiary of
JSC “NC “KazMunayGas™ and Paviedar Oil Chemical Plant LLP

The Group has material goodwill related to past acquisitions of Kazmunaygas International N.V. (“KMGI™) and
Paviodar Oil Chemical Plant LLP ("PNHZT),

KMGI
KMGI has lour main CGUSs: Reflining, Downstream Romania. DynelT and Olher,

As a result of the impairment analysis of the recoverable amount of KMGI non-cutrent assets an impairment charge of
74.546 million tenge was recognized in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014,
The impairment charge was allocated to the goodwill and intangible asscts (Note 8) related to each CGl, and the
remaining to properly. ptant and equipment {Note 7). Decline in market forecasts indicated 2 polential impairment off
goadwill and assets of refining, downstream and other segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Recoverability of property, plant and equipmeat and goodwill of Kazmunaygas International N.V., subsidiary of
JSC HNC *KazMunayGas” and Paviedar Ofl Chemical Plant LLP (continued)

KMGH (continued)

Refining

In 2014 the impairment loss atributable to Refining of 62,844 mitlion lenge was recognized, of which
21,466 million tenge was allocated 1o the related goodwill and 41,378 million tenge was allocated Lo Lhe property, plant
and equipment. The present value of the free cash flows was determined using discounted cash lows from linancial
budgets approved by senior management covering a  five-year period al 367,666 thousand US dollars
(67,044 million tenge), and the presenl value of the residual value at 1.084.014 thousand US dollars
(197,670 million lenge). resulting in the estimated (air value less costs of disposal of 1.451,680 thousand U8 doliars
{204,714 million tenge). In 2014 the discount rate applied o cash How projections is 9.7% (2013: 9.7%) and cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapelated using a 1.5% growih rate (2013: 1.5%) that is the samc as the long-term
average growih raie [or the industry. The capitalization rate used for residual values is 8.2% (2013: 8.2%).

Dyrieff

In 2014 the impairment loss atiributable lo Dyneff was recognized in the amounl of 6,423 million tenge, of which
5,468 million tenge was allocated 1o the related goodwill and 955 million tenge was allocaled o the inlangible asscls.
The discount rate applied to cash flow projections in 2014 is 8.1% (2013: 8.0%) and cash (lows beyond Lhe five-year
period are extrapelated using a §.5% growth rate (2013: 1.5%) that is the same as the tong-term average growth rate for
the industry. The capitalization rate used Tor residual values is 6.6% in 2014 (2013: 6.5%).

Downstream Romania

In 2014 no impairment was recognized with respect to Downstream Romania. The present value of free cash lows was
determined on the basis of discounted cash flows from five-year [inanciul projecls approved by management. The
discount rate applied to cash Mow prejections in 2014 is 9.7% (2013: 9.7%) and cash flows beyond the live-vear period
are extrapolated using a 1.5% growth rale {2013: 1,5%) thal is the same as the long-term average growth rate for the
industry. The capilalization rale used lor residual values is §.2% (2013: 8.2%).

Other

In 2014 the impairment loss atiribulable (e other CGU was recognized in the amount ol 5,279 million tenge, of which
2,188 million tenge was allocated to the related goodwill and 3,091 million tenge was allocated 1o the property, plant
and equipment. The recoverable amount of Other CGU was calculated using the discount raté applied to cash low
projections is 9.8% (2013: 9.8%) and cash llows bevond the five-year period are extrapolated using a 1.5% (2013;
1.5%) growth rate that is the same as the long-lerm average growth rate for the industry and the capitalization rate al
8.3% in 2014 (2013: 8.3%).

Key assumptions used in cateufating fair value less costs of disposal of Refining. Downstream Romania. Dyne(T and
Other:

. Refinery margins:

. Production volumes;
’ Discounl rate;

- Growth rate.

Refinery marging — Bslimates are made by the Group's management based the historical information and the industry
trends and arc gencratly in line with the analysis’ forgcasts.

Production volumes — Estimates are made by the Group’s management based on the historical production velumes and
estimated downtime periods.

Discownt rate — Discount rates represent the currenl market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, laking into
consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets thal have not been incorporated in
the cash Mow estimates. The discount rale caleulation is based on Lhe specific circumsiances of KMGI and its operating
segmenis and is derived from its WACC, The cost of cquity is derived from the expected return on investment by
KMGI's investors. The cost of debt is based on the interest-bearing borrowings KMGE is obliged (o service, Segment-
specific risk is incorporated by applying individual beia laclors. The beta factors are evaluated annually based on
publicly available markel data.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (coniinucd)

Recoverability of property, plant and equipment and goodwill of Kazmunaygas International N.V,, subsidiary of
JSC *NC “KazMunayGas” and Paviodar Oil Chemical Plant LLP (continued)

KMGI {continued)

Other (continned)

Adjustments Lo the discount rate are made to factor in the specific amount and thming of the futurd tax Mows in order to
reflect a pre-tax discount rate.

Growth rate - Growth rates are based on published industry research.

Sensitivity to ehanges in assumptions for Refining, Downstream Romania. Dyneff and Other

Results of asscssment of recoverable amount of CGUs are sensitive o changes in key assumptions, Changes in the key
assumptions would result in a further impairment.

PNHZ

[n 2014 no impairment was recognized with respect to PNHZ. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections in
2014 is %.1% (2013: 11.34%) and cash {lows beyond the [ive-year period are extrapoldted using a 3.87% growth rate
(2013: 4.3%).

Key asswmptions used in calculating faiv value less costs of disposal

The key assumptions used in caleulating (air value Jess costs of disposal use for PNHZ are as {oliows:
. Volumes ol crude oil and il products output;

. Capital expenditures for 2015-2018;

. Prices of crude oil in the local market;

. Discount rale.

Volumes of crude oi! and oil products output — are the lorecasts of NC KMG with respect to the output of oil preducts
during processing 1 ton of crude oil before and alter modernization of PNHZ,

Capital expenditures arc represented by costs : a) on réconstruction and modernization of PNHZ; b) necessary to
maintain the current condition ol the asset.

Prices of crude oil in the local market — the prices which are based on the assessment ol the management of NC KMG
on purchase of ctude oil from local oil producers,

Discoumn rare — Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks speeific to each CGU, taking into
consideration the time value of moncy and individual risks of the underlying assets that have net been incorporated in
the cash low estimates, The discount rate calculation is based on the specific cireumstances of NC KMG and its
operating segmenis and is derived from its WACC. The WACC takes into account both debt and equily. The cost of
equity is derived from the expected return on investment by NC KMG investors. The cost of debt is based on the
interesi-bearing borrowings NC KMG is obliged to service. Segment-speeilie risk is incorporated by applying
individual beta faciors. The beta factors are evaluated annually based on publicly available market data,

Significant change i valudtion technigue of the recoverable amonnt

During prior yewrs. the principal activity of PNHZ was represented by purchase of the western Siberian oil, Hs refining
and subscquent resule of refined products in the domestic and foreign markels. As part of filerstate trade and economic
agreement between the Russian Federalion and Kazakhstan of December 9, 2010, PNHZ purchased crude oil from the
Russian Federation without custom duties. As a result, cost of purchased oil was forecasted taking into account Russian
oil inyported without custom duties.

Since January 1, 2014, Trade and Economic Agreement terms in the part of erude oil purchase regulations expired, and
the Intersicte Agreement oni cooperation in the area of Russian oil transperiation through the terrvitory of the Republic
of Kazakhstan to the People's Republic of China (the »Cooperation Agreement”™) came into effect, [n accordance with
the Cooperation Agreement. in order to provide relineries with oil. Karakhstan is allowed to replace Russian oif with
Kazakhstan oil during transportation of Russian oif to China through the Kazakhstan pipelines.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS {continued}

Recoverability of property, plant and equipment and goodwill of Kazmunaygas International N.V., subsidiary of
JSC “NC “KazMunayGas” and Pavledar Oil Chemical Plant LLP {continued)

PNHZ (continued)

Significant change in valuation technigue of the recoverable amount {continned)

The Cooperation Agreement is valid until January 1, 2019 with an automated extension lor 5 ([ive) vears. Based on the
possibility to replace Russian crude oil used at PNHZ for production of ol products with Kazakhslan oil under the
Cooperation Agreemesni. the Group's management applied assumption oa creation of purchased oil cost al the domestic
price lor oil in Kazakhstan.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions for PNIZ

Results of assessment of recoverable amount of PNHZ are sensitive lo changes in key assumptions, in particular,
assumplions related to changes in exchange rate of tenge. WACC discount rates and target cash flow projections in
terminal period. Increase in discount rales by 2% from 9.1% to 11%, would result in impaivment of goodwill by
106,948 million tenge. Decrease of target cash llow projections in terminal period by 3% [rom 11.7% to 8.7% would
result in impairment of goodwill in the amount of 79.161 million lenge. Decrease of exchange rate tenge against
US dollars by 10% would result in full impairment of goodwill and in impairment of PNTLZ non-currenl assets,

Recoverability of property, plant and equipment of JSC “NAC “Kazatomprom”

Based on the impairment assessment the Group did not recognise impairment losses as recoverable amount of assets
(CGUs) related Lo uraniurn production exceeded their carrying amounts.

At December 31, 2014 the fotlowing faclors were considered by management as indication of impairment of asscts
(CGUs) related Lo cerlain urarium mines: less than budgeted production volumes; higher than budgeted production
costs; und time to expiration of subsurface usc contracts.

Assets related lo wranium mines include property. plant and cguipment, mine development assets, mineral rights.
exploration and evaluation assets, investments in associales, investments in joint ventures, and other investments,
Management performed test lor impairment for assets (CGUsY for which polential impairment indications were
identified as at December 31, 2014,

For the purpose ol impairment test assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separalely identifiable
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows [rom other assets or groups of assets (CGUs). The Group
identified each mine (contract lerritory) as a separate CGLUL If several mines are technologically connected with single
processing plant (section for processing of pregnant solutions) the Group considers such mines as one CGLL Below are
principal assumptions used by management [or calculation ol value in use:

. average annual uranium prices are estimated at the following levels:

2015 20186 2017 2018 2019
Average price of UsOg per pound {in US dollar) 37.70 37.80 39.15 41.89 48.23
. lorecast production based on votumes stipulated by subsurlace use contracis;
. operating and capital expenditures after 2019 will increase at the growth rate of 4-6% per annum;
. discount rate ol 8.09%-13.08% per annum.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
Recoverability of property, ptant and equipment of JSC *NAC “Kazatomprom™ (continued)

Sensitivity to changes in nssumptions for JSC "NAC "Kaatomprom”

Presented below is the sensitivily analysis disclosing possible impairment losses at reasonably possible changes of
principal assumptions {with all other parameters held constant) [or assels (cash generating units) where impairment
indications were identified:

. average annual uranium prices;
Impairment
2015 2016 207 2018 2019 loss
Average price of U.0Og per pound
{in US dollar) 29.50 29.65 31.30 33.73 37.33 (25.4986)
Average price of UsQs per pound
{in US dollar) 22.62 22.68 23.48 25.13 27.74 {26.665)
. forecast production decrease by 20% would result in impairment loss of 23,302 million lenge.

Recoverability of property, plant and equipment and goodwill of EGRES-1, subsidinry of JSC “Samruk-Energy”

The carrying amount o the CGU excceds its recoverable amount by 77,375 million tenge. As a resull ol value-in-use
caleulations impairment provision was crealed for goodwill in the amount of 75.873 million tenge (Mote 8) as well as
lor propesty, plant and equipment in the amount of 1,500 million tenge.

Goodwill was ailocated to EGRIS-t CGU, which represents the lowest level within the Group al which the goodwill is
monitored by management and which is not larger than a segment.

The significant decline in electricity consumption in sccond half of 2014 and in the forecast for 2015 as estimated by
KEGOC, the national grid company. was mainly caused by general economic slowdown with the lower demand {rom
the industrial plants, which consume approximately 50% of total production of the eleetricity in the Republic ol
Kazakhstan. A general decline in demand and low prices for metals in international markets have led to revision of the
production plan by the majority of metaliurgical plants. Additionally, in 2015 the electricity export Lo Russia has been
discontinued due to excess supply of eleciricity within the Russian domestic market. The Group has considered the
impact ol these factors on the assumplions used lor the impairment test of the CGU’s carrying value.

The Group used cash {low projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a [ive-year period.
Cash llows beyond the (ive-ycar period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates of 3.9%. The growth rates do
nol exceed Lthe long-term average growth rate for the business secior of the economy in which the CGU operates.

The discount rales used are after-tax, and reflect specific risks refaling to the CGU. The Group used WACC as the
discount rate. Afler-lax discount ratc is 13%.

Other assumptions uscd lor value-in-use calculations to which the recoverable amount is sensilive were:

2018 20186 2017 2018 2018
Sales velume, thousand kWh 10,653,331 11,838,619 12,536,876 13,165,107 13,823,363
Avarage tariff per kWh, tenge 7.8 8.71 9.35 10.04 10.78

Managemenl estimates that ncgative signs of the current cconomic siluation will last lor approximately 4-3 years with
steadly improvements {urther when EGRES-1 will reach optimal load of the powcr station as a result of the Industrial
programs of the Government ef the Republic of Kazakhstan and improvement in the international metals market,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Recoverability of property, plant and equipment and goodwill of EGRES-1, subsidiary of JSC “Samruk-Energy”
(continued)

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and its markel expectations. The
weighted average growth rales used are consistent with the forecasts inctuded in indusiry reports.

Sensitivity to changes in assuimptions for EGRES-1

If the estimated afler-tax discount rate applicd to the discounted cash flows of the CGU had beenr 1% higher than
management’s estimales, the Group would need to reduce further the carrying amount of properly. plant and equipment
by 59.500 million tenge. The CGU carrying amount would be equal 1o value in use af a discount rate of 12% p.a.

Assets retirement ohligations

Qil and gas production facilities

Under the terms of certain subsurface use contracts, legislation and regulations the Group has legal obligations o
dismantle and remove tangible assets and restore the land at cach production site. Specifically, the Group's ebligation
relates to the ongoing closure of all non-producing wells and tinal closure activities such as removal of pipes, buildings
and recultivation of the conlract territories, and also obligations to dismantle and remove tangible assets and restore
territory al each production site. Sinee the subsurface use conlracl terms cannot be extended atl the diseretion of the
Group, the seltlement dale of the final closure obligations has been assumed Lo be the end of each subsurface use
contract period. If the assel retirement obligations were Lo be setiled at the end of the economic lile of oil and gas field,
the recorded obligalion would increase significantly due 1o the inclusion of all abandonment and closure costs. The
extent of the Group's cbligations to finance the abandonment of wells and lor linal closure costs depends on Lthe terms
of the respective subsurface use contracts and current legislation.

Where neither subsurface use contracis nor legislation include an unambiguous obligation 1o undertake or finance such
final abandonment and closure costs at the end of the subsurface use contraet lerm. no liability has been recognized.
There is some uncertainty and significamt judgment involved in making such a determination. Management's
assessment of the presence or absence of such abligations could change with shilis in policies and practices of the
Government or in the local indusiry practice.

The Group calculates asset relirement abligations separatély for each contract. The amount of the obligation is the
present valug ol the estimated expenditures expected to be required Lo settle the obligation adjusted Tor expected
inflation and discounted using average long-term risk-Irec interest rates for emerging markel sovercign debt adjusted for
risks specilic to the Kazakhstan market.

Al each reporting date the Group reviews sile restoration provisions, and adjusts them to relleet the current best cstinmate
in accordance with [FRIC 1 “Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Eiabililics™.

listimating the future closure costs involves signilicant eslimates and judgments by management. Most of these
obligations are many years in the future and. in addition to ambiguities in the legal requircments, the Group's estimate
can be alfected by changes in asset removal technologics. costs and industry practice. Uncertainties related to the final
closure costs are mitigated by (he effects of discounting the expeeled cash flows. The Group estimates future well
abandonment cost using current year prices and the average long-term inflation rate.

The long-term inflation and discount rates used 1o determine the obligation in the conselidated balance sheet across the
Group entilies st December 31, 2014 were in the range from 3% to 6% and from 6% to 10%, respectively (2013: from
2% 1o 5.6% and from 6% lo 8%, respectively). Movemenls in the provision for assel retirement ohligations are
disclosed in More 22.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS {continued)
Assets retirement obligations {centinued)

Major oit and gas pipefines

According to the Law ol the Republic of Kazakhstan “On major pipelines™ which was made effective on July 4, 2013
mainly the Group's two subsidiaries, JSC KazTransQil (“KT(™), the subsidiary of NC KMG, and Intergas Central
Asia ISC ("1CA™), the subsidiary of KazTransGaz JSC, (Nate 22), have legal obligation to decommission its major ail
pipetines at the end of*their operating life and to restore the land 1o its original condition. Asset retirement obligation is
calculated based on estimate of the work to decommission and rchabilitale. As at December 31, 2614 the carrying
amounts of the Group's assel retirement obligations relating to decommissioning of pipelines and land were equal to
35,760 million tenge (December 31, 2013: 16,678 million lenge).

Assessing the cost of environmental rehabilitation is subject 1o polential changes in ecological requirernents and
interpretations of the law. Furthermore, uncerlainties in the estimates of these costs include potential changes in
alternative liguidation methods, recovery of damaged land, discount and inflation rates and periods of obligation.

Environmental remediation

The Group also makes judgments and estimates in establishing provisions for environmental remediation obligations.
Environmental expenditures are capitatized or expenscd depending upon their future economic benelil. LExpenditures
thai relate 10 an existing condition caused by past operations and do nol have a luture cconomic benetit are expensed.

Liabilities are determined based on current inlormation about costs and expected plans for remediation and are recorded
on an undiscounted basis if the timing ol the procedures has not been agreed with the relevant authorities. The Group™s
environmental remediation provision represents management best eslimate based on an independent assessment of the
anticipated expenditure necessary [or the Group lo remain in compliance with the current regulatory tegime in
Kazakhslan and Europe. The Group has classified this obligation as non-current except for the portion of cests included
in the annual budget for 2015, For environmental remediation provisions, actual costs can dilter from cstimates bhecause
of changes in laws and regulations, public expectations, discovery and analysis of site conditions and changes in clean-
up technology. Further uncertainties related to envirenmental remediation obligations are detailed in Noge 40.
Movements in the provision lor envirommenial remediation obligations are disclosed in Mote 22,

Provision for ebligations on constroction of social assets

As at December 31, 2014, other provisions mainty include provisions for obligations Lo construet the following projects:
Concert Hall (the Fund), History Museum of Kazakhstan (NC KMG). Multifunctional ice palace (NC KTZh) in Astana,
Schuchensko —~ Borevskoi golf club (NC KMG) and reconstruction of World Expo-Center in Moseow (NC KMG). The
total estimated costs were recognized in equity as other distributions to the Sharcholder {(Nofe 77.5). Increase in the
provisions is mainly attributable to additional Government's assignments on construction of Mullifunclional ice palace
(23,596 million tenge) and Concert Hall { 10,760 million tenge).

Useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses remaining uselul lives of ilems of property, plant and equipment at least at each financial year-end.
Il expectations dilfer from previous estimales, the changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in an acecounting
estimate i accordance with 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Acconnting Estimales and Ereors.

Deferred tax asseis

Deferred tax assels are recognized lor ali allowanees and unused tax losses Lo the extent that it is probable that taxable
temporary differences and business nalure of such expenses will be proved. Significant nmanagement judgment is
required te determing the amount of deferréd tax assets Lhat can be recognized. based upon the likely timing and level of
future Laxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying amount of recognized delerred tux assels
as at December 31, 2014 was equal 1o 102,436 million tenge (2013: 42,084 million tenge). Further detatls are contained
in Note 35,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTEING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Taxation

Uncertainties exist with respect Lo the interprelation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws. and the amount
and timing of (uture taxable income. Given the wide range of the Group’s international business relationships and the
fong-term nature and complexity ol existing contraclual agreements, differences arising belween the actlual results and
the assumptions made, or {uture changes to such assumptions, could necessitale Muture adjustments to taxable profils
and cxpense alrcady recorded. The Group establishes provisions., based on reasonable estimates, lor possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates.

The amount of such provisions is bascd on various factors. such as experience of previous tax audits and differing
interpretations ol tax regulations by Lhe taxable entity and the responsible tax authorily. Such differences of
inlerpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective Group
company's domicile.

In assessing tax risks. management considers to be probable obligations the known areas of non-compliance with tax
legislation, which the Group would not appeal or does not believe it could successtully appeal. if additional taxes are
charged. Such determinations inherently involve significant judgment and are subjeet to change as a result of changes in
tax laws and regulations, amendments to the taxatien terms of the Group’s subsurface use contracts, the determination
of cxpected outcomes [rom pending tax proceedings and current ouicome of ongoing compliance audits by tax
authoritics. The provisien Tor taxes disclosed in Note 22 relates mainly (0 the Group's application of Kazakhstan
transier pricing legislation 1o expert sales of crude oil rom 2002 to 2006. Further uncertainties related (o taxation arc
disclosed in Note 0.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and [inancial liabilities recorded in the consolidated balance sheet cannot be
derived from active markets, Lthey are determined using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flows model,
The inputs to these medels are taken from observable markels where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments include considerations ol inputs such as liguidity risk,
credit risk and velatility, Changes in assumplions about these factors could affect the fair value of financial instruments
reported in the consolidated financial statements. Further details are disclosed in Nofe 39

Employee benefit liability

"The Group uses actuarial valuation method for measurement of the present value of detined cmiployee benefit liability
and related current service cost (Nofe 23). This involves use of demographic assumplions aboul the future
characteristics of current and former cimployces who are eligible for benefits (mortality, both during and after
enmployment, rales of employee turnover, cte.} as well as financial assumptions (discount rate, future annual financial
assistance, lulure annual minimum salary, future average railway ticket price). Further details on judgements are
disclosed in Note 23,

Impairment losses on leans to customers and credil institutions

The Group reviews its individually signilicant loans e customers and credit institulions at each reporting date to assess
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the consolidated statement ol comprehensive income. In particular.
judgement by management is required in estimation of the amount and timing of lulure cash (lows when determining
the impairment loss. In estimating these cash llows, the Group makes judgement about the borrewer’s financial
situation and the nel realizable value of collateral. These estimales are based on assumptions about a number of factors
and actual results may differ, vesulting in future changes to the alowanee.

The impairment loss on loans Lo customers and credit institutions is disclosed in more details in Nofes 10 awd 11,

Allowances for doubtful accounts receivable

The Group makes allowances for doubtful accounts receivable. Significant judgment is used to estimate doubtful
accounts. Tn estimating doubtful debis historical and anticipated eustomer performance are considered. Changes in the
cconomy. industyy, or specific cusiomer conditions may require adjustments 10 the aliowance for doubtful debls
recorded in the consolidated lInancial statements. At December 31, 2014, atlowances for doubtful debts have been
created in the amount of 101.837 million tenge (2013: 96.390 million lenge) {Notes 13 and 15).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5. ACQUISITIONS

Aequisitions in 2014

Acquisition of interest in Ekibastuzskaya GRES-1 named after Bulat Nurzhanov LLP

On March 31, 2014 the Group acquired the remaining 50% interest in Ekibastuzskaya GRES-1 named after Bulat
Nurzhanev LLP (“EGRES-17), a coal-lired power station with available capacity of 4000 MW. The total consideration
paid was equal to 236,652 million tenge. The Group started to consolidate results of EGRES-1 from April t, 2014, The

follewing table summarizes the consideration paid for EGRES-1. and the amounts of the asscts acquired and liabilities
assumed recognised at the acquisition date.

in milfions of fenge

Consideration

Cash and cash equivalenis 236,652
Fair value of previously held interest 231,953
Total consideration 468,605

The investment in the EGRES-] in the amount of 137,480 million tenge held prior to the acquisition was revalued to its
fair value at the acquisition date and a respective gain in the amount of' 74,473 million tenge was. recognised in
consolidated slatement ol comprehensive income.

The consideration paid by the Group was based on results of an external appraisal of the acquiree’s business taken as a
whote, However, in accordance with [FRS 3 Business Combinations, the Group must account for acquisitions based on
the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed, These two different
approachics can lead to differences; and, as set out in the lable below, recognition of goedwill.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilitics as a1 the acquisition dale were as Tollows:

fn miflions of fenge

Assets
Property, ptant and equipment 462,451
Other non-current assets 249
inventories 5,892
Trade accounts receivable 2,193
Other current assets 3,981
Cash and cash equivalents 3,615
478,381
Liabilities
Loans {10,070}
Other non-current liabilities {744}
Deferred tax liability {64,408)
Trade and other accounts payable (8,856)
Other current liabilities {1,573)
{85,651}
Total identifiable net assets 392,730
Goodwill 75,875
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 3,615
Cash paid {236,652)
Net cash outflow on acquisition {233,037)

The fair values ol asscis and liabitities acquired are based on discounted cash flow models. The valuation of identifiable
properly, plant and equipment was performed by an independent professional appraiser.

Goodwill on the acquisition in the amount of 75,875 mitlion lenge arose from a number of lactors, including clTect of
devaluation of the tenge into purchase consideration, which was set in US dollars. As a result of the acquisition, the
Group increased its share in the production of clectric energy segment and became the largest pewer generation group
in Kazakhstan. Goodwill is not deduciible for income tax purposes.

Revenue of EGRES-1 included in the consolidated financial statements from April 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 was
equal 1o 73.792 miliion tenge. Profit of BLGRES-I from the acquisition date off April 1. 2014 included in the
consolidaied financial statements was equal to 25.910 millien tenge. [f the acquisition had been made at the beginning
ol the year, the Group's profit would be increased by 4.033 million tenge and revenue would be increased by
25,910 million tenge.
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5. ACQUISITIONS (continued)
Acquisitions in 2014 (continued)

Acquisition of interest in “Ekibastuzskuya GRES-1 named after Bilat Nurzhanov” feontined)

As a resull of annual impairment test, the Group recognized loss on impairment of EGRES-17s goodwill in the amount
of 75.875 million tenge (Note 4).

Acquisition of interest in KazakTwrkMundy LLP

On June 30, 2014 the Group concluded a contract for acquisition of’ 49% of ownership in KazakTurkMunay LiP
(“*KTM™), the existing 51% joint venture, ftom Tiirkiye Petrolleri Anonim Orlakligi (further “TPAO™) for
204,500,000 US dollars (37.169 million tenge at the acquisition dale), with withholding tax in the amount of
5,545 million tenge, and increased its ownership in KTM to 100%. The acquisilion was completed in October 2014.
The fair value of acquisition cost was determined using discounted cash flow method at 6.98% market interest rate al
the date of acguisition.

The purchase consideration Is payable in two tranches, the first ranche was made on September 25, 2014 with cash paid
of 28,508 million tenge. including the withholding tax of 3.712 million tenge.

The second (ranche will be made on May 5, 2015 with the nominal amount of 14,206 million tenge. including the
withholding tax of 1,833 million tenge. The discounted amount of the second tranche is 13,700 million lenge, including
the withhelding tax of 1,768 million tenge.

The excess of fair value of consideration over fair value of net assets of KTM as of acquisition date dnd gain on
reassessment of oxisting 51% share were recognized as distribution to the Sharcholder due to the fact that the
acqulisition was made at the Sharchoelder instructions {(Nofe [7.5}.

The fair valuc of the identifiable assets and liabilities of K'TM s al the date of acquisition were:

In miflions of tenge

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 35,667
Other non-current assels 605
Trade receivables 2,282
Inventories 1,077
Other current assets 1,044
Cash and cash equivalents 8,236
Liabilities
Trade payables {1,710}
Fayables to TRAQ {8,505)
Provisions (1,267)
Deferred tax liabifity {3,491)
Other current liability {1,594}
{16,567)

Total identifiable net assels 36,344
Existing interest at book value 21,052
Existing interest measured at fair valiug 43,931
Fair value of purchase consideration 42,208
Tetal consideration _ 86,139
The excess of total consideration over fair value of net assets and reassessment of

existing shares 26,916
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5. ACQUISITIONS (conlinued)
Acquisitions in 2014 (continued)

Aequisition of interest in KazakTwkMunay LLE {continned)

in mitlions of tenge

Fair value of purchase consideration

Cash paid 28,508
Deferred payments, at fair value 13,700
Total fair value of purchase consideration 42,208
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 8,236
Cash paid {28,508)
Net cash outflow on acquisition {20,272)

Acquisition in 2013

Acquisition of Kaczine LLP

On February 1, 2013 the Fund acquircd 29.8221% of the charter capital of Kazzine 1L1.P through acquisition ol 100% of
ownership inlerest in the charter capital of Logic Business LI.P. Logic Invest Capital LLP and Investment [ouse
“Dana™ LLP. each holding 9.9487% ownership interest in Kazzine LLP for the total amount of 248,838 million tenge
(value of each company is 82,946 million tenge). The consideration for the acquisition was paid using proceeds
received rom the placement of the Fund’s bonds in the amount of 255,000 mitlion tenge purchased by the National
Bank (¥ofe {9). The maturity of the bonds is 50 years; the coupon interest is ¢.01% per annum.

The interest in Kazzinc LLP is accounted for using the equity method in the Group's consolidated linancial statements.
Acquisition of Kazzine LLP was recorded in the conselidated linancial stalements using the purchase method.

The [air value of identifiable assets and liabilities as at the acquisition date were:

in miflions of tenge

Non-current assets 206,890
Current assets 44,237
Total asseis 251,127
Non-current liabilities {27,307)
Current liabilities {23,360}
Total liabilities {50,667}
Net agsets 200,480
Fair value of the consideration 248,838
Goodwill 48 378

The consolidated net profit of the Group during the year ended December 31, 2013 includes a share in profils
attributable to 29.8221% interest in Kazzinc LLP from acquisition date till December 31, 2013 in the amount of
6364 million tenge (Note 33).
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6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
Discontinued operations in 2014
Temirbank JSC, BTA Bank JSC and Alliance Bunk JSC

Temirbank JSC

In December 2013 the Fund and Mr. Bulat Utemuratov concluded agreement for sale-purchase of 79.88% of common
shares of Temirbank JSC (*Temirbank™). The transaction was completed on May 15, 2014,

Results of operations of Temirbank are presented as follows:

From January 1, For the year ended

2014 till the date December 31,
in millions of tenge of disposal 2013
Revenue 10,244 30,936
Cost of sales {3,356) {9,280)
Gross profit 6,888 21,656
General and administrative expenses {3,046) {11,455}
Reversal of impairmant{Impairmeant loss) 250 {7,839
Qther gperating income, net 440 5562
Profit from operations 4,532 2914
Foreign exchange gain, net 1,234 168
Profit before tax from discontinued operations 5,766 3,083
Income tax benefitf{expense) 283 {2,077)
Net profit from discontinued operations 6,048 1,006

Net cash flows of Temirbank JSC are presented as follows;

From Japuary 1, For the year ended

2014 till the date December 31,
in millions of tenge of disposal 2013
Operating 26,612 (9.828)
Investing {141) 622
Financing - -
Net cash inflow/{outflow) 26,471 {8,206}

Gain on disposal of assets related 1o discontinued operations is presented as lollows:

in millions of fenge At disposal date
Consideration received 29,752
Disposed nst assets (31,389)
Disposed non-controlling interest 8,107
Gain on disposaf of assets related to discontinued operations 6,470

Consideration received for 79.88% of Temirbank’s common shares is presented as loflows:

in miftions of terige At disposzl date
Cash and cash equivalents 22.000
Defarred consideration: non-current {Nofe 73] 7,752
Total consideration received 29,752
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6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)
Discontinued operations in 2014 (eonfinued)
Temirbank JSC, BTA Bank JSC and Alliance Bank JSC (continued)

BTA Bank JSC

On January 31, 2014 the Fund, Kazkommerisbank JSC (“KKB™) and Mr. Kenes Rakishev concluded agrecment on
sale-purchasc of 93% of commeon shares of BTA Bank JSC (*BTA Bank”). The transaction was completed in 2014.

KKB und Mr. Rakishev acquired 46.5% sharcs of BTA Bank each with the ultimate aim (o merge of BTA Bank and
KKB in a single bank, The remaining sharc of the Fuad in BTA Bank of 4.26% was transierred under trust management
of KKB until Januaty 31, 2017 or until the date of the mcrger whatever comes earlier. Fair value of the remaining share
at the date of disposal was equal to 4,923 millien lenge.

Results of operations of BTA Bank are presented as follows:

From January 1,
2014 tilf the date

For the year ended
December 31,

fn miflions of tenge of disposal 2013
Revenue 68,818 139,576
Cost of sales {41,629) (81,668)
Gross profit 27,189 57,908
General and administrative expenses {21,018) {44,699}
Loss from impairment {46,699) (32,315}
Other operating incomef{loss), net 1,44% (5,700)
Loss from operations (39,079) (24,8086)
Fareign exchange gain, net 11,965 4,434
Loss before tax from discontinued aperations {27,114) (20,372}
Income tax (expense)/benefit {9,227} 7.971
Net loss from discontinued operations {36,341} (12,401)

Net cash flows of 3TA Bank are prescnied as [ollows:

From January 1,

2014 till the date For the year ended
In miflions of tenge of disposal  December 31, 2013
Operating {15,608) (9,554)
Investing 5,542 {954}
Financing {2,584) -
Net cash cutflows {12,650} {10,508)
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. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

Discontinued operations in 2014 (continued)
Temirbank JSC, BTA Bank JSC and Alliance Bank JSC {contined)

BTA Bank JSC (continued)

Gain on disposal of assets relaled to discontinued operations is presented as {ollows:

In miflions of tenge At disposal date
Consideration received 122,680
Disposed net assets {114,534)
Fair value of the remaining share 4,923
Disposed non-conirelling interest 4,073
Gain on disposal of assets related fo discontinued operations 17,152
Consideration received (or 93% of BTA Bank's common shares is presenied as follows:
In miflions of tenge At disposal date
Cash and cash equivalents 38,750
Deferred consideration: nan-current (Note 13} 52,940
100% shares of Shalkiya Zing JSC 31,000
Total consideration received 122,680
Shalkiva Zinc JSC
The amount of assels acquired and liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition are represenied by

At acquisition
in millions of tenge date
Assetfs
Property, plant and eguiprent 2,578
Intangible assets 34,838
Other assets 566
Total assets 38,382
Liabilities
Cther liabilities {7,382)
Total liahilities {7,382)
Net assets 31,000

Revenue and nel income of Shatkiya Zinc JSC from the date of acquisition included in the consolidated financial
statements are not significant. I the acquisition had been made at the beginning of the year. the Group’s profit would
nol have changed signilicantly.

Alliaince Bank JSC

On December 11, 2014 as a result of reorganization and merger of Temirbank JSC and ForteBank JSC with Alliance
Bank ISC (*Aliliance Bank™), the FFund lost control over Alliance Bank.

In addition, in accordance with the lramework agreement on sale of shares {dated December 30, 2014) the Fund placed
a deposit in ForleBank ISC (former Alliance Bank JSC} in the amount of 220.000 million tenge with annual rate of
return 4% with the placement period of 10 years, Discount al a rate ol 8.67% on this deposit was equal to
64,101 miliion tenge.
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6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AN} ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALKE (eontinuad)

Discontinued operations in 2014 (continued)

Temirhank JSC, BTA Bank JSC and Alliance Bank JSC {continned)

Alliance Bank JSC fcontinned}

Results of operations of Alliance Bank are presented as follows:

From January 1, For the year ended

2014 till the date December 31,
In millions of tenge of disposal 2013
Revenue 654,442 69,405
Cost of sales {33,390} (44,627)
Gross profit 21,052 24,778
Generat and administrative expenses {24,050) {16,774)
Impairment loss, net {23,399) {79,835)
Qther operating income, net 5,240 8,113
Loss from operations {21,157} {63,718)
Foreign exchange loss, net {12,862) {1,182)
L.oss before tax from discontinued operations {34,019) {64,500)
Income tax expense - (18,120)
Net loss from discontinued operations {34,019) {83,090}

Net cash {lows of Alliance Bank are preseniced as follows:

From January 1, For the year ended

2014 till the date December 31,
In miftions of lenge of disposal 2013
Operating 3,31 (7,389)
Investing (15,450} 856
Financing - -
Net cash outflow {12,129} {6,533)

* A5 at December 31, 2014 the Group restaied its consolideated statements of comprehensive income and cash flows for the vear
ended December 31, 2013 due to recognition of Alhance Bank as discontinued operations.

Gain on disposal of assets relaled to discontinued operations is presented as follows:

In miffions of tenge At disposal date
Fair value of bank deposit 155,899
Placement of deposit (cash) {220,000)
Fair value of remaining interest 3,624
Disposed net assets 119,814
Disposed non-controlling interest {56,965}
Gain on disposal of assets related to discontinued operations 2,372

Assets classified as held for sale in 2014

Kambkor LLP Repair Corporation

As parl of the Complex Privatization Plan for 2014-2016 approved by the Goveinment of the Republic of Kazakhstan.
in July 2014 the Shareholder approved a list of subsidiaries and associates of the Group to be transferred to the
compelilive environment: method of their sale. persons responsibie for sale and disposai duration.

In accordance with the Privatization Plan the Group plans 1o dispose off Kambkor Repair Corporation LLP (“Kamkor™).
As at December 31. 2014 this subsidiary has been efassified as a disposal group in the consolidated balance sheel.



“Sovereign Wealth FFund “Samruk-Kazyna® JSC Conselidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE {continued)
Assets classified as held for sale in 2014 (continued)

Kambkor LLP Repair Corporation {continued)

"The main classes of assets and Labilities of Kamkor are presented below:

At December 31,
in_miflions of tenge 2014
Assels
Property, plant and equipment 29,864
Inventories 9,133
Cash and cash equivalents 2,767
Qther assels 3,895
Total assets 45,658
Liabilities
Accounts payabie 13,333
Leans 2,746
Deferred tax liabilities 2,345
Other ligbilities 8,840
Total liabilities 25,264
Net assets 20,395

For the vear ended December 310 2014 net loss fiom operations of Kamkor was equal to 5,108 million tenge (for the
year ended December 31, 2013: 5,802 million tenge).

Net cash flows of Kamkor are presented as foltows:
For the year
ended December

In millions of tenge 31, 2013
Operating 307
Investing {2,056}
Financing {3,907}
Net cash outflows {5,656}

Furoasiadir JSC

In accordance with the Privatization Plan the Group plans to dispose ol BuroasiaAir JSC during 12 (twelve} nionths
[ollowing the reporting date. This subsidiary has been classified as a disposal group in the consolidated balance sheet,

The main clagses of assets and liabilities of FuroasiaAir are presented below:

At December 31,
In millions of tenge 2014
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 18,447
Inventories 256
Cash and cash equivalents 2,241
{ther assets 2,680
Total assets T 23.624
Liabilities
Accournts payable 1,976
toans 5,259
Deferred tax liabilities 1,361
Other liabilities 465
Total lizbilities 9,061
Net assets 14,563

For the year ended December 31, 2014 net loss [rom operations of Euroasiaair was equal to 3,375 millien tenge {lor the
year ended December 31, 2013: 2,076 million tenge).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)
Assets classified as held for sale in 2014 {(continued)

Fuwroasiadiv JSC (continned)

Net cash {lows of BuroasiaAir are presented as follows:
For the year
ended December

In miflions of tenge 3, 2014
Operating 1,728
Investing {1.637)
Financing 138
Net cash inflows 229

Mangistaw Efectricity Distribution Company JSC

In accordance with the Privatization Plan the Group plans to dispose Mangistau Electricity Distribution Company JSC
{*MEDC™) during 12 {twebve) months lollowing the reporting date. This subsidiary has been classificd as a disposal
group in the consolidated balance sheet.

The main classes of assets and liabilities of MEDC are presenied below:
At December 31,

in millions of tenge 2014
Assets

Property, plant and equipment 16,531

inventories 222
Cash and cash equivaients 686
Other assets 1,094
Total assets 18,533
Liabifities

Accounts payable 1,871

Loans 3,591

Deferred tax liabilities 1,192

Cther lizbilities 2,723

Total liabilities 9,377

Net assets 9,156

FFor the year ended December 31, 2014 net profit from operations of MEDC was equal to 1.435 million tenge (for the
year ended Deccmber 31, 2013: 2,050 million tenge).

Net cash flows of MEDC are presented as follows:

For the year
ended December
in miflions of tenge 31, 2014
Qperating 1,651
Investing (3,123)
Financing 1,289
Net cash outflows {183)
Summary information
As at December 31 assets classilied as held for sale comprised the following:
in mifions of tenge 2014 2013
Kamkor 45,659 -
Euroasiaair 23,624 -
MEBC 18,533 -
‘BTA Bank™ JGC - 789,973
“Temirbank" JSC - 280,566
Cther 60,670 16,204
148,486 1,088,843
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued}
Sumniary information (continued)

As al December 31 liabilitics associated with assets classified as held for sale comprised the lollowing:

In milfians of tenge 2014 2013
Kamkor 25,264 -
Euroasiaair 9,081 -
MEDC 9,377 -
“BTA Bank” JSC - 1,069,482
“Temirbank” JSC - 143,375
Other 17,213 7,083

60,915 1,219,950

Resulls fromt discontinued operations, net of tax. for the years ended December 31 comprised the lollowing:

In miflions of tenge 2014 2013
"BTA Bank” JSC, net loss and gain on disposal (19,188) {12,401}
“BTA Bank” JSC, impairment loss - {144,165)
“Temirbank” JSC, net profit and gain on disposal 12,519 1,006
“Temirbank” JSC, impairment loss - {14,564)
“Alliance Bank™ JSC, net loss and gain on disposal (31,647} {83,090)
“Locomotive Kurastyru Zayuty” J&C - (2,815)
Development and financial institutions - {2,237)
Other - 2,204

{38,317} (256,062}
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“Sovercign Wealth Fund “Samrul-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated linancial slalenents

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENRT {centinued)

Movementls in exploration and evaluation assels are presented as [ollows:

Oil and gas Mining
in milfions of fenge assels assets Total
Net book value at January 1, 2013 123,939 2,467 126,406
Foreign currency translation 1,880 - 1,580
Additions 31,546 2,341 33,887
Digposals {3,932) - {3,932)
Depreciation and impairment on disposals 3,200 - 3,200
Other transférs and reclassifications 44,011 - 44,011
Net hook value at December 31, 2013 200,344 4,808 205,152
Foreign currency transiation 21,063 - 21,063
Additions 21,649 4,667 26,316
Disposals - {2,412} (2,412)
Gther fransfers and reclassifications {8,311} 399 {8,912)
Net book value at December 31, 2014 233,745 7,462 241,207
At cost 206,214 4,808 211,019
Accumuiated impairment (5,867) - {5,867}
Net ook value at December 31, 2013 200,344 4,808 205,152
At cost 239,931 7,462 247,393
Accumulated impairment {6,186) - {6,186)
Net book value at December 31, 2014 233,745 7,462 241,207

As at December 31, 2014 properly, plant and cquipment with net book value of 1,740.038 millicn tenge was pledged as
collateral Tor some ol the Group's borrowings (203: 1,395,600 million tenge).

As al December 31, 2014 the carrying amount of property. plant and equipment acquired under linance lease
agreemenls was equal 1o 130,375 million tenge (2013: 118,348 mitlion tengc) .

As al December 31, 2014 the cost ol fully amortised property, plant and equipment of the Group was equal to
543.765 million tenge (2013: 494,378 million lenge).

In 2014, the Group capitalized borrowing cosls at an average capitalization raic of 9% in the amount of
24.027 million tenge (2013: at the rate o' 9.1% in the amount 19.038 million tenge).
Impairment of property. plant and equipment

tn 2014, the Group recorded net impairment loss in the amount ol 335,308 million tenge. which is mainly attributable to
impairment of property. plant and cquipment of NC KMG in the amount of 323.885 million tenge (Vose 4),

In 2013, the Group recorded nel impairment loss in the amount of 67.179 million tenge. which is mainly aftributable to
impairment of property. plant and equipment of KMG EP in the amount of 60.044 million tenge {Note ), Nalional
Alomic Company “KazAtomProm™ JSC (*NAC KAP™) - in the amount of 3.434 million tenge and National Company
“Kazakhstan Temir Zhoiy™ 1SC (*NC KTZh™) in the émount ol 1,523 million lenge.
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“Severeign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated financial staternents

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Marke-
ting
related Sub-
intangible surface
in miflions of tenge Licenses Software Goodwill assets use rights Other Totat
Net book value at January 1,

2013 38,130 39,082 146,778 27,435 79,386 26,6685 358,276
Fereign currency fransiation 32 17 54 522 8t 360 1,066
Additions 3,569 7,925 - - 6,903 5876 24,373
Acquisitions through business

combinations a68 a0 2,851 - - 2,205 6,114
Disposals (162} {1.246) {465} - {708) {905} {3,486)
Discontinued operations {23,544} {198) - - - {3} (23,745}
Loss of control over subsidiaries - {25) - - {554) - {579}
Amortization charge {3,038) (10,561) - - {113) (3,264)  (16,976)
Transfer to assets classified as

held for sale (291) {702) {998} - - (7.016) {8,707)
Accumulated amortization on

disposals 155 1,018 - - 114 603 1,687
Impairment provision - {26) (4,945} - (5,841) (2,407)  (13,219)
Transfers from/{fo) inventories,

net 5 {89) - - ~ 80 (4)
Transfers to property, plant and

equipment {(19) {1,518) ~ - {44,053} - {45,590)
Transfers from property, plant

and equipment 837 4,921 - - - 357 5,915
Other transfers 460 57 - = - {517) -
Net book value at

December 31, 2013 16,202 36,642 143,275 27,957 35,215 22,034 284,325
Foreign currency transiation 330 1,504 7.191 5,221 1,365 1,744 17,755
Additions 1,860 7,478 - i 13,538 2,709 25,526
Acquisitions through business

combinations 1 84 75,875 - 41,848 15 117,823
Disposals (128) (2,545) - {3} {303) {3,147} {6,126}
Discontinued operations {1,018) (736) {322) - - {210} (2,286)
Loss of control over subsidiaries {2,479) {12,526} - {1 {142) {2,032} {17,180}
Transfer to assets classified as

held for sale {7} {297} - - 1 {102} {405}
Accumulated amortization on

disposals 127 2,527 - 3 - 2,289 4,846
impairment provision {238) (80} (105,620) {955} {4) {98) ({107,995}
Transfers from/(to} inventories,

net 103 130 - - - {40} 193
Transfers fromi(tc) propedy,

piant and equipment 1,219 4,689 - - 9,940 1,865 17,713
Other fransfers 166 807 - - - {873) -
Net book value at

December 31, 2014 16,078 41,077 119,399 32,223 101,458 24,054 334,289
Historical cost 39,194 98,291 185,810 33,802 120,478 3%,794 517,369
Accumutated amortization and

impairment {23,416)  (57,214)  {66,411) {1,579) {19,020 (15,740} {183,080}
Net book value at

December 31, 2014 16,078 41,077 119,389 32,223 101,458 24,054 334,289
Historical cost 36,377 90,796 178,041 28,589 53,932 36,984 425,619
Accumulated amortization and

impairment (20,175)  (51,154)  {35566) (632)  (18717) (14,950} (141,294}
Net book value at

December 31, 2013 16,202 39,642 143,275 27,957 35,215 22,034 284,325
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“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” J5C Consolidated [inancial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS {continued)

As al December 31, 2014, the subsurface use rights included the net book value of oil and gas and mining exploration
and evaluation assels in the amount of 54,767 million tenge and 46,691 million tenge, respectively
{2013: 30,594 million tenge and 4,621 mitlion tenge. respectively).

[mpairment testing of goodwill

As al December 31 carrying amount of poodwill is allocated to each of the group of cash~generating vnits as follows:

Cash-generating unit groups 2014 2013
Cash gensrating units of KMG{
+ Refining - 11,045
» Dyneff - 5,223
« Downstream Romania 6,774 6,688
s Cher 2,826 8,575
9,600 31,532
Cash-generafing units of PNHZ 88,554 88,554
Other 13,373 14,994
Total oil and gas 111,527 135,080
Total mining (Uranium production) 5,166 5,166
Total telecommunication ([P-TV} 2,706 2,706
Total cther - 323
Total goodwill 119,399 143,275
Based on the impairment test, the impairment losses recognised in respect of KMGI CGUs' goodwill arc as follows:
Cash-generating unit 2014 2013
Refining 21,466 -
Dyneff 5,468 -
Other 2,188 -
Total goodwill 29,122 ~

Impairment loss on goodwitl recognized in the 2014 consolidated statement of comprehensive income was attributable
to impairment in the ofl and gas and energy scgments in the amount ol 106,620 million tenge, which is mainly
altributable to impairment of goodwill of NC KMG and Samruk-Energy JSC in the amount o’ 30,745 million lenge and
75,875 millien tenge, respectively (2013 4,945 miliion tenge).

¥or the detailed discussion of testing geodwill tor impairment refer Lo Nofe 4.
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“Sovercign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated lInancial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT YENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following tables illustrate aggregate financial information of individually insignificant joint ventures (the Group’s
proportional inlerest):

in mitlions of tenge 2014 2013
Carrying amount of invesiments as at December 31 127,673 174,234
Net (loss}profit for the year from confinuing operations {18,988} 38,396
Profit after income tax for the year from discontinued operations - -
Other comprehensive income 2,855 941
Total comprehensive {loss)/income {16,131} 39,337

The following tables illustrate aggregate financial information of individually insignificant associates (the Group's
proportional interest);

In miflions of tenge 2014 2013
Carrying amount of investments as at December 31 111,648 76,649
Met profit for the year from continuing operations 5,469 &880
Profit after income tax for the year from discontinued operations - -
Other comprehensive incame 7.702 890
Total comprehensive income 13,171 1,570

In 2014 dividends received from individually insignificant joint ventures and associales were equal 1o
16.782 million tenge (2013: 16,776 million tenge).

The following table summarizes the movements in equity investments in joint ventures and associales in 2014 and
2013:

In mitions of tenge 2014 2013
Balance as at January 1 1,717,249 1,351,044
Share in profit of joint ventures and associates, net (Note 33) 457,095 542,434
Dividends received {361,001) {438,759)
Change in dividends receivable 18,990 14,118

Acquisitions 59,113 315,931

Disposals (Note 5) {209,945) (2,274)
Transfers to assets classified as held for sale {6,029) {16,081)
Foreign currency translation 116,241 8,966
Other comprehensive income, ather than foreign currency transiation 32,636 6,682
Transfer from financiai assets 122 865
Impaiment {11,760) {70,712)
Oiher changes in eguity of joint ventures and associates 123 5,127
Balance as at December 31 1,813,834 1,717,249

During 2013, the Group recognized an impairment loss of the investment in its associate, Kazzine LLP, in the amount
of 60,369 million tenge. The recoverable amount of (ks investment was determined based on the valuc in use by
discounting the uture net cash flows.

As al December 31, 2014, the Group's share in unrecognized losses of joint ventures and associales was cqual to
39.062 miltion tenge (2013: 24.823 miltlion lenge).
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“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samrak-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

As at December 31, loans to customers comprised the following:

In miflions of lenge 2014 2013
Loans to large entities 725,598 719,762
Loans to individuals - 331,368
Loans to small and medium business - 40,165
Net investments in finance lease 16,103 9,041
Cther loans 483 4,117
Total loans 742,184 1,104,443
Less: impairment allowance {11,722} {207,560)
l.oans to customers, net 730,462 886,883
Less: current portion {458,473} {245 800)
Non-current portion 271,989 647,083

Movements in the loan impairment atiowance were as [ellows [or the years ended December 31:

in milfions of fange 2014 2013
Allowance at January 1 207,560 1,071,993
Charged, net 21,007 118,864
(Written-off)/reinstated/, net {210,037} 231,220
Transfers to assels classified as held for sale {5,794} {1,114,4191)
Foreign exchange difference 38,436 35,200
Discontinued operations {40,450} {135,306)
Allowance at December 31 11,722 207,560

As at December 31 the compenents of net investments in finance lease are as follows:

In mifions of tenge 2014 2013
Within one year 2,658 1,653
Later than one year, but not tater than five years 10,590 6,611
After five years 22,844 11,291
Minimum lease paymentis 36,092 19,555
Less: unearned finance income {19,989} {10,514)
Net investment in finance leases 16,103 9,041

.  AMOUNTS DUE FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

As at December 31 amounts due [rom credit institutions comprised the following:

In miflions of fenge 2014 2013
Bank deposits 1,478,695 1,356,231
Loans to credit institutions 359,908 218,333
Amounts due from credit institutions, net 1,838,604 1,574,564
Lass: current portion (1,146,227} __..{1,291,888)
Nen-current portion 892,377 282,876
in millions of tenge 2014 2013
10 largest local banks 1,139,729 987,137
Other tocal credit institufions 285,215 189,063
International credit institutions ) 413,660 368,364

1,838,604 1,574,564
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“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continucd)

11, AMOUNTS DUE FROM CREDIT INSTITUTHONS (continued}

In miflions of tenge 2014 2013
Ratings from AAA (Aaz) io AA-(Aa3) 33,167 -
Rating from A+(A1} to A-{A3) 329,269 258,009
Rating from BBB+{Baa1} to BBB(Baa2} 47,343 125,132
Rating from BBB-(Baa3) to BB-(Ba3) 176,117 210,795
Rating from B+{B1) to B-(B3) 1,034,699 973,206
Rating from CCC+{Caa1} to D{D) 3,105 2,384
Rating is not defined 214,904 4,048

1,838,604 1,574,564
In mittions of tenge 2014 2013
Amounts due from credit institutions, denominated in tenge 973,040 884,287
Amounts due from credit institutions, dencminated in US dollars 862,119 689,287
Amounts due from credit institutions, dencminated in other currencies 3,445 990

1,838,604 1,574,564

As at December 31. 2014 the weighted average interest rate on amounts duc from credit institutions was
5.15% (2013: 4.68%).

As at December 31, 2014 amounts due from credit institutions include cash in the amount of 47.082 million tenge
pledged as collateral Tor certain Group's borrowings (2013: 38,217 million tenge).

12. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at December 3 | other financial assets comprised the [allowing:

in millions of tenge 2014 2013
Note receivable from shareholder of joint venture 18,466 17,192
Note receivable from associate 28,238 22,412
Available for sale financial assets, including 138,078 132,058
Equity securities 111,297 92,054
Bonds of Kazakhstan financial agencies 15,265 18,177
Treasury bills of the Ministry of finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan 10,519 22,911
Corporate bonds: 1,009 925
Less: impairment allowance {12) {9}
Including financial assets subject lo repurchase agreements - 9,832
Held to maturity financiat assets, including 1,966 1,895
Corporate bonds - 312
Bonds of Kazakhstan financial agencies 1,966 1,883
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, intcluding 7,447 6,431
Treasuwry bills of the Ministry of finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan - 4,497
Bonds of Kazakhstan financial agencies - 169
Corporate bonds - 1
Other eguity securities 7,447 1,764
Derivative financial instruments, including 12,480 46,427
Options 1,375 46,427
Currency swaps 4,678 -
Other 6427 -
Total financial assets 208,675 226,515
Less: current portion {26,358} {81,951)
Non-current portion 180,317 144,564

As ab Becember 310 2014 the interest rates for available-lor-sale [inancial assets were in the range from 4% to
13% { Deeember 31, 2013 from 2.3% to 17.4%).
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“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

12. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSE'TS (continued)

As at December 31 other tinancial assets by currency, exeept lor derivatives, comprised:

In miffions of fenge 2014 2013
Financial assets denominated in tenge 146,410 139,562
Finzncial assets denominated in US dollars 47,785 40,526

194,195 180,088

Equity seenrities {available for sale financial assets) — shares of “Toshiba Nuclear Energy Holdings (US} Inc.” and
“Toshiba Nuclear Energy Holdings UK Ltd"

In 2607, NAC KAP acquired 400 Class A common shates of Toshiba Nuctear Energy Holdings US. [nc. ("TNENH-US™)
for 400,000 thousand US dollars rom Toshiba Nuclear Energy [nvestments US Inc. [n addition. NAC KAP acquired
149 Class A  common shares of Toshiba Nuclear Energy Holdings UK Ltd  ("TNEH-UK™) for
140,000 thousand US doliars from Toshiba Nuclear Energy Investments UK Ltd. Through the acquisition of 406 Class
A common shares of TNEH-US and 140 Class A common shares of TNEH-UK NAC KAP acquired a 10% interest in
these entities. TNEH-US and TNEH-UK. own 100% inlerest in Westinghouse Group (~Weslinghouse™).

In connection and simultanecusly with the acquisition of interest in TNEM-US and TNEN-UK, NAC KAP entered into
a pul oplion agreement {the “Pul Option™). The Put Option provides NAC KAP with an option to sell its shares to
Toshiba Corporation for 100% of the eriginal purchase price of 540,000 thousand US dellars for the first 67% of shares
and 90% of the original purchase price for the remaining 33% of shares resulting in 2 (otal estimated exercise price of
522.180 thousand US dollars, if certification is not received rom Westinghouse of fuel assembly production by Ulba
Metallurgical Plant ISC {a subsidiary of NAC KAP). In addition to the Put Option agreement at the end of
2012 NAC KAP and Toshiba Corporation signed an agreement under which NAC KAP can usc the Pul Option uniil
February 28, 2018. The Pul Oplion was not exercised by NAC KAP at December 31, 2014,

In connection and simullancously with the acquisition of interest in TNEH-US and TNEH-UK. NAC KAP entered inlo
& call oplion agreement (the “Call Option™}. The Call Optien provides Toshiba Corporation with the right to demand
from NAC KAP the sale of its TNEH-US and TNEH-UK shares if the Committee on Foreign [nvestment of the United
States decides that NAC KAP is no longer a sirategic partner. In such case, the (air value of NAC KAJ”'s shares will be
determined by an independent international appraiser. The Call Option was not exercised by Toshiba Corpotration at
December 31, 2014,

The Group has classified this investment as available Tor sale as this best reflects the intention of the Group and ability
1o hold the investment for the long term. [nvestments in TNEH-US and TNEHN-UK arc carried al cost beeause these
investments are equily in a private company (or which [air value cannoi be reliably measured.

Al each reporiing dalc management assesses whether there are impairment indicators of investmenis at cosl
Management determined that no impairment indicators exist as at Decermber 31, 2014 {20131 no impairment indicators),

As at December 31, 2014 carrying amourl of these investments was equal to 06,005 million tenge (2013:
66,005 million of lenge).

Equiny securities (available for sale financial asseis) — shares af Kazkommertsbunk JSC

On August 12, 2014 and August 29, 2014 Kazkommertsbank JSC partially realized its right lor exceution ol the option
and acquired back 51,000,000 and 29.000,000 its common shares for 473.3667 1enge per share. The tolal amount of
buyback was equal to 38.029 million tenge.

As al December 31, 2014 the remaining amount of the Fund stakc in KKB common shares was equal lo
83,517,241 shares. As at December 31, 2014 the fair value of shares of Kazkommerisbank was egual 1o
35.062 millior lenge (2013: 23.237 million tenge).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

As at December 31 other non-current assets comprised the following:

in miflions of tenge 2014 2013
Advances paid for non-current assets 286,358 302,517
Long-term VAT receivable 126,583 62,997
Long-term receivables {Note &) 75,660 8,585
Prepaid expenses 20,856 23,548
Restricted cash 17,885 12,544
Assets for szle to the Shareholder 12,808 14,148
Long-term inventories 8,717 8,886
Other 83,885 56,311
Less: impairment allowance (27,879} (27,650)
605,071 461,896

As at December 31, 2014, advances paid for non-curgent assels are mainly represenied by advances paid for
construction and purchase of property, plant and equipment.

i4. INVIENTORIES

As at December 31 inventories comprised the following:

In mitfions of tenge 2014 2013
Oil refined products for sale 75,458 66,162
Uranium products 37,314 27,575
Production materials and supplies 33,014 34,627
Work in process 31,437 37.832
Crude oil 29,445 49,514
Goods for resale 25,038 18,859
0il and gas indusiry materials and supplies 23,176 15,884
Fuel 22,203 15,992
(Gas processed products 13,853 8213
Railway materiats and supplies 12,631 14,457
Aircraft spare parts 5,687 5,364
Uranium industry materials and supplies 3,649 2,049
Telecommunication equipment spare paris 3,573 2,836
Electric transmission equipment spare paris 2,595 1,693
Owned bid security - 9,351
Other materials and supplies h5,396 58,622
Less: write-down {o net realizable valug {18,955) {20,430}
355,515 346,300

15, TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As at December 31 trade accounts receivable comprised the lollowing:

In millions of fenge _ 2014 2013

Trade accounts receivable 354,948 397,899

Less: allowance for doubtful debts {40,199) {36,630}
314,749 361,069

64



“Sovereign Weaith Fund “Samruk-Kazyna™ JSC Conselidated linancial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15.  TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

As al Becember 31 other current assets comprised the following:

in millions of tenge 2014 2013
Assets for distribution to the Shareholder 77,811 70,627
Advances paid and deferred expenses 75,836 54,901
Other accounts receivable 45,491 39,328
Other prepaid taxes 37,401 22,348
Restricted cash 7,587 11,991
Amounts due from employees 4,875 5,107
Dividends receivabile 3,702 21,319
Other 25,808 17,515
Less: impairment allowance {33,759) {32,118}
244,762 211,020

Al December 31, 2014 the Group®s receivables amounting 10 32.333 million lenge were pledged under loan agreements
{2013: 91.914 million tenge).

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade accounts receivable and impairment allowance for other
current assets were as follows:

In miflions of tenge 2014 2013
Reserve at January 1 68,746 64,416
Change in estimate 282 (212)
Charged, net 9,047 8,362
Foreign currency transiation 4,159 1,455
Reinstatement/{write-off), net {28,921) 14,917
Transfers to assels classified as held for sale (34 (18,822}
Acquisition through business combinations 3,491 486
Loss of control gver subsidiary 17,188 {1,418)
Allowance at December 31 73,958 68,746

At December 31, 2014 the Group’s receivables in the amount of 7,003 million tenge were interest bearing (2013:
7.683 million tenge).

As at December 31 the ageing unalysis ol trade accounts reccivable is as follows:

Past due but not impaired

Neither past

due nor 3060 80-90 90-120
In mitlions of tenge Total impaired <30 days days days days >»120 days
2014 314,749 239,790 17,182 15,425 8,293 7,170 26,919
2013 361,069 308,408 22,816 15,282 3,915 1,974 8,676

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at December 31 cash and cash equivalents comprised the following:

inmifiens oftenge ... 2014 . 2013
Bank deposits — US dollars 559,049 171,099
Bank deposits — tenge 229,167 230,131
Bank deposits — other currency 5,285 15,610
Current accounts with banks — tenge 267,300 186,814
Current accounts with banks — US dollars 148,609 92,6564
Current accaunts with banks —~ other currency 16,031 17,364
Cash on hand 3,308 13,800
Cash in transit 3,000 359
Reverse repurchase agreements with ather banks with
contractual maturity of three months or less 2,556 3,153
1,234,305 740,994
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {continued}

Short-term deposits arc placed for varying periods of beiween 1 (one) day and 3 {ihree) months, depending on
immediate cash needs of the Group. As at December 31, 2014 the weighted average interest rates for bank term deposits
and currenl accounts were 3.42% and 0.66%. respectively {2013: 3.73% and 1.18%).

17, EQUITY

17.1  Share capital

During 2014 and 2013 the Fund issued common shares, which were contributed as follows:

Number of shares Share capital,
authorized and Par value per in miflions of
Payment for shares issued share, in tenge tenge
As at December 31, 2012 3.481,626,139 4,409,314
Cash contributions a1,0040,
39,320 1,000,000 39,320
Contributions of state-owned shares 1,000;
27,073 1,000,000 26,234
Contributions of property 422,451,
615,821;
9,809 1,000,000 8,808
As at December 31, 2013 3,481,602,341 4,484,676
Cash contributions 18,306,639;
10,000 7,000,000 103,918
Contributions of state-owned shares 1,506,930;
1,400 10,573,010 13,895
Caontributions of property 1,200,354; 18,073
2,772,683;
9,893 2,522,901
As at December 31, 2014 3,481,623,134 4,620,562

As at December 31, 2014 3.481.623,734 shares were {ully paid (2013: 3.481.602,341 shares).
2614

Cash contributions

During 2814 in accordance with the Law ol the Republic of Kazakhstan on the Republican budget for 2014-2016 dated
Drecember 3. 2013 and in accordance with amendments in the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan on the Republican
budgel [or 20114-2016 dated November 7, 2014 the Shareholder made a cash contribution of 103,918 million tenge to
the Fund's share capital. This amount was intended to finance projeets of the Fund’s subsidiaries.

Conributions of state-owned shaves

During 2014 the Sharcholder acquired 9,375,000 additionally issued common shares of National Company ~Kazakhstan
Engineering™ JSC (*Kazenginecring™} in the amount ol 9,375 miilion ienge. As a resull of the transaction, the stake of
the Government in this company increased from 0% to 43.05%. On December 15, 2014, in accordance with the
Resolulion of the Governiment daled Seplember 26. 2014, 43.65% ol statc-owned shares of Kazenginecring were
transferred to the Fund as contribution to ils share capital, at [air value al the acquisition date in the amount ol
13.745 million 1enge. Since the transfer of shares ol Kazengineering represents business combination of entities under
common control. the excess of fair value of shares over issued share capital of Karzengineering in the amount of
4,370 million tenge was recorded as a decrease in retained earnings of the Fund.

On November 28, 2014, in accordance with the Resolution of the Government dated June 3. 2014, the Sharcholder
conlributed 49% of “Management Company of Speeial Eeonomie Zone™ National Industrial Petrochemiecal Technopark™
ISC lo the share capital of the Fund at lair value at the acquisition date in the amount of {50 million tenge,

Contributions of property

During 2014 in accordance with the Resolutions of the Government dated Scplember 14, 2018 and September 6, 2013, the
Sharcholder contributed high. medium and low pressure gas pipelines and accompuanying conslructions, localed in
Kostanay and West-Kazakhstan oblasts (or the total amount of 10.613 million tenge. The excess of issued shares over
lair value ol gas pipelines in the amount ol 28 million lenge was recorded as a decrease in retained carnings of the
Fund,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continucd)

17. EQUITY (continued)

17.1 Share capital {continued)
2014 {continued)

Contributions of properfy (contirwed)

In 2014, in accordance with the Resolution of the Government dated September 14, 2010, the Shareholder contributed
technical property complex and land in Aklobe, and a substation Akzhar-2 with the fair valuc of 7,116 millien lenge., The
excess of [air value of issued shares over property in the amount of 342 million tenge was recorded as a decrcase in
retained carnings.

013

Cuash contributions

During 2013 in accordance witl the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan on the Republican budgel (or 2013-2015 dated
November 23, 2012 the Shareholder made a cash contribution of 39,320 miltion tenge to the Fund’s share capital. This
amounl was iniended to finance projects ol the Fund’s subsidiaries.

Contributions of state-owned shares

In accordance with the Resolution of the Government of 1he Republic of Kazakhstan No, 1538 dated Decernber 4. 2012,
on July 26, 2013 stale-owned shares of “National Compuny “Aktau International Commercial Scaport”™ ISC were
translerred 10 the Fund. Since the transfer of shares of “National Company “Aktau Internationat Commercial Seaport™
JSC represents business combination of entitics under common control, these consolidated financial statements were
prepared using accounting method of predecessor company. Accordingly, these consolidated financial stalemen(s were
presenied as if the shares of “National Company “Aktau International Cemmerciai Scaport™ 1SC wete transferred at the
beginning of the carliest presented period and, as a result, relevant comparative information was restated. The carrying
amount of contributed rict assets in these consolidated financial sialements was recorded as adjustment ol relained
earnings. which subsequently, during issuc of the Fund's shares. were transferred to the share capilal in the amount of
26,234 million Lenge.

Contribuiions of property
During 2013 in accordance with the Resolution of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhslan No. 939 dated
September 14, 2010, the Sharcholder contributed property for the total amount of 9,808 million tenge.

17.2 Discount on loans Trom the Government

2014

In lune 2014 the Fund received below-market loans from he Ministry of finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan,
Discount at initial recognition of these borrawings in the amount of 12,363 million tenge was recognized as oneg-ofT
pain in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

2013

In January 2013 the Fund placed coupon bonds at markel intcrest rates. which were purchascd by the National Bank of
the Republic of Kazakhstan and reccived a loan from the Government at below-markel rate. Discount at initial
recognition of these borrowings in the amount ol 249.828 million tenge was recognized as gain on initial recognition in
the consolidated slalement of changes in equily (Nate 19).

17.3 Dividends

Dividends attributable to equity holder of the Parent

On October 24, 2014 the Fund paid dividends to the Sharcholder in the amount of 9.077 million tenge based on
financial results for 2013 according o the Resolution of the Governmenl dated October 20. 2014 {2013:
9.077 million Lenge).
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17.  EQUITY (continued)
17.3  Dividends (continued)

Dividends anributable to non-controlling interest

In 2014 ihe Group declared dividends in the amount of 49,543 million ienge and 4,193 million lenge to the holders of
noa-conirolling interest in KMG EP and KTQ, respectively (2013: 40,591 million tenge, 14,919 million tenge and
2,885 million tenge to the holders of non-controlling interest of KMG EP, Kazakhtelecom JSC and K'TO, respectively).,

In 2004 tlotal dividends paid to olher non-controlling interest were equal 1o 4,660 million tenge (2013:
2.326 million tenge).

17.4 Other transactions with the Shareholder

2414

In 2014 the Concession Agreement of ICA (the subsidiary of NC KMG) with the Government was lerminaled. and the
total amount of capitalised improvements made by the Group {o Lhe gas pipelines managed under the Concession
Agreement were transferred Lo the Government with the net book value of 83,177 million tenge (Note 37).

In 2014, in accordance with the exchange agreement concluded in 2013, the Sharehelder transferred gas pipelines
previously used by [CA under the Concession agreement to the Fund at their [air value of 207,115 million tenge
{Note 37).

In 2014 the Group recognized provision on oncrous obligation, related to unprofitability of construction of special
economic zone Chemical Park Taraz, in the amount of 16,881 million lenge. as a deerease in retained carnings. The
amount of provision was determined as excess of cumulative planned investments in the projecl over its recoverable
amount (Nofe 22).

[n 2014 the Group recognised dillerence belween issucd share capital and fair value of pipelines received from the
Sharehoider, in the amount of 1,838 million {enge as a decrease in relained earnings.

Also, during 2614, (he Group received other property (rom the Sharcholder in the amount of 721 million tenge,

2013

In accordance with the (rust nranagement agreements with the right of [ull control over the development institutions.and
lnancial organizations (Lntreprencurship Development Fund “Damu™ JSC, Kazyna Capital Management JSC, 12xport-
Credit Insurance Corporation “KazExportGarant™ JSC. Investment Fund of Kazakhstan JSC, Development Bank ol
Kazakhstan JSC}, SK-Pharmacy LLP and Doszhan Temir Zholy ISC concluded in April 2013 the Fund lost control
over these entities. The Fund recognized disposal of these subsidiaries and recorded as Other transactions with the
Shareholder in the amount of 471711 miliion tenge in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

[n July 2013, for the purposes of execution o the Resolulion of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated
May 25. 2013 No 516 ~On measures of implementation of the Decree of the President of the Republic of Kazakhstan
dated May 22. 2013 No 571 “On cerlain measures to optimize the management system of development institutes and
develep the national economy™. the Fund and the Stale property and privatization comumittee of the Ministry of finance
ol the Republic ol Kazakhstan signed the exchange agreement whereby Lhe title on shares and interest in the above
entities were transferred Lo the state ownership in exchange for the state property in accordance with the list attached to
the Government Resolution,

Also. in accordance with the above exchange agreement. the litle on shares in “National Geoelogical Company
“Kazgeology™ ISC was lransferred 1o the stale ownership in exchange lor the state property in accordance with the list
attached 1o the Governmenl Resolution. The Fund recognized dispoesal of National Geological Company “Kazgeology™
ISC and recorded as Other transactions with the Sharcholder in the amount of 8,966 million tenge in the consolidated
slatement of changes in cquity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

17. EQUITY {eontinued)
17.5 Other distributions to the Sharcholder
2014

Acquisition of interest in KTA

Bruring 2014 the Group made a slep acquisition of 49% of interest in KTM (Nofe 5}, the existing 51% joint venture,
from TPAQ and increased ils participation interest in K'TM to 100%. The excess of fair value of consideration over fair
value of net assels of KTM and loss on remeasurement of existing share in the amount of 26,916 millica tenge as at
acquisition datc was recognized as other distributions to the Sharcholder due 1o the fact that the acquisition was made in
accordance with the instructions of the Shareholder,

Consiruction and transfer of fixed assets

In 2014 the Group entered into an additional irrevocable commitment with the Shareholder for the construction of the
mullifunclional lee Palace and, as a result, recognized other distributions to the Shareholder in the amount of
23.596 million tenge, which is equal to the amount ol the additional construciion cosls.

In 2014 the Group entered into an additional irrevocable commitment with the Shareholder for financing ol the
construction of the Concert Hall (Choreography Theatre) and recognized other distributions to the Sharcholder in the
amount of 10,760 million tenge.

In 2014, the Group reduced a provision [or reconstruction of the trade and exhibition center in Moscow city by
2,979 million tenge and provision for conmstruction of the Mislory Museum of Kazakbstan in Astana by
2,088 million lenge. Also, the Group increased provision for construction of kindergartens and Youth Palace “Zhastar™
in Astana for the amount of 2,487 million lenge and 1.145 million tenge, respectively.

[n 2014, in zccordance with thc Agrcement between the Governmient of the Republic of Karzakhstan and the
Government of the Kyrgyz Republic, the Group provided funds for the construction of schools in Kyrgyz Republic in
the amount ol 1,201 miliion tenge.

[n 2014 the Group recognized a provision Lo donate to Mangistau local authoritics social lacilitics in the amount of
314 million tenge.

Sponsorship under the Shareholder's request

During the year ended December 31, 2014 in accordance with the resolutions ol the Sharcholder, the Group provided
sponsorship in the lotal amount ol 33,315 million lenge lor financing social. cultural and sporting aclivilies thal were
recognized as Other distributions (o the Sharcholder. [n 2014, the Group reversed other distributions (o the Sharcholder
in the amount of 638 million lenge.

2013

Transfer of shares of Kazakhmys Plc

On Junc 6, 2013 the Fund transferred conunon shares of Kazakhmys Ple {58.876,793 shares} to the state ownership. by
their transfer Lo the State property and privalization commiltee ol the Minisiry of linance ol the Republic of Kazakhstan,
The Fund derecognized its investiments in Kazakhmys Ple that were previously clussified as available for sale financial
assets in the amount of 44.069 million tenge and reclassified accumulated revaluation reserve for available for sale
financial assels in the amount of 67.856 million tenge. The lransaction was recognized as Other distributions to the
Shareholder in the amount of 111,925 millien tenge in the consolidated statement ol changes in equity.
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7. EQUITY {confinued)}
17.5 Other distributions fo the Shareholder (continued}
2013 (continued)

Construction and transfer of fixed assets

In 2013, the Group increased a provision [or reconstruction of the trade and exhibition center in Moscow cily by
3.433 million tenge and provision for costs to be incurred on construction of the History Museum ol Kazakhstan in
Astana by 23,55t million tenge, respectively.

On June 27, 2013 the Interdepartmental Commission. for the development of oil, gas and energy industries decided to
retain the North-Caspian environmental oif spill response base with the Group. Based on this decision, in 2013 the
Group reversed other distributions to the Sharcholder in the amount of 13,537 million tenge recognized in 2012,

tn eccordance with the development plan for Schuchensko - Borovskoi resort area approved by the Government, the
Group is obliged ta build a golf club in this resort area. The cost of construction and the recoverable amount of this
project were estimated in the amoeunt of 19.573 million tenge and 6.252 mitlion tenge. respectively, The difference of
[3.321 million lenge belween the estimated cost of construction and the recoverable amount was recognized as Other
distributions to the Shareholder in the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended December 31, 2013,

Sponsorship under the Shaveholder's request

During the year ended December 31, 2613 in accordance with the Resolution of the Government, the Group provided
sponsorship in the 1otal ameunt of 8,841 million tenge for financing social, culiural and sporting activilies that were
recognized us Other distributions Lo the Shareholder.

17.6  Change in ownership intérests of subsidiaries — acquisition by non-controlling interest

Alliance Bank JSC

in May 2014 the Fund compleled transaction on sale of 16% of common and preferred shares of Alliance Bank to Mr.
Bulat Utemuratov, As a resull ol the transaction, the Group received cash in the amount of §,491 million lenge, non-
controlling interest decreased by 9,370 mitlion tenge, and the difference in the amount of 10,861 million tenge was
recognized in equity attributable to equity holder of the Parent of the Fund.

National Company “Kazakhstan kngineering” JSC

In 2014 the Government made a contribution 1o the share capital ol Kazengineering, which resulied in a decrease of the
Fund’s stake from 100% 1o 36.35% (Note 17.1). As a result of the transaction, the Group received 9,375 million tenge,
non-controlling interest increased by 12,853 million tenge, and the difference in the amount of 3,478 million tenge was
recognived as # decrease in retained carnings. Later in 2014, 43.65% of state-owned shares of Kazengineering were
translerred to the Fund as contribution to its share capital (Netes [7.1, 17.7).

“Kazakhstem Electricity Grid Operating Company” JSC

On December 19. 2014 (he Group placed 25.999.999 common shares of “Kazakhstan Electricity Grid Operating
Company™ JSC (*KEGQC™) at a price ol 305 tenge per share at the Kazakhstan Stock Ixchange under the *People’s
IPO™ program. As a resull of share issue. the Group received proceeds of 12,438 million tenge, net of transaction costs
of 692 million tenge, non-controlling interest increased by 15,182 million tenge. and the difference in the amount of
2,744 million lenge was recognized as a decrease in retained earnings.
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17. EQUITY (continoed)
177  Change in ownership inferests of subsidiaries — aequisition of'nun-controlling interest

Aecquisition of non-controlling interest in Moinak HPS

On lune 16, 2614 the Group acquired non-controlling interest in Moinak HPS from Birlik J8C, a minority sharcholder.
As a result of the transaction, the Group paid an amount of 18,350 million tenge, non-controlling inlerest increased by
1.813 millien tenge. and the dilference in the amount of 20,163 million lenge was recogrized as a decrease in retained
earnings.

Transfer of state-ovwned shares of National Company “Kazakhstan Engineering” JSC

In 2014 the Shareholder transferred 43.65% of state-owned shares of Kazengineering 10 the Fund (Nete 17.1), and the
Group reversed the acquisition by non-controlling interest in the amount of 9.373 million ienge (Note 17.6). As a result
of the transaction, non-controlling intercst decreased by 14,176 million tenge, and the adjustment in the amount of
4,801 million lenge was recognized as an increase in retained earnings.

Acquisition of additional sharve of interest in "Masalskiy Gorno-Obogatitelniy Combinat” LLP (MGOC)

On July 2014 the Group acquired 30% interest in MGOC [rom National Company “SPK Essyl”, for the consideration
of 220 million tenge. and incressed its participation interest in MGOC to 93%. As a resull, non-controlling interest
decreased by 1.803 miilion tenge. and the difference between consideration paid and non-controlling interest in the
amount of 1,583 million tenge, was recorded as increase in retained earnings in the consolidatled statement of changes in
equity.

Other changes in ownership of subsidiaries

During 2014 other changes in ownership interests of subsidiaries resulted due to acquisition ol non-controlling inicrest
and restlted in deerease of non-controlling interest by 1,124 million tenge and decrease of cquity attributable to equity
holder of the Parent by 285 million tenge.

17.8 Non-controlling interest

The following tables illusirate information of subsidiaries in which there is significant non-controlling interests:
Non-controtling interest

Country of 2014 2013
incorporation Carrying Carrying
and operafion Share amount Share amount

KazMunayGas Exploration Production JSC Kazakhstan 36.79% 492,634 36.7B% 504,355
Kazakhtelecom JSC Kazakhstan 49.00% 137,606 49.00% 135,445
KazTransOfl JSC Kazakhstan 10.00% 36,195 10.00% 34,452
Rompetrol Downstream S.R.L. Romania 45.37% 24,793 45.37% 20,437
Air Astana JSC Kazakhstan 49.00% 24,065 49.00% 23,123
Rompetrel Rafinare S.A. Romania 45.37% 140 45.37% 24,470

715,433 742,282
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“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidaled financial stalements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

17.  EQUITY (continued)

17.9 Currency translation reserves

The currency translation reserve is vsed to record exchange dilferences arlsing from the translation of {inancial
statements of the subsidiaries. whose funclional currency is not lenge and whose financial statements are included in the
consolidaied financial statements.

17.10 Other capital reserves

Other capital reserves include the effect of cash flow hedge accounting to record any fair value gains or losses on the
designated derivative financial instraments in a hedging reserve within equity. These gains or losses are subsequently
recycled to the profit and oss as transactions are settled.

Other capilal reserves also include remuncration of employees for the services rendered in the form of share-based
payments with equity instruments of & subsidiary in which they are employed. The cost of equity-settled remunerations
is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in other capital reserves, over the period in which performance
and/or service conditions are Tulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award.

17.11 Book vatue of shares

[n accordance with the decision of the Exchange Board of the Kazakhsian Stock Exchange JSC (“KASE™) dated
Qctober 4, 2010 financial statements shall disclose book value per share (common and preferred) as of the reporting
dale, caleulated in accordance with the KASL rules.

In miflions of tenge 2014 2013
Tota) assets 16,637,674 15,294,489
Intangible assets {334,289) {284,325}
Total liabilities {8,505,598B) (7,787,897}
Net assets for common shares 7,797,789 7,222,267
Number of common shares as at December 31 3,481,623,734 3,481,602.341
Book value per common share, tenge 2,240 2,074

18. BORROWINGS

As at December 31 borrowings, including interest payable. comprised the following:

in mittions of tenge e 2042013
Fixed interest rate borrowings 4,575,675 2,551,882
Weighted average interest rate 6.51% 68.98%
Variable interest rate borrowings 1,066,587 1,422,484
Weighied average interast rate 3.56% 4.38%
5,642,262 3,974,366
Less: amounts due for settlement within 12 months (1,313,236} {607,838)
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 4,329,026 3,366,527
In miffions of tenge o 2014 2013
US doliar-denominated borrowings 4,029,8%4 3,327,141
Tenge-denominated borrowings 1,413,127 539,555
Other currency-denominated borrowings 199,241 107,670
5,642,262 3,874,366

Under the 1erms and conditions of some loan agreements. respective subsidiaries of the Group are obliged 1o comply
wilh certain covenants. Al December 31, 2014 and 2013, Group management believes that the Group's subsidiaries
complied with all such covenants.
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“Sovereiga Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

18. BORROWINGS (continued)
Lffect of disposal of subsidiaries

As at reporting date the Group had bonds aequired by BTA Bank and Alliance Bank in the amount of 656,323 million
tenge and 106,820 million lenge, respectively. Before the disposal these bonds were eliminated as intergroup balances.
Afler the disposal the Group’s balance of honds payable increased,

Currency correction ¢ffect

Carrying amount of borrowings increased by 358,847 million tenge due to correction of tenge to US doltar in February
2614,

Credit facility of State China Development Bank

In January 2014, the Fund made a partial carly repayment of loans to the Stale China Developrent Bank in the amount
of 400 million US dollars (equivalent to 61,904 million tenge at the exchange rate as at the date of payment).

fsswance of bonds

In hune 2014 National Company NC KTZh issued 2 tranches of Eurobonds on Swiss Stock Exchange: 100,000
thousand Swiss [rancs (equivalent to 20,439 million tenge at the exchange rate as at the date of issue) wilh an interest
raie of 2.5390% per annum and maturity on June 20, 2019 and 185.600 thousand Swiss francs (equivalent 1o 37,814
million tenge at (he exchange rate as al the date of issue) with an interest rates of 3.638% per annum and melurity on
June 24, 2022,

In November 2014 NC KMG issued additional bonds on London Stock Exchange: 1 billion US dollars (equivalent of
180,870 million tenge at the exchange rate as al the date of issue) with the interest rate of 6.10% per annum maturing in
2044 and an offering price ol 98.631% of the nominal amount; 0,5 billion US dollars (equivalent to
90,435 million tenge at the exchange rate as al the date of issue) with the interest vate of 4.95% per annum maturing in
2025 and an offering price of 99.392% of the neminal amount.

Cither borrovrings

In 2014 NC KMG received a loan in the amount of 400,600 thousand US dollars (equivalent to 72.348 thousand tenge
al the exchange rate al the date of receipt) from OJSC “Sberbank Russia™ to tinance reconstruction of the oil refinery in
Shymbkent city.

During the year ended December 31. 2014 Atyrau Oil Refinery LLP ("ANPZ"). subsidiary of NC KMG. received a
foan in the amount of 233 million US dollars {cquivalent to 40.632 million tenge at the exchange rale at the date of
receipt) from Development Bank of Kazakhstan JSC under credit  facility agreement on  provision of
1,316 mitlien US dollars to finance the construction of the aromatic hydrocarbon complex.

In September 2014 NC K'TZh and its subsidiaries. Locomotiv and K'TZh Express. received 30.000 million lenge under
the credit line [rom EBRD.

In 2014 NC KMG in accordance with several loan agreements with Halyk Bank reeeived an amount of
24.053 million tenge.

As at December 31, 2014 the carrying amount of borrowings by subsidiaries of the Group is presented below:

tn milfions of fenge 2014 2013
The Fund 1,306,148 852,867
NC KMG and its subsidiaries 3,080,528 2,300,115
NC KTZh and its subsidiaries 689,327 514,371
NAC KAP and its subsidiaries 137,072 120,671
Samruk-Energy and s subsidiaries 188,249 146,424
Other subsidiaries 230,568 339,918

5,642,262 3,974,366
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“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Caonsolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

19. LOANS FROM THE GOVERNMENT OF THE REPUBLIC OF KAZAKHSTAN

As at December 31 loans from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan comprised the following;

In miflions of tenge 2014 2013
Bends purchased by the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan using

the assets of the National Fund 60,566 130,878
Bonds purchased by the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan 279,141 71,302
Loans from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan 74,037 66,378

413,744 268,558

Less: amounts due for setttement within 12 months {1,111} {71.342)
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 412,633 197,216
2014

Due to disposal of Alliance Bank the tolal amount of loans from the Government decreased by the amount of
71.009 million tenge.

[n order to acquire 30% equity interest in EGRES-1 (More 4) and 100% interest in Kazgidrotckhenergo LLP, in January
20i4 the Fund placed 300,000,000 coupon bonds with a nominal value of KZT 1,000 cach (otalling
KZT 300.600 million wilth maturity of 15 years and a coupon rate of 3% per annum, with eflective rate of 6.68%. Bonds
were acquired by the NBRK using assets of the National Fund ol the Republic of Kazakhstan. Discount on placement
was equal le 100,000 million tenge. Net cash receipts from the bond placement were equal to 200,000 million tenge that
approximates fair value of the bonds as ol the date of placement,

2013

In January 2013 the Fund placed 255,000,000 coupon bonds with nominal value of 1.000 tenge each for the total
amount of 255,060 miltion tenge, The maturity of bonds is 50 years, coupon interest at the amount o 0.01%. All bonds
werg purchased by the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhsian using the asseis of the National Fund of the
Republic of Kazakhstan based on the {rust management agreement. When initially recognized, these loans were
measured at [air value using appropriate markel interest rates effective for the IF'und as of the date of bonds issuc and
subsequently are carried at amortized cost. The dilterence between nominal cost of loans and their fair value in the
armount of 249,828 million tenge was recognized in the consolidated statement of changes in ¢quity.

As al December 31, 2014 effective inlerest rales on loans from the Government range from 6.27% to 6.36% per annum
(December 31, 2013: 5,5% Lo 6.62%).

20. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at December 31. 2014 other non-current liabilities included the following:

Pavables for acquisition of interest in the North-Caspian project

On Qclober 31, 2008 ali participants of the North-Caspian project (the “NCP™ or the “Project) signed an agreement
sccording to which all project participants except for KMG Kashagan B.V.. {00% subsidiary of NC KMG. agreed to
partially sell their interest in the project on proportional basis in order Lo increase the interest of KMG Kashagan B.V. in
NCP from 8.33% to 16.81% rclrospeetively from January 1. 2008, The acquisition cost consisted of lixed amount of
L.78 billion US dollars plus annual interest at LIBOR + 3%, which is annually capilalised within the principal amount,
This liabitity is pledged by the additional 8.48% intcrest acquired. As at December 31, 2014 the amoriized cost of this
payzable was equal 1o 396,345 million tenge (December 31, 2013: 322,330 million lenge).

The amount is payable in three equal annuai installments alter commercial oil production at Kashagan field staits.
During the year ended December 31, 2014 the Group re-assesscd start date of commercial production al Kashagan field
and moved it from September 30, 2014 Lo sceond half of 2016, As a result, part of the payable was reclassified back to
non-current liabilitics.

Az at December 31, 2014 the fair value of these obligations approximates their carrying amoun.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

21.  FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES
The Group has finance leases for various items of properly. plant and cquipment, mainly aircralt.

During 2012-2014 Air Aslana JSC, subsidiary ol the Group, acquired 11 (cleven} aircrafts under lixed interest finance
lcase agreements. The lease term for cach aircrall s 12 (twelve) years. Alr Astana JSC has the option 16 purchase each
aireralt for a neminal amount ai the end of the lease. Loans provided by financial institutions to the lessor in respect of 6
{six) new Airbus were guarantecd by Curopean Export Credit Apencies, while 3 (three) Bocing 767 aircrafls, which
were delivered in 2013 and 2014, were guaranteed by US Export Import Bank; 2 (lwo) Embracr aircrafls, which were
detivered in 2012 and 2013, were guaranteed by Brazilian Development Bank. Air Aslana J8C obligations under
finance leases are secured by the lessors” title to the leased assels with carrying amount of 88,501 million tenge (2013:
78.322 million tenge).

As at December 31, 2014 interest calculation was based on effective infcrest rates ranging [fom 3.09% to
19.7% (2013: from 3.02% Lo 19.7%).

As at December 31 future minimum leasc payments under [inance eascs together with the present value of the net
minimum lease payments comprised the Tollowing:

2014
Present value of
Minimum lease minimum fease

In miffions of tange payments payments
Within one year 20,768 15,802
Twe to five years inclusive 54,832 44,111
After five years 50,597 46,285
Less; amounts representing finance costs {15,999) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 106,198 106,198
Less: amounts due for seftlement within 12 months {15,802}
Amounts due for settiement after 12 months 90,396
2013

Present value of

Minimum lease minimum lease

In mifions of fenge paymenis paymenis
Within one year 17,881 13,698
Two fo five years inclusive 45798 37,027
After five years 43 889 37,855
Less; amounts representing finance cosis {18,888) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 88,680 88,6880
Less: amounts due for settlement within 12 months (13,698}
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 74,8982
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

22, PROVISIONS

As at December 31 provisions comprised the following:

Provision Provision
for for
environ- construc-
Asset mental fion of
retirement remedia- Provision social
In miftions of tenge obligations tion for taxes objects Other Total
Provision af January 1, 2013 63,583 34,808 8,749 127,944 19,430 260,514
Foreign currency translation 485 307 - - 135 927
Change in estimate {4,868) 847 - - {6,984} {11,005}
Unwinding of discount 3,517 1,338 - - 58 4,814
Provision for the year 4,840 3,158 18,082 27,593 32,100 85,574
Discontinued operations {804) - - - (1.438) {2,242)
Use of provision {1,032) {1,023) (6,048) (22.80M0 {2,203) {33,107}
Reversal of unused amounts (88) {243) {553} - {5,467} {6,351}
Provision at December 31, 2013 71,433 39,183 20,230 132,736 35,632 299,224
Foreign currency translation 4,275 2,878 229 - 739 8,121
Change in estimate 9,039 1,188 13 - {12,688} {2.448)
Unwinding of discount 5,507 1,247 - - 70 8,824
Provision for the year 40,560 46 10,938 31,775 38,426 121,745
Discontinued operations - {19 - - (63) {82)
Additicns through business
combinations 4,267 - 83 - - 2,098
Use of provision {1,093) {2,277) {13,040} {3,580} (20,941) {40,931)
Reversal of unused amounts - {57} {3,483} = {8,135) {11,675)
Pravision at December 31, 2014 130,988 42,199 15,718 160,931 33,040 382,876
Current portion and long-term portion are presented as [ollows:
Provision Provision
for for
environ- construc-
Asset mental tion of
retirement remedia-  Provision social
In milions of tenge obligations tion for taxes objects Other Total
Current portion 1,161 5,941 20,230 98,014 35,632 161,978
Leng-term portion 70,272 32,252 - 34,722 - 137,246
Provision at December 31, 2013 71,433 39,163 20,230 132,736 35,632 299,224
Current portion 1,047 9,148 5,880 104,314 33,040 153,428
Long-term pertion 129,941 33,051 9,838 56,617 - 229,447
Provision at December 31, 2014 130,988 42,199 15,718 160,931 33,040 382,876

Other provisions

In 2014 the Group recognized provision on onerous obligation. related 1o unprofitability of construction of special
economic zone Chemical Park Taraz, in the amount ol 16.881 million lenge (Note 17.4).
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“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna™ JSC Consolidated financial slatemenis

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

23.  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITY

State contribution scheme

The Group pays social tax according to the current statulory requirements in the Republic of Kazakhstan. Social tax and
payroll are expensed &s incurred,

The Group also withholds and contributes up o 10% Himit on contributions, from salarics of its employees as the
employee contribution to their cumulative pension linds. These amounts are expensed in the period they are incurred,
Defincd benefit plan

Employee benefit liabilitics under various plans are payable in accordance wilth collective agreements concluded
between certain subsidiaries of the Group (NC KMG, NC KTZh, Kazakhtelecom JSC, Samruk-Energy JSC. NAC
KAP, National Company Kazakhstan Engineering JSC and Kazpost JSC ) and employces of those subsidiaries
represented by their lubor unions.

As at December 31 total liability under the Group's defined benetit plan comprised the foilowing:

In millions of tenge 2014 2613
Present value of defined henefit obligation 68,851 60,285
Liability falling due within one year {5,726} ... {4,578}
Liabitity falling due after one year 61,125 55,717

A reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit plan liability with specified payments for the years ended
December 31 is as follows:

in millionz of tenge 2014 2013
Total liability at the beginning of the year 60,295 48,870
Current service cost 4,143 5,908
Past service cost 1,396 {2,455)
Interest cost 3,813 3,888
Benefits paid during the year (5.137) {4,667)
tUnrecorded past service cost 202 6,736
Actuarial loss recognized during the year 4,282 906
Fareign exchanges {1.874) -
Discentinued operations {279) -
Tatal liability at the end of the year 66,851 60,295

Tatal service cost, including current service cosl, interest vosl, past service cost. unrecorded past service cost and
actuarial loss. in the amount of 13,846 million tenge was recorded in the conselidated statement of comprehensive
income within personnel costs in 2014 (2013: 14,983 million lenge).

Estimates of the Group’s liabilities were made on the basis of published statistical date regarding mortality and actual
Group's data on number, age, gender and years of employee service. Other principal assumptions at the reporting date,
calculated as weighed average for all plans, were as follows:

2014 2013
Discount rate 7.01% 6.61%
Expected rate of increase of future annual financial assistance 4.73% 581%
Expected rate of increase of fiture annual minimum salary 5.71% 5.31%
Expected rate of increase of future annual railway ticket price 7.5% 7.7%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

24, OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

“As at December 31 other current liabitities comprised the following:

In mitlions of tenge 2014 2013
Other taxes payable 100,569 128,470
Advances received and deferred income 100,427 123,260
Due to employees 90,829 81,734
Payabie for the acquisition of interest in KazakTurkMunay LLP (Note 5) 13,700 -
Cther estimated liabilities 5,033 5,608
Dividends payable 4,037 18,057
Payable for the acquisition of additional interest in the North Caspian Project
(Note 20} - 107,444
Other 89,062 _ . 53042
373,647 517,515

25. REVENUE

Revenue comprised the following for the years ended December 31:

in millions of tenge 2014 2013
Sales of oil refined products 2,061,842 2,096,932
Railway cargo transportation 736,074 738,985
Sales of crude oil . 697,391 735,441
Oil and gas fransportation 287,376 261,803
Sales of uranium products 243,495 211,321
Etectricity complex 235,509 144 877
Sales of gas products 233,586 204,303
Telecommunication services 195,823 182,555
Air transportation 163,682 143,813
Railway passenger transportation 18,579 74,421
Electricity transmission services 75,821 70,687
Interast revente 53,441 47 423
Refined gold 42,425 -
Cil processing fees 38,948 -
Postai services 27,942 25,627
Sale of medicine - 24 548
Other revenues 324,535 312,024
Less: indirect taxes and commercial discounts (392,971} {295,988)
5,106,498 4,978,772

26. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

According to the Resolution of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan Ne, 1188 dated November 11, 2004
“On the approval of subsidies lor carrier losses related to provision of passenger transperiation™. beginning from
January 1, 2005, NC KTZh started 1o receive government granis as a compensation for carriers’ losses on sacially
important destinations. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingences attached to thesc grants. The amount of
subsidy for the year ended December 31, 2014 was equal to 24,638 million tenge (2013: 23,881 million tenge).

According to the Resolution ol the Government ol the Republic of Kazakhsian No. 1039 dated Oclober 7, 2004 “On the
approval of subsidics for teleccommunication operators losses connecled with the provision of universal
tclecommunication services in rural areas™. begiming from 4ih quarier of 2004, Kazakhiclecom JSC started to receive
government grants as compensation for operators’ losses on socially impertant services. There are no unfullilied
conditions or contingencies allached (e these grants. The amount of subsidy for the year ended December 31, 2014 was
equal o 6.277 million tenge (2013: 5,029 million lenge)

According to the Resolution of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan Na. 913 duled August 17, 2002, the
Government provides subsidics to companies rendering air passenger services on unprolitable routes from Astana lo
ather cities in Kazakhstan. ‘The subsidy is based on the excess of flight costs over revenue earncd. The amount of
subsidy [or the year ended December 31, 2014 was equal to 242 mitlion tenge (2013: 46 million Lenge).

Other government grants and subsidies for the year ended December 31, 2014, were cqual to 35 million tenge
(2013; 40 million lenge).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

27. COST OF SALES

Cosl of sales comprised the following for the years ended December 31:

in millions of tenge 2014 2013
Materials and supplias 2,039,034 2,144,838
Personnel costs 671,909 574,378
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 380,511 37,025
Production services received 139,101 124,830
Minerat extraction tax 103,338 97,698
Reprair and maintenance 79,791 84,073
interest expense 68,879 386,145
Gold raw materials 41,704 -
Rent 38,199 37,742
Cost of oil processing 28,993 -
Other 204,301 185,654
3,785,760 3,602,383
28.  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
General and administrative expenses comprised the following for the years ended December 31:
in mitlions of lenge 2014 2013
Personnel costs 155,748 144,252
Taxes other than income tax 50,023 46,374
Sponscrship and charitable donations 33,212 35,219
Depreciation and amottization 23,510 24,501
Consuiting services 22,888 19,675
Altowance for doubtful debis 10,217 7,232
Business trips 6,245 6,387
Rent 6,233 5,982
Repair and maintenance 5,133 3,783
Fines and penalties 638 2,026
Other 63,027 59,577
376,874 362,008
29,  TRANSPORTATION AND SELLING EXPENSES
Transportation and sclling expenses comprised the foilowing lor the vears ended December 31:
in millions of fenge 2014 2013
Rent tax 152,623 165,307
Custom duties 87,246 59 498
Transportation 61,364 59,358
Personnet costs 23,686 20,849
Depreciation and amortization 13,264 12,688
Commission fees to agents and advertising 11,814 8,887
Other 24,980 20,868
374,977 347 457
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

36. IMPAIRMENT LOSS

Impairment loss comprised the following for the years ended December 3 1:

in millions of fenge 2014 2013
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 330,548 73,360
Impairment of goodwill (Nofe 8) 106,620 4,945
Impairment of invesiments in joint ventures and associales {(Nofe 9) 11,760 61,427
Reversal of impairment of loans to customers {905) {69}
Other 7,762 13,166
455,785 152,829

31.  FINANCE COSTS

Finance cosls comprised the foltlowing for the years ended December 31:

in miflions of tenge 2014 2013
Interest on loans and debt securities issued 244,364 200,473
Unwinding of discount on provisions and cther payables 7,336 5,752
Interest on finance lease liabilities 5,766 4,215
Other 30,641 20,308

288,107 230,746

32. FINANCE INCOME

[inance income comprised the following lor the years ended 1december 31:

In millions of tenge 2014 2013

Interest income on amounts due from crédit institutions and cash and cash _
equivalents B4,778 61,690
Income from Ioans and financial assets 15,133 5,186
Unwinding of discount long-term receivables 6,088 2,464
Guaranteg income 5614 3,101
Dividend income - 2,051
Other 17,756 9,410
129,369 83,902

33. SHARE IN PROFIT OF JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES, NET

Share in prolil / {loss} of joint ventures and associates comprised the foliewing for the years ended December 3 1:

in milkions of tenge 2014 2013
Tengizchevroil LLP 315,828 285,808
Mangistau Investments B.\V. 56,939 56,519
JV KazGerMunay LLP 35,436 43,216
KazRosGas LLP 20,484 22,335
PetroKazakhstan Inc. 23,008 23,747
Valsera Holdings B.V. 6,971 (3,338)
JV KATCO LLP 6,766 10,339
JV Betpak Dala LLP 6,342 4,378
Ekibastuzskaya GRES-2 JSC (“EGRES-2") 5,128 9,016
Sekerbank T.A.S 4,964 6,298
Karatau LL#P 4,476 6,239
Ekibastuzskaya GRES-1 LLP {"EGRES-1") 4,033 16,277
Kazakhoil-Akiobe LLP 2,078 11,718
Kazzinc LLP 1,987 6,364
Kazakhstan-China Pipeline LLP {6,496) 12,048
CJSC “Cou {9,502) {662)
Beineu - Shymkent Pipaline LLP {13,861) (1,680
Other {16,487} 26,933
457,095 546,342
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“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

34.  NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS

On February 11, 2004 the NBRK ceased control over the exchange rate of tenge to US dollar. As a result, tenge
exchange rate was corrected against the US dollar and other major currencies. The exchange rales before and afier
devaluation were 155.56 tenge to | US dollar and 184.5 tenge to 1 US dallar, respeetively, which led to signilicant
foreign exchange gains and losses for the year ended December 31, 2014 (see also Note 37. point 1).

35,  INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expense comprised the lollowing for ihe years ended December 31:

I miliions of tenge 2014 2013

Current income tax expenses

Corporate incoma tax 136,838 145,016
Withholding tax on dividends and interest income 44,790 62,579
Excess profit tax 11,534 8,475

Deferred income tax expense/(benefit)

Corporate income tax (33,740) 30,781
Withholding tax on dividends and interest income 28,386 7.077
Excess profit tax {1,784} 5,126
Income tax expenses 186,024 259,054

As at December 31. 2014 and 2013 income tax loss carry forward is allowed for 10 (ten) years from the origin date of
the foss in the Republic of Kazakhstan.

A reconciliation of income lax expense applicable to profit before income tax at the statutory income tax rate (20% in
2014 and 2013) to income tax cxpenses was as follows for the years ended December 31

in millions of tenge 2014 2013

Accounting praofit before income tax from continuing operations 458,833 954,872

Accounting loss before incoms tax from discontinued cperations {29,373) (242,701)
Income tax expenses on accounting profit 85,892 142,434

Tax effect of other items, which are not deductible or assessable for taxation

purposes 92,232 55,466

Change in unrecognized deferred tax assets 41,539 74,964
Impairment of disposal group - 31,746

Excess profif fax 9,750 13,6014

Effect of different corporate income tax rates (9,071 15,929

Share in nontaxable profit of joint ventures and associates {43,059) {63,844)
Other differences _ 17,691 2,119
Total corporate income tax expenses 194,968 272 415

Less: income tax expense attributable to discontinued operations (8,944) {13,361)
Income tax expense from continuing operations 186,024 259,054
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“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna™ JSC Consclidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

36. CONSOLIDATION
Subsidiaries included in the consolidated {inancial statements are presented as follows:

Ownership percentage

2014 2013
1 National Company "KazMunayGas” JSG {*NC KMG") and subsidiaries 100.00% 100.00%
National Company "Kazakhstan Temir Zholy” JSC ("NC KTZh"} and
2 subsidiaries 100.00% 100.00%
National Atomic Company "Kazatomprom” JSC ("NAC KAP") and
3 subsidiaries 100.00% 100.00%
4 Samruk-Energy JSC (“Samruk-Energy”} and subsidiaries 100.00% 100.00%
Kazakhstan Electricity Grid Operating Company JSC (*KEGOC") and
5 subsidigries 90% + 1 100.00%
8 Kazpost JSC and subsidiaries 100.00% 100.00%
7 Kazakhtelecom JSC ("KTC") and subsidiaries 51.00% 51.00%
g Air Astana JSC ("Air Astana”) 51.00% 51.00%
Naticnal Company "Kazakhstan Engineering” JSC ("Kazakhstan
9 Engineering") and subsidiaries 100.00% 100.00%
10 Real Estate Fund "Samruk-Kazyna” JSC 100.00% 100.00%
11 National Mining Company “Tau-Ken Samruk” and subsidiaries 100.00% 100.00%
12 Linited Chemical Company LLP and subsidiaries {"UCC"} 100.80% 100.00%
13 Samyruk-Kazyna Invest LLP 100.00% 100.00%
14 Samruk-Kazyna Contract LLP 100.00% 100.00%
15 KOREM JSC 100.00% 100.00%
16 International Airport Atyrau JSC 100.00% 100.00%
17 internationat Airport Aktobe JSC 100.00% 100.00%
18 Airport Pavlodar JSC 100.00% 100.00%
19 Karagandagiproshaht and K LLP 90.00% 90.00%
20 SK Finance LLP 100.00% 100.00%
21 Kazakh Research Power Engineering Institute named after Chokin JSC 50% + 1 50% + 1
22 KGF IM 100.00% 100.00%
23 BTA Bank JSC ("BTA Bank”) and subsidiaries - 97.26%
24 Affiance Bank JSC {"Alliance Bank”) and subsidiaries - 67.00%
25  Temirbank JSC - 79.88%
26 KGF Maragement - 100.00%
27 KGF SLP - 100.00%
28 “Kazakh nuclear power plants” J8C 100.00% -
29 ‘Aviation Company "Air Kazakhstan® JSC 53.85% -
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“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samrok-Kazyna®” JSC Consolidated financial statemenis

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

37.  SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The follewing significant non-cash transactions during (he year ended December 31, 2014 have been excluded from the
consolidated statement of cash flows:

i Hedge of net Investments in certain subsidiaries classified as foreign operations against selected borrowings
denominated in US dollars. Effect of hedging was equal to 311.795 million tenge which was reclassified from
profits and losses to other comprehensive income as an exchange dilference on (ransiation of foreign operations;

2. Transfer of gas pipelines from the Sharcholder to the Fund in the amount of 207,113 million tenge (Nofe 17}

3. Transfer of capitalized leaschold improvements of gas transportation system in the amount of 83,177 million
lenge (Note 17.4);

4. Purchase of property, plant and equipment, which is not paid by the end of the reporting period in the lotal
amount of 91,966 million tenge;

5. Capltalization of an increase in provision for assets retirement obligations wilhin the carrying amount of
property. plant and equipment in the fotal amount of 49.677 million tenge:

6. Acquisition of a subsidiary, Shalkiva Zinc L.TD ISC, in exchange fof shares of BTA Bank in the amount of
31,000 million tenge fNofe GJ;

7. For the year ended December 31. 2014, the Group increased a provision related to expenses on construction of a
muiti-functional ice palace, Maancing of censtruction of a Concerl Tlall (Choreography theatre) and change in
cstimates on construction of other objects in the amount of 27.871 million tenge. The increase was recorded as
Other distributions to the Sharcholder (Nofe 17);

8. Capitalization ol borrowing costs within the carrying amount of properly, plant and cquipment in the amount of
24,027 million tenge (Nofe 7);

9. Purchase of property, plant and cquipment under finance lease apreements in the total amount of 20,989 mitlion
lenge:

10.  Contribution ol the property to the share capital of the Fund in the wmount of 18,073 million tenge (Nere 17.1};

1l.  Recognition ol discount on loans from the Government received by the lFund in the amount of
12,363 million tenge (Note 17.2);

12, Repayment of loans provided by the Fund by invesiment property in the total amount of 10,433 miilien tenge.

38, RELATED PARTY PISCLOSURES

In accordance with [AS 24 Relared Party Disclosures, partics are considered to be related if one party has the ability to
contro! Lthe other party or excrcise significant itfluence over the other parly in making linancial or operational decisions.
In considering cach possible related party relationship, atiention is dirccted to the substance of the relationship, not
merely the legal form.

Related partics include key management personnel of the Group, enterprises in which a substantial interest in the voting
power is owned, directly or indirectly, by the Group's key management personnel and other entities controlled by the
Government. Related party (ransactions were made on terms agreed (o between the parties thal may not necessarily be
at market rates, except for cerlain regulated services, which are provided based on the tarifls available 1o related and
third parties.
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“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna® JSC Consolidated finaricial siatements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

38.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES {continued)

The following table provides the total amount of transactions. which have been entered into with related partics as at
December 31:

Joint ventures
where the Other state —

Group is a conirolled Other related
in miflions of fenge Associates venturer entities parties
Due from related parties 2014 34,735 29,722 10,837 136

2013 45 827 21,030 6,070 339

Dus to related parties 2014 36,920 45,164 1,945 -

2013 9,268 46,231 8932 2,436

Sale of goods and services 2014 86,812 271,549 112,771 2,205

2013 50,666 223174 73,016 1,992

Purchase of goods and services 2014 147,254 280,940 15,731 396

2013 40,271 332,802 17,115 2,902

Current accounts and deposits 2014 - - - -

{liabilities) 2013 &0 709 28,224 34

Cash and cash equivalents, and 2014 - - 258,142 -
amounis due from credit

institutions (assets) 2013 6,530 - 198,369 -

Loans to customers 2014 49,723 148,513 5,765 7.543

2013 15,628 58,145 7,163 6,156

lLeans received 2014 32,224 6 915,279 -

2013 67 7 1,112,865 -

Other assets 2014 2,424 50,203 8,822 5

2013 18,190 48,059 56,732 1,780

Other liabilities 2014 3,686 836 9,437 17

2013 2,961 830 50,502 38

Interest received 2014 3,515 10,634 7,393 1474

2013 1,682 5,914 12,141 4,382

Interest acerued 2014 165 658 80,764 -

2013 1 4,403 58,973 2

As at December 31, 2014 somie of the Group's borrowings in the amount of 55.20% million tenge were guarantecd by
the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan (2043: 71.290 million tenge).

Total compensation to key management personnel included in personnel costs in the accompanying consolidated
slalement of comprehensive income was equal to 13.405 million lenge for the year ended December 31. 2014
{2013: 12.836 miliion tenge), Compensation to key managemenl personnel mainly consists of contractual salary and
performance bonus bused on operating resulls.

As disclosed carlier in Note 26, the Government provides cerlain subsidies to the Group's subsidiaries,
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“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samrak-Kazyna” 3SC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments consist ol borrowings, loans from the Government of the Republic of
Kazakhstan, linance lease liabilitics, amounts due to the customers, derivatives, cash and cash cquivalents, loans to
customers, amounts due from credit institutions, other {inancials assets, as well as accounts receivable and accounts
payable. The main risks arising {rom the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and
credit risk. The Group also monilors the liquidity risk arising [rom all financial instruments,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a linancial instrument will Muctuate duc to changes in market inlerest rales.
The Group limils interest rale risk by monitoring changes in interest rates in the currencies in which ils cash,
investments and borrowings are denominated.

The Group’s exposurc to interest risk relates primarily o the Group’s long-lerm and shori-term borrowings with
variable inlerest rates (Nofe /8).
The following table demonsirates the sensiivity ol the Group’s prefit before income tax (through the impact on variable

rate borrowings) and equity (through the impact on the. fair value of investmenis available for sale) 1o a reasonably
possible change in variable LIBOR interest rates, with all other variables held constant.

Increasef

{decrease) in  Effect on profit Other effect on
In mitions of tenge basis poinis* and loss equity
2014
US dollar 2/(2) {1,072)1,072 {822)/822
Tenge 242} (29)/29 {29)/29
2013 _
US doliar 3/(3) {1,034)/1,034 (77
Tenge 3H3) {60)/60 {285}/333

* [ basispoimt - 8.0M%.

Currency risk

As a resull of significant borrowings, linance lease liabilities and trade accounts payable, cash and cash equivalents,
amounts due from eredit institulions and accounts receivable denominrated in the US dollars, the Group’s consolidated
financial position can be affected signiflicantly by movement in the US dollar / tenge exchange raies.

The Tollowing table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit béfore income tax Lo a reasonably possible change
in the US dollar and Eure, with all the variables held constant.

Increase/

{decrease) in Effect on profit and
In miflions of tenge exchange rate loss
2014
US dollar 17.37%M1.31% 237,018/{250,234)
Euro 18.36%/18.36% {906)/895
2013
US dollar 20%M10%  (317,350)/(156,200)
Euro 20%410% {13,426)/{6.713)
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“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna™ ISC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLACIES {continued}

Credit risk

Credit risk arising [rom the inability of a party to meet the terms of the Group's [inancial instrument contracts is
gencrally limited to the amounts, if any, by which the counterparty’s obligations exceed the obligations of the Group to
that party. It is the: Group’s palicy to enter into financial instruments with a diversity of ereditworthy parties. The
maximum exposure 1o credit risk is represented by carrying amount of cach financial assel. The Group considers that its
maximum exposure is reflected by the amount of loans to customers (Nete 1), amount due from credit institutions
{Nete 11), trade accounts receivable and other current assets {Nofe 15). other financial assets (Nofe 12}, and cash and
cash equivalents (Note 16}, net of allowances for impairment recognized al the reporting date.

Concentrations of credit risk may arise from exposures to a single debtor or to groups of debtors having similar
characteristics such that their ability 10 meet (heir oblipations is expected to be affected similarly by changes in
econornic or olher conditions.

Procedures are in force to casure that sales are only made to buyers with an appropriate eredil history and that an
acceplable credit exposure limit is not exceeded. Credit risk is minimiscd by the fact that the Group cperates on a
prepayment basis with the majority of ils buyers,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with
its financial Jiabifities. Liguidity risk may result from an inabilily to sell a financial asset quickly at close lo its [air
value.

Liquidity requirements are menitored on a regular basis and management ensures that sufficient funds are available to
meet any commitments as they arise.

The lable shown below sutmmarises the maturity profile of the Group’s linancial liabililies at Pecember 31 bused on
contractual undiscounted payments,

Due later than Due later
1 month than 3 Due later
but not later month but  than 1 year
than not tater  but not later Due after

In miffions of tenge On demand 3 months  than 1 year than 5 years 5 years Total
At December 31, 2014
Loans from the
Government 13 24 12,262 74,490 1,647,892 1,734,681
Borrowings 62,730 771,893 486,470 1,411,537 3,069,972 5,802,602
Finance lease liabilities 29 5,156 13,425 47,187 60,585 116,382
Dua to customers 20,685 - - - - 20,685
Trade and other payables 126,939 131,505 20,765 446,277 12 725,498
Derivatives - 182 1,974 - - 2,156
Other current ligbilities 28,021 20,668 90,244 17,132 6,833 162,898

238,417 929.428 625,140 1,996,623 4,775,294  B,564,902
Af December 31, 2013
Loans from the
Government 71,170 24 3,403 19,386 1,373,642 1,467,625
Borrowings 245 459 123,789 405,202 2,192,807 2,807,861 5,775,118
Finance lease fiabilities 67 4536 13,044 45,668 43,712 107,027
Due to customers 81,797 46,973 45,847 54,983 81,921 311,521
Trade and other payables 164,644 166,879 111,689 256,505 12 699,829
Derivatives - - 44 - 45 87
QOther current liabilities 25011 39 583 131,900 8,211 11,2580 216,665

588 148 381,894 711,128 2578260 47318444 8,577,872

90



“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna® JSC Consolidaled trancial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital primarily through capital management of ils subsidiaries while conducting its oversight
function. Major objective of the capital management is to ensure that subsidiaries of the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to sharcholders through the optimisation ol the debt and equity balance.

The Group manages capital of is subsidiaries by selting various performance indicators tailored Lo the business need
‘and industry specific matlers of cach subsidiary. Key performance indicators (“KP1™) used by the Group to manage
capital of ils subsidiarics are ratios oft Debt to Earnings belore Taxes. Depreciation and Amortization. and Inlerest
(*D/EBITDA™}: and Debt o Equily (“IVE™). Debt is considered to be equal to all borrowings. debt securities, guarantee
and finance lease labilities of relevant subsidiaries reduced by value el cash and cash equivalents. Equity is considered
1o be equal 1o the entire cquily of the subsidiary atiributable o majority shareholders.

Allowed maximum Jor the indicator is approved for cach subsidiary based on the needs and specifics of its business and
varies within following ranges (consolidated KPI's for the Group have been presenied for reference purposes as the
Group does not monitor KPI's on the consolidated level):

KPI 2014 2013
D/EBITDA 4.63 312
C/E 0.86 {.69
in biflions of tenge 2014 2013
Borrowings 5,642 3,074
Loans from the Government 414 289
Payable for the acquisition interest in NCP 396 322
Finance lease liabilities 106 ag
Due to custorners 21 242
Derivatives 2 1
Guarantead principal amount of liabllities of entities ouiside the Group 407 a7y
Debt 6,988 5,204
Profit before income tax 459 955
Interest on loans and debt securities issued 244 200
Interest on finance lease liahilities 6 4
Depreciation, depietion and amortization 418 356
Impairment loss 456 153
(Gain on revaluation of a 50% stake in EGRES-1 {74) -
EBITDA 1,509 1,668
Total equity 8,132 7,507

Fair values of financial instruments

The Group uses the Tollowing hicrarchy for delermining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:

Level 1 quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markels for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable,
cither directly or indirectly.

Level 3: technigues which use inputs which have a significant elfect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data.
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“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna” JISC Consolidated [inancial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Fair values of financial instruments {continued)

Set out belew is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair vaiues of all of the Fund’s linancial instrumenls
presented al fair value in the consolidated balance sheel:

December
in millions of tenge Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31, 2014
Finaneial instruments category
Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets 70,042 907 78 71,027
Financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss - 4,079 3,368 7.447
Darivative financial asssats - 2,102 KFi 12,481
Liabilities
Darivative financial liabilities - 2,156 - 2,156
Dacember 31,
in miftions of tenge Level 1 Leval 2 Level 3 2013

Financial instruments category

Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets 50,639 13,636 726 65,004
Financial assets at fair value through profit and

loss - 6,431 - 6,431
Derivative financial assets - 486,427 - A6 427
Liabilities
Derivative financial lizbilities - 527 — 527

Reconciliation of the beginning balance and ending balance based on the Level 3 hierarchy of the fair value as at
December 31, 2014 is presented as lollows:

Financial
Available-  assets at fair
for-sale value Derivative Total
financial through financial financial
in mitfions of tenge . assets profitioss assets assets
As at January 1, 2013 6,441 14,715 32 21,188
Total profit/(loss) recognized in profit and loss 72 41 - 113
Total profit/(ioss) recognized inthe other
comprehensive income 248 142 - 390
Acquisition - 2,956 7 2,563
Sale - (1,441) - {1,441}
Repayment (211} {54} - {265}
Transfer from Level 1 and Leve! 2 726 - - 726
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale {6,550} {16,359) {38) {22,948)
As at December 31, 2013 726 - - 728
Total profitf{loss) recognized in profit and loss - 1,118 379 1,497
Acquisition - 517 - 517
Sale {648) - - {648)
Transfer from Level 1 and Level 2 - 1,733 - 1,733
As at December 31, 2014 78 3,368 379 3,825
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“Severeign Weaith Furd “Samruk-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

December 31, 2014
Fair value by levei of assessment
Based on the

Quotations in From the significant
an active observed amount of
Carrying Fair market market unobserved
In milfions of tenge amoaunt value {Level 1} {Level 2} {Level 3)
Financial assets
Amounts due from credit
institutions 1,838,604 1,808,337 897,699 862,997 45,6441

Fimancial liabilities
Borrowings 5,642,262 5,379,111 2,980,365 2,225,469 173,277
Loans from the Government

of the Republic of

Kazakhstan 413,744 348,835 - 348,835 -

December 31, 2013

Fair value by ievel of sment

Based on the

From the significant

Quotations in an observed amount of

Carrying Fair active market market unocbserved

In miltions of tenge amount value {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)

Financial assets

Amounts due from credit

institutions 1,574,564 1,541,964 933,766 549,624 58,574

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 3,974,366 4,019,557 2,945 574 742,846 331,137
Loans from the Government

of the Republic of

Kazakhstan 268,558 228,369 - 228, 358 -

The fair value of the above financial instruments has been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at
prevailing interest rates.



“Severeign Wealth Fund “Samrui-Kazyna” JSC Consolidated financial stalemenis

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

40. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Taxation

Provisions against amounts due from BTA Bank JSC

In September 2010, the Astana city tax committee of the Ministry of finance of the Republic of' Kazakhstan initiated
comprehensive tax audit of the Fund's activities for 2009, Based on the resuits of the tax audit. tax authorities raised a
question on deductability of provisions lor corporate income tax purposcs in 2009. The Fund has not agrecd with the
results of the lax audit and at the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements submitted an appeal to the Tax
Committee.

The Resolution of the Government No. 2275 dated December 30, 2009 approved the “Rules of aifocation of assets and
contingent liabililies to the category of doubtful and bad by the national management holding, and by legal entities that
are mainly engaged in borrowing transactions and repurchase of rights of demand and 100% of voting shares (share of
participation) of such entitics belong (o the national management holding, and they have the right 1o deduct provision
(reserve) expenses against doubtlul and bad assets, contingeit liabilities. apart from agsets and conlingent liabilitics
provided in favour of related parties. or third parties on cbligations of relaled parties (apart from assets and conlingent
liabilities of credil cooperatives)™ ("Rules™.

In accordance with the Rules the Group recognised and deducted for corporate income tax purposes provisions related
to the arnounts duc from BTA in the amount of 177.352 miilion lenge (“provisions™).

The Group’s management believes thal as at December 31, 2014 iis interpretation of applicable legislation {including
Rules) is appropriate and the Group’s position on deductibility of these provisions will be sustained. Accordingly, the
Group did not recognize any provisions associated with possible assessments due to the results of the tax audil in the
financial stalements,

Comprehensive tax audits of the NC KTZh Group entities

During a special tax sudit related to VAT retwrn of NC KTZh for the period [rom Janvary 2009 to December 2009 tax
authorities identified VAT in the amount of {4,162 million lenge previously claimed for refund bul not properly
supported based on a counter audit of supplicrs and also due to the absence of custom’s marks on the additional copy of
& road certificate, where they ulso assessed a penally of 11,145 million tenge. As at December 31, 20(4 NC KTZh has
nol accrued an aliowance for these amounts us NC KTZh believes the requirement for provision of cuslom’s marks on
the additional copies of road certificate contradicts applicable tax legisiation and the NC KTZh is appealing the tax
claim in the court and state bodies.

During 2014, the NC KTZh acerued provisions for corporate income tax and fines in the amount of 8.808 million tenge
bascd on results of tax audits performed for the period of 2007-2610. in addition (o the provisions accrued as at
December 31, 2013. The NC KTZh paid the amounts and is uppeaiing the results of the tax audit in the courl.

Mineral extraction tax (NC K MG

On July 2, 2013 the Tax Committee of Yessil distriel of Astana provided a notification to NC KMG subsidiary — KMG
EP in the amount of 8,785 million tenge (or alleged discrepancies between data reported in KMG EP's mineral
extraction tax ("MET™) returns and date supplied by the Ministry of Oif and Gas of the Republic of Kazakhstan for the
period from 2009 1o 2012, These alleged discrepancies were caused by the fact that the sliding rates of tax in 2012 MET
tax returns were delermined based on volumes of production for the period when subsoil use contracts belonged to
KMG EP, whereas the information provided by (he Ministry of Oil and Gas of the Republic of Kazakhstan includid
production valumes of KMG EP and its subsidiarics 1SC “Ozenmunaigas™ and JSC “Embamunaigas” combined.

According to the tax authorities, lor the purposes of determination of the MET raie [or the year 2012 KMG EP shouid
have ineluded production volumes of JSC “Ozenmunaigas™ and JSC “Embamunaigas™ as well. cven though transler of
subsoil use contracts took place during 2012. However, based on norms stipulated in the Kazakh tax legislation KMG
EP believes that the MET rate should be delermined based upon production for the period when it direetly owned the
subsoil use contracis,

KMG P disagrees with the above notification and has provided the wrillen explanations of its position. The tax
authorities have not vet audited KMG EP on (his matter and hence no tax assessment was done yet. Should the tax
authorities audit KMG EP and assess additional MET liabilties. KMG EP will appeal such assessment. As management
believes that it is more likely that KMG P will suceeed in its appeal. no accruals of provisions in relation to this matter
have been made in the consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2014,
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40. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continuzed)

Taxation {continued)

Comprelensive tax aidits of NAC KAP Group entities

In accordance with the order of Aslana Cily tax department dated February 13, 2014, NAC KAP was subject 1o
comprehensive tax audit covering tax liabilitics {or all taxes and other mandatory payments for 2009-2012, Based on
the results of tax audit (Act No. 186 of December 30, 2014Y, NAC KADP was issucd a notice of additiona! assessments
for total amount of 1,735 million tenge (including corperate income tax for 980 million lenge, excess profit tax for 155
miflion tenge, property tax for 77 million tenge. mineral extraction tax for 234 million tenge, commercial discovery
bonus for 288 million tenge, and other taxes for 1 million tenge). fine for 339 million tenge, and requirement (o pay
administrative finc lor 961 million tenge.

On June 30, 2014, (ax authorities completed comprehensive tax audit for 2009-2012 of IV KATKO LLP, NAC KAP
associate company engaged in extraction and sale of uranium products. Based on the resulls of audit, IV KATKO LLP
was issued wilh assessments for total amount ol approximately 2 billion tenge (NAC KAP share is approximately 6
hillion tenge). Other issues raised by the tax autherities have been appealed by management of JV KATKO LLP and are
currently under evaluation.

Management expects that issucs raised by tax authorities during audit of NAC KAP and ]V KATKO LLP would be
included in tax audit of NAC KAP other entities which are subsurface users and subject 1o comprehensive tax audits.

Management of NAC KAP assessed that in respect of property tax the probability of payment of the assessed amounts
is high. Accordingly NAC KAP recognised provision on the assessed properly tax. Nevertheless, in respect of other
issues NAC KAI* management believes that their interpretations of tax legislation are appropriate and tax position of
NAC KAP will be sustained.

Due 1o the uncertalnlics agsociated with the Kazakhstan 1ax system, (he ultimate amount of taxes, penalties and interest,
if any, may exceed the amount expensed te date and accrued as at Pecember 31, 2014, [t is not practicable to determine
the amount ol any unasserted claims thal may manilest. il any. or the Tikeliheod of any unfavourable outcome.

Tax assessmients received by Rampetrol Rafinare S.A. (NC KMG)

Rompetrol Rafinare S.A, received the results of the tax audit covering the period 2007-2018 with the (otal amount of
additional tax ¢laims and late payment interest of 15 million US dellars (2,735 million 1enge).

Both Rompetrol Rafinarc S.A. and the Remanian lax authorities filed appeals Lo the Romanian Supreme court of justice,
‘Fhese final appeals are still with the Romanian Supreme court of justice. NC KMG considers the risk of losses as
possible and no provisions relaling Lo this tax assessment were accrucd as at December 31, 2014,

Environment liabilities

ANPZ exvirommenial audit (NC KMG)

In 2014 the Depariment of gcology of Atyrau oblast {("DEAR™) issued an order to subsidiary of KazMunayGas Refinery
and Marketing JSC (100% subsidiary of NC KMG) ANPZ for compensaiion ol the environmental damage caused by
burning acid gas in the amount ol 23,776 million lenge. The resulls of the first and second court instances were in
lavour ol the Group.

‘The courl resolution appeal term in cassational order was past duc tor DEAR in March 2015, Tlowever, the appeal of
efeclive court decision by DEAR in supervisory order within one year | ending in September 2015 is possible.

In aecordance with applicable legislation the management of NC KMG believes that there are no obligations, which can
have adverse impuct on consolidated financial position and performance of the Group,

Legal proceedings

Convertible debt instrument and refated litigations (KMG Inrernationad N.V,)

As al December 31, 2009 NC' KMG had an outstanding balance ol 3.333 million tenge of a convertible debt instrument
issued by a significant subsidiary of KMG { - Rompetrol Rafinare S.A, to the Romanian Slate. The nominal valee of
Habilities cqualed to 570.3 million Luros, The instrument had seven years maturity and expired on Seplember 30, 2010,
Fair value of the debt component at the initial recognition was delermined as the discounted luture contractual cash
paymenis under the instrument. Under the share ewnership as at December 31, 2009 the NC KMG would have lost
control over Rompetrol Rafinare 8.A., if the entire debl instrument was seitled at September 30. 2018 by issuance of
new shares to the Romanian State, without any further action by KMG 1 and/or Rompetrol Rafinare S.A.

95



“Sovereign Wealth Fund “Samruk-Kazyna® JSC Consolidated linancial statemenis

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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Legal proeecedings (continued)

Convertible debt instriment and related litigations (NC KMG} (continued)

During the first half of 2010 in order to increase its interest in Rompetrol Ralinare S.A. NC KMG was required to make
a publie offer to all sharcholders. In August 2010 Rompetroi Rafinare 8.A, increascd its share capital by issuance of
new shares amounting to RON 329.4 miltion (78 miliion Euros at the date of subscription). all of which were subscribed
and fully paid for by KMG!, further increasing NC KMG’s interest in Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. ol these proceeds from
the share issuance, during the same month. Rompetrol Ralinare 8.A. repaid 54 million Euras (10,464 million lenge) out
of the Lotal debt of 570.3 million Euros in relation to the convertible debi insirument to the Romanian State. In
September 2010, Rompetrol Rafinare 8.A. paid the last coupon. amounting to 17 millien Euros {3.314 million teage).
leading to a nil balance of the liability component of the convertible debi instrument.

On September 30. 2010 the Extraordinary General Meeling (GMS) of the shareholders ol Rompetrol Rafinare S.A.
approved Lhe conversion of the unredeemed converlible debt instrument inlo shares. the corresponding share capital
increase and Lhe exact numbers of shares 10 be received by the Romanian State for the convertible debt it held,
calculated based on the exchange rate in foree on such date, together with a share premivm calculated as a difTerence of
the exchange rale valid on September 30, 2010 and issuance date on Scptember 30, 2003, This resulted in a non-
conlrolling position of the Remanian State in Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. of 44.6959%,

These transactions resulted in a decrease of retained earnings by 113.467 million tenge and increase of non-controlling
interest by 103.003 million tenge in 2010,

In 2010, the Romanian Stale, represented by the Ministry of public finance of the Romanian State (MFP), initiated a
legal action against the decision of Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. to increase the share capital and convert the convertible
clebt instrument partially in cash and partially by issuance of shares.

Constanta "Iribunal dismissed the Romanian State request: (a) lor some of the annnlment reasons considering that the
Romanian State lacks the capacity Lo stand trial, arguing that jt did not have the capacity of sharcholder when such acls
were adopted, (b} for some of the annulment reasons considering that they were not grounded.

Furthermore, on November 17, 2010 the Minisiry of public finance ol the Romanian Statc issued a Summons and
Forced Execution Title for the amount of RON 2,206 (for presentation purposes 516.3 million Euros and. ut the
exchange rate as al December 31, 2010 is 100,797 million tenge} as a resull of the Romanian Authorities disagreement
with the deciston of NC KMG (o partially settle the insttument by issuanee of shares. Ronipetrol Rafinare S.A. filed a
claim against a forced execulion requesting cancelation of the Summons and Forced |ixecution Tille. In June, 2012 the
hearing of the case was suspended and can be resumed within one year Lill Junc 6, 2013,

In addition. on September 10, 2010 the Romanian authorities. représented by the Nalional Agency flor Fiscal
Administration (ANAF), issued a decision for a precautionary seizure on all the participations held by Rompetrot
Ralinare S.A. in its affiliates as well as on all movable and immovable assets of Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. excepl for
inventories. This measure is still in force and being challenged by NC KMG. As of the reporting date this seizure has
not heen enforced as the Romanian autharities did not initiate lorced execution procedures. Management belicves thal
the enforcement of the seizure by the authoritics would not be practicable.

On Febroary 15. 2013, Rompetrol Rafinare S.A, and the Office of State Ownership and Privatisation in Indusiry
(OPSPI). representing the Romanian Stale, signed & memorandum ol understanding whereby they agreed the amiable
settlement ol the dispule over the conversion of the convertible debt instrument,

On January 22, 2014, the Memorandum of Understanding was approved by the Romanian Governmenl’s Decision
No 35/2014 pursuant to which the Ministry of publie finance of Romania was authorized und mandated Lo pursue all
procedural actions required lor the withdrawal of the claims and the termination of all litigations, The Memorandum of
Understanding includes the following key aspects:

. OPSPI will sell and NC KMG will acquire shares owned by OPSP] and representing 26,6959% of RRC's share
capital [or a cash consideration ol 200 million UJS dollars:

. NC KMG will consider investment in energy projeets related (o ils core activities in the amount estimated at |
hillion US dollars over 7 (seven) years;

. The Ministry of public finance will drop all cases against the GMS decisions related o the conversion and will
caneel the forced exceulion title.
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40. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Legal proceedings (continued)

Cosvertible debt instrument and related litigations (NC KMG) (continued)

‘This court case was closed following the last hearing in March 2014 and the renouncement by the Minisiry of linance of’
Romaniz. KMGI submitied o (he Romanian authoritics a request Tor the annulment of the scizure. As such NC KMG’s
managemen{ belisves that the seizure of the asscls will be cancelled.

Legal proceeding regarding carbon dioxide emission (KMG International N.V.)

On lebruary 28. 2011 Rompetrol Ralinare S.A. won the judicial proceedings, which were initiated by Romanian
authorities. Accordingly. the Ministry of environmental protection of Romania ordered to the Romanian authorized
bodies to provide 2,577,938 additional certificates on carbon dioxide emissions to Rompetrol Ralinare S.A. for the
peried starting from 2008 1l 2042, The initial decision passed by Appellate court of Constanta was challenged by the
Ministry of environmental protection and Romanian authorities, nevertheless, appeals were rejected by the Supreme
Court on October 30. 2012 and the decision of the first instznee court became final.

Taking into account that the Ministry of environmental protection of Romania and the Government of Romania did not
execute the courl decision within established period, Rompelrol Rafinare S.A. iniliated proceedings on indemnification
of losses in the amount of 36 millien curos (6.565 million tenge at the rate as at December 31, 2014) against the
Ministry of environmental protection of Romanta and the Romanian authorities.

On April 24, 2614 the court rejected the claim of Rompetrol Rafinare 8.A. On August 6, 2014 Rompetrof Rafinare 8.A.
received decision of the courl, Accordingly, Rompetrol Ralinare S.A. filed an appeal Lo the Supreme Court, however
hearings were nol appointed yet.

In addition Rompectral Rafinare S.A. filed a claim to Appellate court of Censtanta with the requirement of
reconsideration of the case. The first hearing of this claim took place on March 2. 2015, The lollowing hearings are
appointed to April 28, 2015,

KazMunayGas Trading AG (NC KMG)

As at Deeember 31, 2014 and 2013, KazMunayGas Trading AG is engaged in litigations with SC Bioromeil SRI.. 8C
Bioromoil SRL was sceking lo recover the costs related to the Romanian cusloms duties in relation to the sale of
biodiese! in 2409 and 2010 and compensation for lost profits. The total amoumt of claims amounted to
19.100 billion tenge as of December 31, 2014 (December 31, 2013: 5,100 billion tenge},

Liabilities on reimbursement of PetroChing expenses (NC KMG)

Under the agreement on gas borrowing KTG-Almaty {(subsidiary of NC KMG) has commitments to PetroChina to
reimburse the supported costs and losses incurred by PetroChina due to gas borrowing and ils return. During 2014,
PetroChina claimed reimbursement on 2, 3, and 4th tranches of gas borrowing totaling 164,226 thousand US dollars
{29.947 miilion tenge). NC KMG analysed reimbursable expenses claimed by PetroChina. and recorded a provision in
the amount of 73.094 thousand US dotlars (13.329 million tenge) as at December 31, 2014 (December 31, 2013: 17,400
million tenge}. Currently, the management of NC KMG is in the process of negotiations with PetroChina in order o
agree on reimbursable amounts,

Civil litigation (NC KMG)

On October 7. 204 the Rontanian court of appeal partially granted a civil action fited by the Romanian state lor the
amount af 58.5 million US dollars {10,668 million tenge) representing damages Lo be paid to the Ministyy of Finance of
Romania, ptus related legal interest from January 3, 2001 Lo Lthe actual payment date. Under this civil action Romipetrol
5.AL and individuals are severatly held liable.

The decision of this court of appeal may be chaltenged by way of extraordinary judicial remedies: the appeal for
annulment, ihe revision and the appeal for cassation (the latler even more limited, solely Lo points of law). The actual
manner in which the enforeement ol the decision takes place may also be chalienged.

NC KMG abready submitied the two extraordinary appeals against the decision of the Romanian court of appeal.

NC KMG management considers that the important legal steps have been inftiated to challenge the decision of the

Romanian court of appeal. Management assessed the risk of losses as possible and no provisions relating to this courl
decision has been acerued as at December 31, 2014,
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Legal proceedings (continued)

Litigation with the Romanian Competition Council (NC KMG)

Based on its Decision No. 97/21 December 2011, the Romanian Compelition Council (RCC) ruled thal an alleged
breach of the Romanian Competition Law and of Trealy for the Functioning of the Buropean Union took place on the
Romanian market (the allegations concerned an alleged mulual understanding of sll major cil players to jointly
withdraw {rom the market a type of fuel ECO Premium in 2008, during the Romanian Petroleum Association — RPA-
mectings held in 2007-2008), As a result. RCC imposed fines to all major players on the Romanian oit market.
Rompetrol Downstream was charged for 46.83 million US dollars,

As al December 31, 2014 an amount of 22.3 million US dollars (4.066 million ienge) was paid by Rompetrol
Downstream, The payment of the remaining part is rescheduled by the Romanian tax authorities Ffor 68 months.

NC KMG management considers risk of losses as possible and no provisions relating o the remaining parl of this
litigation has been accrued as at December 31, 2014,

Commodity price risk

The Group generates most of its revenue from the sale of commodities. primarily crude oil and cil products.
Elistorically. the prices of these products have been volatile end have fluctuated widely in response to changes in supply
and demand, market uncertainty. the perlormance of the global or regional economies and cyclicality in industries.

Prices may also be aflected by government actions, including the Imposition of tarilfs and imporl duties, speculative
trades, an increase in capacity or an oversupply of the Group’s products in its main markets. Thesc external factors and
the volatility of the commodity markets make i difficult lo estimate [uture prices.

A substantial or extended decline in commaodily prices would materially and adversely affect the Group's husiness and
the consolidated {inancial results and cash flows ol operations. The Group docs nol hedge significantly ils exposure to
the risk ol fluctuations in the price of its products.

Cost recovery audits

Under the base principles of the production sharing agrecments. the Government lransferred Lo contractors the exclusive
rights to conducl activities in the subsurface use arca. I did not transfer rights to this subsurface use arca either to
ownership or lease. Thus. all extracted and processed oil (ie. the hydrocarbens produced) are the property of the
Government, Works are carried oul on the basis of compensation and the Government pays the contractors not in cash
but in the form ol the portion of oil predustion, thereby allowing the contractors Lo recover Uheir costs and carn profit.

In accordance with the production sharing agrecements not all costs ificurred by the contractors could be reimbursed.
Certain expenditures need to be approved by the authorized bodies. The authorized bedies conduct the cost recovery
audils.

In accordance with the costs recovery audils completed prior to December 31, 2014 certain amounts of the costs
incurred by conlractors were assessed as non-recoverable. The partics to the production sharing agreements are in
negotiations with respeet Lo the recoverability of those cosls.

As sl December 31, 2014 NC KMG's share in Lthe tolal disputed amounts of the non-recoverable costs is equal lo
64,286 million tenge (Deeeniber 31, 2013: 33.708 million tenge). NC KMG and its pariners under the production
sharing agreemenis are negotiating with the Government with respecl to the recoverability of these costs.

Kazalchstan local market obtigation

The Government requires oif companies in the Republic of Kazakhstan to supply a portion ol the products to meel the
Kazakhstan domestic energy requirement on an annual basis. mainly to maintain oil products supply belance on the
local market and to support agricultural producers during the spring and auturnn sowing and harvest campaigns.

Kazakhstan focal markel oil prices are significantly fower than export prices and cven lower than the normal domestic
markel prices determined in an armn-length transaction. [f the Governmenl does require additional crude off to be
delivered over and above the quantities currently supplicd by NC KMG. such supplics will take precedence over market
sales and will generate substantially less revenue than crude oil sold on the export market, which may materially and
adversely affect NC KMG's business. prospects. consolidated linancial position and resulls of operations.In 2014, in
accordance with its obligations, NC KMG delivered 4,137.532 tons of crude ofl (December 31, 2013: 2.898.025 tons),
including joint ventures, to the Kazakhslan market,
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Russian Federation market obiigation

The inler-governmental agreement between Kazakhstan and the Russian Federation on delivery of oil and oil products
to the Repubiic of Kazakhstan dated December 9, 2009 defines the mechanism of compensation ol losses of the Russian
federal budget in relation 1o oit products imported from the Russian Federation to the Republic ol Kazakhstan without
the customs duties. According to this agreement, Kazakhstan has an obligation to reimburse losses of the Russian
federal budget by eustom-free counter supply of crude oil from the Republic of Kazakhstan to the Russian Federation,

In 2014 the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan defined seventy-seven focal subsurface users responsible for
provision of necessary crude oil volumes, and also defined KazMunayGas — Refinery and Marketing JSC
(100% subsidiary of MC KMG) as the company — operator in Kazakhstan. The company — operator is responsible lor
the arrangement and accounting of counter supply 1o the Russian Federation.

Commitments under oilficld 2nd mining ficld licenses and subsurface use contracts

As at December 31, 2014 the Group had lollowing commilments on fulfillment of minimal work programs with respect
to the requirements of their oilfield and mining licenses and related subsurface use contracts with the Government ¢in
millions of tenge):

Capital Operational
Year expenditures expenditures
2015 132,062 48,847
20186 83,973 45743
2017 75,784 44,125
2018 16,084 43,437
2019-2025 125,835 317,918
Total 432,738 500,170

Capital commitments

NC KMG

As at December 31, 2014, NC KMG had other capital commitments ol approximately 832,000 million tenge related to
acquisition and construction of property, plant and equipment. including joint venlures (December 31. 2013:
641,000 million tenge).

NC KTZh
As at Deeember 31, 2014, KTZh had committed to contracts for the censtruction of Zhezkazgan — Beineu and Arkalyk

— Shubarkel railways. the conslruction of a multifunctional ice palace in Aslana, the primary backbone (ransport
communrication net, and the purchase of cargo and passenger eleetric locomotives, cargo and passenger carriers and

locomaotives totaling 555.846 mitlion tenge (December 31, 2013; 567,979 mitlion tenge).

Seumruk-finergy JSC

As al Becember 31. 2014 capital commitments of Samruk-Encrgy JSC under the contracls on acquisition of plant,
property and equipment were cqual to 191,853 million lenge (December 31, 2013: 35,661 million tenpge),

Kazakhstan Llectricity Grid Operating Company JSC

To ensure the stable and reliabie performance of the national electricity grid, Kazakhstan Electricily Grid Operating
Company ISC ("KEGOC™) developed a capital investment plan. As at December 31, 2014, XEGOC"s outstanding
contractual commitments within the framework of this plan was equal to 103,344 million tenge (December 31, 2013:
68,612 million tenge).

United Chemical Compeny LLP

As at December 31. 2014 capital commitments of United Chemical Company LLP under the contracts on acquisition of
plant, property and equipment were equal to 31.750 million tenge (December 31. 2013: 3.176 million tenge).
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Capital commitments (conlinued)

Alr Astana JSC

Dairing 2008 Air Astana JSC signed an agreement with Airbus to purchase six Airbus narrow-body aircrall. Air Astana
I8C was committed to pre-delivery payments in accordance with an agreed payment schedule, Payments commenced in
2008 and the last payment was made in 2013, During 2012 and 2013, the Air Astana JSC cntered into fixed interest
finance lease agrcements for these six Airbus aircraft. These leases are denominated in US dollars, with a repayment
term of twelve years. Loans provided by financial institutions to the lessor are guaranteed by European Export Credit
Agencies.

During 2011 Ajr Astana JSC signed an agreement with Embraer to purchase two Embraer-190 narrow -body aircrafi.
Alr Astana JSC was commitied 1o pre-delivery payments from 2011 in accordance with an agreed payment schedule.
with first aircraft delivered in 2012 and the sceond in 2013, both on a fixed interest US dollar finance lease, with a
repayvment term of twelve years.

During 2012, Air Aslana JSC linalised an agreement with Boeing to purchase three Boeing 767s and three Boeing
7875 aircraft. Air Astana JSC is committed 1o pre-delivery payments in accordance with the agreed payment schedule,
[n respect of the Boeing 767s aircrafl, 50% of pre-delivery payments were paid from own resources and 50% were
financed by the borrowings. The amounts borrowed in respect of the three Bocing 767s were repaid by the Air Astana
ISC on delivery dale of each aircrafl in 2013 and 2014 years. Final pre-delivery payments for the third Boeing
767s aircrafl were made in 2013, Two Boeing 767s were delivered in 2013 and the third one was delivered in mid 2014,
Defivery of Boeing 787s are now deferred 1o 2019 with last pre-delivery payments expected in 201 8.

in June 2013 Alr Astana ISC signed a term agreement with a US financing corporation to finance purchase of up to
threc Boeing-767 aircraft for the amount guaranteed by US Export-Import Bank. This facility has been used to finance
the Boeing 767s delivered in 2013 and 2014,

The terms of Air Astana JSC contracts with the above suppliers precludes it from disclosing inlormation on the
purchase cost of the aircraft.

Simruk-Energy

Capitel commitiments of joint ventures

As at December 31, 2014, Sameuk Lnergy group’s share in capital expenditure commitments of jfoint ventures {Forum
Muider), and EGRES-2 were equal to 14,931 million tenge (December 31, 2013: 105,830 million tenge, including
RGRIES-1).

Investment commitinenis

In accordance with Agreements on Investment Obligations with the Ministey of energy of the Republic of Kazakhstan.
Samruk LEnergy group entities involved in the production ol electricily have investment obligations as at December 31,
2014 of 70.919 million tenge (December 31, 2013 15.257 million tenge). As at December 31, 2014 Samruk Lnergy
group’s share in investment commitments of joint ventures (EGRES-2) was equal to 9,450 million tenge (December 31,
2013: 42377 million Lenge, including EGRES-1),

Other costractual commitments

As at December 31, 201 other capital commitments ol the Group under the contracis on acquisition of ptant, properly
and equipment were equal 10 63,617 million tenge {December 31. 2013: 67.958 million tenge).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continucd)

40. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Operating lease commitments

Operaling lease commitments relate mainty to aircrafi lease with the lease term from 3 {five) te 10 {ten) years. All
operaling lease contracts conlain market review clauses in the cvent that Air Astana ISC exercises option to renew. Air
Astana JSC does not have the option Lo purchase leased assets at the expiry of lease period.

As al December 3 1, operating lease commitments were as follows;

in milfions of tenge 2014 2013
Within one year 13,747 17,505
From one to five years 42,850 53,995
Over five yoars 13,161 4,406
Total 69,758 75,806

Operaling lease commitments include fixed rental payments and certain portion of payments for technical support
which vary according 10 {lying hours.

The lixed and variable rental payments are denominated and settied in US dollars. ‘This currency is routinely used in
international commerce for aircrall operating leases,
Commitments to cxtend loans, guarantees, letters of credit and other commitments related to sctilement

operations

Al any time the Group has outstanding commitments to extend credit. ‘These commitments take the form of approved
loans and credit card lmils and overdrafl {ucilities and are cancellable on certain conditions.

The Group provides financial guarailees and letlers of credit to guarantee the performance of customers to third partics.
These agrecments have fixed limits and generally extend for 2 period of up Lo five years.

The contractual amounts of commitmenis are set out in the following table by category. The amounts reflected in the
table for commitments assume that amounts are [ufly advanced. The amounts reflected in the table for letters ol credit

represent the maximum accounting loss thal would be recognized al the reporling date i counterparlics {uiled
completely o perform as contracted.

As al December 31 were as lollows:

in miflions of tenge 2014 2013

Contracted amount

Loan, credit line and finance lease commitments - 136,225
Guarantess 471,472 405,920
Letters of credit and other commitments related to settlement operations - 524
Less: guarantees and deposits with resirictive covenants - {7,921}
Less: provision for bank letters of credit and guarantees - (806)

The Group uscs the same credit control and management policies in undertaking ofl-balance sheet commitments as it
does {or on-balance operations.

The total outstanding contractual commitments to extend credit indicated above does not necessarily represent future
cash requirements, as these commitments may expire or terminate without being funded. as well the Group could
request cotlateral Tor eredit instruments.
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40. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued}

Commitmenis under Stabilization Plan

The Fund was assigned as the Government’s principal operator in implementation ol the Stabilization Plan approved by
the Government in 2008 (Note 1.

According to the minutes of the State committee on issues related to modernization of the economy of the Repubtic of
Kazakhstan it is planned to reuse the funds provided according to the Stabilization plan.

Commitments on recycle use of anti-crisis funds

In accordance with the minutes of the meciing of the State commission on economy modernization issucs of the
Republic of Kazakhstan No. [7-5/14-380 dated 5 April 2012, No. 17-5/11-10 dated 30 January 2013 and
No. 17-3/H-788 dated 7 October 2013 the Fund is obliged to finance certain invesiment projects in the total amount of
571,852 million tenge. Taking into account investments made in 2012-2014, the Fund's commitments lor 2015 as al
December 31, 2614 were equal 1o 101,028 million tenge (31 December 2013: 181,874 million tenge), including the
Fund's commitments to finance investment projects which were equal 1o 48.913 million tenge (31 December 2013:
173.774 million tenge).

Implementation of the Fund's investment projects

In accordance with the minutes of the meeting of the State commission on economy modernization issues of the
Republic of Kazakhstan No. 17-3/11-10 dated 30 January 2013 the Fund is obliged to finance invesiment projeci
“Censiruction of gas pipeline “West-North-Center” (through Kartaly-Fobol-Kokshetau-Astana) for the total amount of
126.940 million lenge using its own funds and/or funds of NC KMG. In accordance with the minutes ol the meeting of
ihe Staie commission on economy modernization issucs of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated 30 January 2013, the Fund
redistributed an amount of 56.615 million tenge from “Available housing™ program (o the investment project
“Constraction of gas pipeline “West-North-Center” (lhrough Kartaly-Tobol-Kokshelau-Astana).

On September 5, 2014 a meeting of the Interdepartmental Commiitee for the development.ol oil and gas and energy
industries was held, where decision on termination of the project “Construction of gas pipeline “West-North-Center”
{through Kartaly-Tabol-Kokshetai-Astana) was made. Due 10 project termination, the Fund transterred previously
redistributed {unds for financing of a housing construction program. As at December 31, 2014 the Fund’s commitments
aliocated to finance the “Available housing-2020" program were equal Lo 52,115 million tenge (December 31, 2013
8.100 mitlion tenge).

Commitments under investment projects out of funds from Republican budgel

As sl December 31, 2014 Fund’s comymitments on implementation of investment projects using lunds from the
Republican budgel were equal to 2,030 million lenge (December 31. 2013: 2,030 million tenge).

Commitments for capital projeets at the expense of the National Fund

According 1o the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Management by the National Fund of the Republic of
Kazakhstan Ne 01-7.13 on November 12, 2014, Me 01-7.16 on November 14. 2014 the Fund in 2015-2016 is planned
allecation of targeled translers from the National Fund to the Republican Budget for invesiment projecls totaling
127.260 millien tenge. including 81.000 million tenge for linancing infrastructure in FEZ “National Petrochemical
Technopark™, 8EZ “Khorgos Lastern Gate™ and 46.200 million tenge for the construction of the second railway track on
Lhe site Shu-Almaty-1, railway line Borzhakty-Ersai, ferry complex. in the port of Kuryk and operation of the universal
utility ferries.
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4i.  SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the Group is organized into organizational business nits based on their products and
services, and has 7 {seven) repotiable operating segments as follows:

Qit and gas segment includes operations related to exploralion and production of oil and gas, {ransporiation of oil and
gas and refining and trading of crude oil and refined products.

Mining and industrial segment is engaged in exploration, mining, processing and sales of uranium, berylijum, tantalum
and other solid materials, military industry enterprises and civil machine industry. projects for the development of
chemical industry and geological exploration.

Transportation segment includes operations refated to raitway and air transporiation of cargo and passengers.

Telecommunication segment inciudes operation of fixed line communication, including local, long-distance intercity
and international telecommunication services {including CI8 and non-CIS countries); and also rent of lines, data
transfer services and wireless communicalion scrvices.

Energy segment includes operations related 1o production and distribution of electricity, lunclion of oversight over the
input of électricity into the energy system and consumption of imported clectricity. function of centralised operation and
dispatch of lacilities in (he Unilied Electricity System of the Republic of Kazakhstan,

Financial and innovation instilutions segment includes operations relaled to assisling the Government in increasing
housing avaitability by investing inio residential development. Further, this segment includes commercial banks
acquired by the Fund during 2009.

Corporate center and projects segment covers Fund's investing and financing activities, including provision of loans 1o
related and third parties,

Certain of the above operating scgments have been formed by aggregation of smaller reportable segments in line with
the organizational structure of the Group. Each reportable segment maintains its accounting records in [ine with [FRS.
Firancial performance of each segment prepared in line with IFRS is reporied to the chiel operaling decision maker for

the purposes of making decisions about allocati ng resources 1o the sepment and assessing its performance.
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42, SUBSLEQUENT EVENTS

Bonds

On January 21, 2015 NC KMG redeemed bonds issued at London Stock Exchange in the amount of 1,500 million
US dollars (cquivalent to 273,525 million tenge) plus interest in the amount of 88 million US doflars (cquivalent to
16,047 million tenge).

Refinancing of liabilities

On January 19, 2015 NAC KAP signed an agreement on unsecured syndicated loan with five banks lor the total amount
of 450 million US dollars {equivalent to 82,715 million tenge). The purpose of the syndicated loan is to refinance
bonds. The loan is repayable by equal instalments starting from Scptember 2015 till June 2019.

On February 26, 2015 ~KasTransGaz™ JSC subsidiary of NC KMG signed credit agreement on the lotal amount of 400
million US Dollars {equivalent to 73,788 million lenge) to fefinance current liabilitics with interest rate of 1.3%+3M
LIBCR.

Litigation

On February 26, 2015 NC KMG received a notification firom the Thilist city courl on the seizure of 100% shares of
11.C Batumi Qil Terminal (“BOT™}, the exclusive management right over 100% shares of LL.C Balumi Sca Port and the
immovable property of BOT. The notification was based on a court application by certain customers of BOT, who have
filed 2 commercial dispute against BOT relaled to uncompetilive behaviour, The total amount claimed is
62 miltion US dollars (equivalent to 11,284 million tenge). Management of the Group believes that at this stage it is not
practicable to estimate the amount of the loss; however, it is limited to the total amount of the courl action.

Appreciation of Swiss franc

On January 13, 2015, the Swiss National Bank cancelled the ceiling for the national currency, which did not atlow Euro
Lo fall below 1.20 franes. As a resull. the Swiss [rane has apprecialed by 26% against the US dollar from 1.02 franc as al
Dceember 31, 2014 to .75 franes as at January 15, 2013, which also alfected the lenge exchange rate relative 1o the
Swiss franc, caleulaled through an appropriate cross-rate o US dollar Lo Swiss [ranc.

Changes in Group structure

On January 15, 2015 the Fund sald shares of “Kazakh Research Instilute named after Chokin™ JSC in accordance with
Purchase-sale contract between the Fund and “Power Build Iingineering” LLP. which was signed in December 2014,

On Match 3, 2015 the Fund sold common and preferred shares ol ForteBank to Mr. Utemuratov Bulat Dzhamitovich,
i Apeil 2015 legal registration of the subsidiary Qazaq Alr JSC was carried out.
On March 30, 2015 KGF IM, subsidiary ol the Fund. was liquidated.

Loans issued

During the tirst quarter of 2015, the Fund received an carly repayment of loans provided to KazMinerals Ple for the
purpose of development ol Bozshakol, Abyz and Bozymehak copper liclds in (he amount of 1,993 million US dollars
{equivalent to 368.447 million lenge).

Borrowings

During the first quarter of 2015, the Fund made an early repayment ol foans provided by the State China Development
Bank for the purpose of development of Bezshakol, Abyz and Bozymehak copper ficlds in the amounl of
£.993 million US dollars (equivalent to 368,621 million tenge).

Coniributions to the share capital

On March 31, 2015, the Sharcholder made cash coniributions to the share capital of the Fund in the amount of
36,191 million tenge.
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